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The data on the quantity of training delivered by Challenger TAFE is the Challenger TAFE 2005 Delivery and Performance
Agreement (DPA) and final addenda and the College Curriculum Management Information System Census summary.
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Colmar Brunton Intelligence contracted on behalf of TAFEWA by the Western Australian Department of Education and
Training provided the data on the quality of training delivered by Challenger TAFE. Of the potential population of 7,154
institution-based students, 5,703 individual students were contacted. The sample number achieved was 1,169 being a 20%
response rate with a standard error of +/- 2.1%. Of a potential sample of 1578 enterprise-based students, 1031 students were
contact and 160 responded, representing a 16% response rate with a standard error of +/- 5.88%. The standard error for the
survey of Challenger TAFE students was +/-1.98% at the 95% confidence level.
The following considerations are important:
The data are collected according to Australian National Training Authority requirements and standardised at state level to
take into account sample size.
External measures are supplemented with internal measures of efficiency and effectiveness and through AQTF and
Bureau Veritas audits. It provides objective data for accountability purposes and to inform long-term planning and
internal processes.

The Hon L Ravlich MLC
Minister for Education and Training
12th Floor Dumas House
2 Havelock Street
West Perth WA 6005

Dear Minister
PRESENTATION OF THE CHALLENGER TAFE ANNUAL REPORT 2005
In accordance with Section 54 of the Vocational Education and Training Act 1996 and Section 66 of the Financial
Administration and Audit Act 1985, I have pleasure in submitting seven hard copies and one electronic copy on CD ROM
of the eighth Annual Report of Challenger TAFE for your information and for your presentation to Parliament.
The Annual Report is for the year ending 31 December 2005 and has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of
the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985.

Malcolm H Goff
MANAGING DIRECTOR

27 February 2006
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Paddi Creevey
CHAIR, GOVERNING COUNCIL
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Challenger TAFE in Western Australia

AREA COVERED
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In 2005 Challenger TAFE had 18 delivery sites over a region covering the South-West of the Perth Metropolitan Region, end
to end, extending for 100kms. An additional four locations are anticipated for 2006. The region’s population is
approximately 450,000 people and growing at a rate of 10% per annum. The College employs nearly 1,000 full-time, parttime and casual staff of which approximately two thirds are involved in training delivery and support for learning programs.
Challenger TAFE enrolled over 21,000 students in 2005.
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2005 Achievements at a Glance

Challenger TAFE Centres of Specialisation, students and staff received national and state recognition in a variety of forums
for their considerable achievements in 2005. These achievements are listed in detail in Chapter 16.

RECOGNISING OUR CENTRES OF SPECIALISATION
Australian Training Awards 2005 – Large Training Provider of the Year
Challenger TAFE, Winner
WA Training Excellence Awards 2005 – Large Training Provider of the Year
Challenger TAFE, Winner
WorkSafe – Silver Certificate of Achievement
The WorkSafe Plan assessment process which rates safety and health management systems.
ABC New Inventors 2005 – Finalist
Invention of Semi-intensive Floating Tank System (SIFTS). A partnership between Aquaculture Development Unit (ADU)
and McRobert Aquaculture System allowing farming of increased numbers of fish and minimal environmental impact.
Australian Adult Education Provider of the Year Award 2005
Challenger TAFE’s Centre for Adult Education. Australian Winner.
Premier’s Awards for Excellence in Public Sector Management 2005
The Environment – Aquaculture Development Unit for Semi-intensive Floating Tank System (SIFTS). WA Finalist.
Premier’s Awards for Excellence in Public Sector Management 2005
The Economy – Australian Centre for Energy and Process Training. WA Finalist.

RECOGNISING OUR STUDENTS
Australian Training Awards 2005 – Aboriginal Student of the Year
Mitchell Sellen, Finalist
WA Training Excellence Awards 2005 – Alcoa Aboriginal Student of the Year
Mitchell Sellen, Winner
WA Training Excellence Awards 2005 – John Hughes Apprentice of the Year
Richard Stocker – Australian Centre for Energy & Process Training, Winner

Sangora Education Foundation Award 2005
Samantha Johnson, Winner
International Hairstylists Society, State Hairdressing Awards 2005, Individual Salon of the Year
Head Graffiti, Mandurah. Former Challenger TAFE apprentice, Stephanie Bellairs
Australian Masters of Fashion Award 2005
Fremantle Soroptimists scholarship to participate in National Finals
• Rebecca Galant
• Lareina Scarratt
Rotary Club of Karrinyup scholarship to participate in National Finals
Candice Lowe
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Australian Training Awards 2005 – Apprentice of the Year
Richard Stocker, Finalist
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2005 Achievements at a Glance

National Wildflowers Australia competition
Kristy Yew, State and National Winner
Matthew Landers, Junior Florist of the Year 2005
Matthew Landers, Interflora Florist of the Future 2005
Inaugural DEST Australian Vocational Student prizes to two Career Link students who completed programs in Leadership
Development at Challenger TAFE’s Centre for Leadership & Community Development.

WORLD SKILLS 2005
Gold Medal Winners
Information Technology:
Business Services:
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Russell Clegg, from Kwinana Senior High School, a Challenger TAFE VET for Schools’ student
Tamara Williams, from Hamilton Senior High School, a Challenger TAFE VET for Schools’
student
Commercial Cookery:
Lisa Sunjich, from Hamilton Senior High School, a Challenger TAFE VET for Schools’ student
Food and Beverage Services: Courtney Clarkson, from Hamilton Senior High School, a Challenger TAFE VET for Schools’ student
Toia Miorada, Hospitality student and Third Year Apprentice Chef
Horticulture:
Gina Brooks and Emma Dunham, from Kwinana Senior High School, Challenger TAFE VET for
Schools’ students
Floristry:
Matthew Landers
Bricklaying:
Christopher Harvey
Mechanical Fitting:
Tom Rutherford, Fourth Year Apprentice
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Silver Medal Winners
Floristry:
Mechanical Turning:
Bricklaying:

Adele Pearson
Lauron Begg, Apprentice
Christopher Harvey, Apprentice

Bronze Medal Winners
Floristry:

Jayde Gordon

People’s Choice Awards
First Choice:
Second Choice:
Third Choice:

Matthew Landers
Dannielle Piercey
Alicia Lowe

State Finalists
Cookery:
Floristry:
Metals and Engineering:
Fitting:

Toia Moirada
Matthew Landers
Cameron Dolan, from Kwinana Senior High School, Challenger TAFE VET for Schools’ student
Tom Rutherford

2005 Achievements at a Glance

RECOGNISING OUR STAFF
State Innovations Scholarship for VET Lecturers
• Jack Burgess will receive $15,700 to develop a resource kit for the Certificate III in Information Technology traineeship
• Michael Snadden was awarded $17,031 to examine ways of introducing the Fast Track Apprenticeship initiative into the
Hospitality industry
Arrix Trainer of the Year 2005
Finalists Lecturers Brian Jenkins and Trevor Mills
Premier’s Teacher of the Year Award 2005
• Finalist Lecturer – Carolyn O'Connor, Visage Training Centre for Hair Fashion and Beauty
• Finalist Lecturer – Ralph Minervini, WA Maritime Training Centre – Fremantle
• Finalist Lecturer – Dr Suzette Thompson, Community & Health Services Training Centre
WA Fitness Trainer of the Year
Margaret Anderson, Challenger TAFE fitness lecturer.

INCOME AND COSTS
In the calendar year 2005, Challenger TAFE achieved 100% of WA Department of Education and Training’s training delivery,
as set out in Addendum 2 to the 2005 Delivery and Performance Agreement. In total 44,687,582 hours of training were
delivered within Australia. In 2005 the Cost of One Hour of training was calculated at $14.60. In December 2005, the
College’s Total Current Assets were $9,525.158 and Total Liabilities were $9,647,757.
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Training was also provided to the Department of Defence and offshore in a number of countries. These activities do not
accrue Student Curriculum Hours which form a measure of the College’s efficiency.
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Statement of Compliance with Public Sector Standards
(Public Sector Management Act 1994 S311)

In the administration of Challenger TAFE, I have complied with the Public Sector Standards in Human Resource
Management, the WA Public Sector Code of Ethics and our Code of Conduct.
I have put in place procedures designed to ensure such compliance and conducted appropriate internal assessments to
satisfy myself that the statement made above is correct. I conduct and commission appropriate checks and audits,
including those associated with endorsement under ISO 9001 and as part of the Australian Quality Training Framework
(AQTF) to assure myself that these procedures have been carried out.

Malcolm H Goff
Managing Director
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22 February 2006
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CHAPTER 1

Challenger TAFE as part of TAFEWA

1.1 LEGISLATIVE FUNCTIONS
The TAFE colleges were established under section 35 of the Vocational Education and Training Act 1996 by the Minister for
Training. The State’s training system, as reflected in the Act, rests upon four key elements:
•
•
•
•

the Training Accreditation Council (TAC);
a network of statutory colleges delivering VET;
coordination of the vocational education and training system by the WA Department of Education and Training; and
coordination of apprenticeship and traineeship arrangements.

The Minister for Education and Training identified key priorities for VET for 2004-2005. These priorities focus on:
• Lifelong learning opportunities for all;
• Addressing factors contributing to social and economic disadvantage in our community;
• Contributing to a society where Indigenous Australians have greater economic and social opportunities and the capacity
to determine their own lives;
• Contributing to a society free from racism which facilitates the empowerment of members of all communities as full
and equal members of the Australian community, enjoying the rights and duties of a shared citizenship;
• Contributing to a society that recognises the varying contribution of its diverse population, and is able to respond
effectively to the needs of its diverse population;
• Providing an environment that encourages education, skills and the development of creativity for competitive
advantage;
• Contributing to Indigenous economic growth by supporting plentiful and diversified employment opportunities for
Indigenous peoples;
• Supporting development of a workforce which reflects the State’s diverse population;
• Building a strong research and development capacity in an environment that encourages innovation;
• Supporting the development of more skilled regional communities;
• Support for enhanced Government decision-making based on a thorough understanding of regional issues;
• Providing or supporting effective training service delivery to regions that is responsive to the needs of diverse communities;
• Supporting development of improved regional training infrastructure;
• Supporting lifelong learning in the regions;
• Providing coordinated, integrated and high quality training and related services to the community;
• Supporting increased use of information communications and technology to provide better services to the community;
• Through agency actions, building greater community confidence in the processes and actions of government agencies
through effective independent oversight and reporting;
• Through agency actions contributing to a reduced incidence of qualifications to the reports issued by the independent
‘watchdog’ agencies;
• Through agency actions contributing to reduced ‘red tape’ and compliance costs.
Key priorities for TAFEWA colleges are:
• To increase the number of apprenticeships and traineeships, in conjunction with appropriate branches of the
Department of Education and Training;
• To increase the number of Indigenous students enrolled in employment related qualifications, ie Certificate III and
above;
• To ensure all new and existing TAFEWA permanent and contract lecturers, as a minimum, hold a Certificate IV in
Training and Assessment, or equivalent;
• To increase management accountability by implementing annual performance management statements for all senior
college staff.
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TAFEWA consists of ten colleges with 50 campuses throughout Western Australia. Challenger TAFE is one of four colleges
in metropolitan Perth.
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Challenger TAFE as part of TAFEWA

1.2 SHAPING OUR FUTURE: AUSTRALIA'S NATIONAL STRATEGY FOR VET 2004-2010
Shaping our Future sets out four objectives and 12 broad strategies for progressing vocational education and training (VET)
in Australia until the end of the decade. The four objectives for 2004–2010 are that:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Industry will have a highly skilled workforce to support strong performance in the global economy.
Employers and individuals will be at the centre of vocational education and training.
Communities and regions will be strengthened economically and socially through learning and employment.
Indigenous Australians will have skills for viable jobs and their learning culture will be shared.

1.3 AUSTRALIAN QUALITY TRAINING FRAMEWORK (AQTF) REQUIREMENTS
Challenger TAFE is a Registered Training Organisation (RTO) and ongoing registration is dependent upon our adherence
to the ten Australian Quality Training Framework (AQTF) standards. The AQTF was developed by the National Training
Quality Council of the Australian National Training Authority Board in conjunction with States and Territories, the
Commonwealth and industry. Ministers for vocational education and training endorsed the AQTF on 8 June 2001. The key
objective of the AQTF is to provide the basis for a nationally consistent, high quality vocational education and training
system.
The AQTF Standards for Registered Training Organisations are:
Systems for quality training and assessment
• The RTO has systems in place to plan for and provide quality training and assessment across all of its operations.
• Compliance with Commonwealth, State/Territory legislation and regulatory requirements
• The RTO ensures that compliance with Commonwealth, State/Territory legislation and regulatory requirements relevant
to its operations is integrated into its policies and procedures and that compliance is maintained.
• Effective financial management procedures
• The RTO has effective financial management procedures in place.
Effective administrative and records management procedures
• The RTO has effective administrative and records management procedures in place.
Recognition of qualifications issued by other RTOs
• The RTO recognises the AQF qualifications and Statements of Attainment issued by any other RTO.
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Access and equity and client service
• The RTO applies access and equity principles and provides timely and appropriate information, advice and support
services, which assist clients to identify and achieve their desired outcomes.

13

The competence of RTO staff
• Each member of the RTO’s staff who is involved in training, assessment or client service is competent for the functions
they perform.
RTO assessments
• The RTO’s assessments meet the requirements of the endorsed components of Training Packages and the outcomes
specified in accredited courses within the scope of its registration.
Learning and assessment strategies
• The RTO identifies, negotiates, plans and implements appropriate learning and assessment strategies to meet the
needs of each of its clients.

CHAPTER 1

Challenger TAFE as part of TAFEWA

Issuing AQF qualifications and Statements of Attainment
• The RTO issues AQF qualifications and Statements of Attainment that meet the requirements of the AQF
Implementation Handbook and the endorsed Training Packages and accredited courses within the scope of its
registration.
Use of national and State/Territory logos
• The RTO complies with the requirements for the use of national and State/Territory logos.
Ethical marketing and advertising
• The RTO’s marketing and advertising of training and assessment products and services is ethical.

1.4 BUREAU VERITAS QUALITE INTERNATIONALE (BVQI) REGISTRATION

C h a l l e n g e r TA F E – A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 0 5

The College has been certified to the ISO 9000 series of International Quality Management Standards since 1992. The
accrediting agency is Bureau Veritas Quality International (BVQI). The Scope of Certification approved by BVQI for
Challenger TAFE covers ‘The design, development and provision of vocational education and training and associated
services’. The College is certified to the highest level of this series of standards; ISO 9001:2000.
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CHAPTER 2

Better Planning: Better Services

The Premier circulated the Western Australian Government's Better Planning: Better Services – Strategic Planning
Framework for the Western Australian Public Sector in December 2003. The aim of the framework, built around five strategic
goals, is to deliver cohesive, holistic and coordinated public services. The College's strategic framework has been crafted to
incorporate these outcomes and the following table is provided to show the alignment with Challenger TAFE’s Strategic
Planning Framework 2005-2010.
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2.1 PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES
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From State Goal 1

Challenger TAFE Strategic Goals

Lifelong learning opportunities for all

Goal 2
Promoting life-long learning
Goal 3
Contributing to the development of sustainable
communities, industries and regions
Goal 5
Providing high quality training products and services
Refer to Chapters 10, 11, and 12

Addressing factors contributing to social and economic
disadvantage in our community

Goal 2
Promoting life-long learning
Goal 3
Contributing to the development of sustainable
communities, industries and regions
Goal 5
Providing high quality training products and services
Refer to Chapters 10, 11, and 12

Contributing to a society where Indigenous Australians
have greater economic and social opportunities and the
capacity to determine their own lives

Goal 3
Contributing to the development of sustainable
communities, industries and regions
Goal 5
Providing high quality training products and services
Goal 6
Developing a culture of excellence in the delivery of
support services to our clients
Refer to Chapters 10, 11, and 12

Contributing to a society free from racism which
facilitates the empowerment of members of all
communities as full and equal members of the
Australian community, enjoying the rights and duties of
a shared citizenship.

Goal 1
Training to deliver a skilled workforce
Goal 3
Contributing to the development of sustainable
communities, industries and regions
Goal 6
Developing a culture of excellence in the delivery of
support services to our clients
Refer to Chapters 11, 13 and 15

Contributing to a society that recognises the range of
contributions from its diverse population, and is able to
respond effectively to the needs of that diverse
population

Goal 2
Promoting life-long learning
Goal 3
Contributing to the development of sustainable
communities, industries and regions
Goal 6
Developing a culture of excellence in the delivery of
support services to our clients
Refer to Chapters 11, 13 and 15

Obligatory reporting

Evaluations and follow-up actions completed
Refer to Chapter 8

CHAPTER 2

Better Planning: Better Services

From State Goal 2

Challenger TAFE Strategic Goals

Providing an environment that encourages the
acquisition of education, skills and the development of
creativity for competitive advantage

Goal 1
Training to deliver a skilled workforce
Goal 4
Developing commercial products to meet state,
national and international demands for training and
related services
Goal 5
Providing high quality training products and services
Refer to Chapters 10, 11, and 12

Contributing to Indigenous economic growth by
supporting plentiful and diversified employment
opportunities for Indigenous peoples

Goal 1
Training to deliver a skilled workforce
Goal 2
Promoting life-long learning
Goal 3
Contributing to the development of sustainable
communities, industries and regions
Refer to Chapters 10, 11, and 12

Supporting development of a workforce which reflects
the State’s diverse population

Goal 1
Training to deliver a skilled workforce
Goal 2
Promoting life-long learning
Goal 3
Contributing to the development of sustainable
communities, industries and regions
Refer to Chapters 10, 11, and 12

Building a strong research and development capacity in
an environment that encourages innovation

Goal 1
Training to deliver a skilled workforce
Goal 2
Promoting life-long learning
Goal 8
Developing the College’s organisational agility to
optimise new opportunities
Refer to Chapters 10 and 12

Obligatory reporting

Performance Indicators reported
Refer to Chapter 8
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2.2 THE ECONOMY
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2.3 THE REGIONS
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From State Goal 4

Challenger TAFE Strategic Goals

Supporting the development of more skilled regional
communities

Goal 2
Promoting life-long learning
Goal 3
Contributing to the development of sustainable
communities, industries and regions
Refer to Chapters 10, 11, and 14

Supporting enhanced Government decision-making
based on a thorough understanding of regional issues

Goal 1
Training to deliver a skilled workforce
Goal 2
Promoting life-long learning
Goal 5
Providing high quality training products and services
Refer to Chapters 10, 11, and 12

Providing or supporting effective training service
delivery to regions that is responsive to the needs of
diverse communities

Goal 1
Training to deliver a skilled workforce
Goal 2
Promoting life-long learning
Goal 5
Providing high quality training products and services
Refer to Chapters 10, 11, and 12

Supporting development of improved regional training
infrastructure

Goal 3
Contributing to the development of sustainable
communities, industries and regions
Goal 6
Developing a culture of excellence in the delivery of
support services to our clients
Refer to Chapters 10, 11, and 12

Supporting lifelong learning in the regions

Goal 2
Promoting life-long learning
Goal 3
Contributing to the development of sustainable
communities, industries and regions
Refer to Chapters 10, 11, and 12

Obligatory reporting

Regional development policy reporting completed
Refer to Chapter 14
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From State Goal 5

Challenger TAFE Strategic Goals

Providing coordinated, integrated, high quality training
and related services to the community

Goal 1
Training to deliver a skilled workforce
Goal 2
Promoting life-long learning
Refer to Chapters 10, 11, and 12

Supporting increased use of information,
communications and technology to provide better
services to the community

Goal 5 Providing high quality training products and
services
Continuing to improve and diversity our training
products and services to facilitate positive learning
outcomes for our client groups.
Goal 6
Developing a culture of excellence in the delivery of
support services to our clients
Refer to Chapters 10, 11 and 12

Through agency actions, building greater community
confidence in the processes and actions of government
agencies through effective independent oversight and
reporting

Goal 6
Developing a culture of excellence in the delivery of
support services to our clients
Refer to Chapters 4, 9 and 10

Through agency actions contributing to a reduced
incidence of qualifications to the reports issued by the
independent ‘watchdog’ agencies.

Goal 6
Developing a culture of excellence in the delivery of
support services to our clients
Refer to Chapters 7 and 14

Through agency actions contributing to reduced ‘red
tape’ and compliance costs

Goal 6
Developing a culture of excellence in the delivery of
support services to our clients
Refer to Chapters 7 and 14

Obligatory reporting

Reporting on Recordkeeping Plans
Refer to Chapter 14
Reporting on compliance with Public Sector Standards
and Ethical Codes
Refer to Chapter 13
Reporting on Public Interest Disclosures
Refer to Chapter 14
Reporting on the Information Statement
Refer to Chapter 14

2.5 FINANCIAL/ECONOMIC REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
•
•
•
•
•
•

Auditor General's Audit Opinion – refer to Chapter 15
Financial Statements – refer to Chapter 15
Certification of Performance Indicators – refer to Chapter 8
Performance Indicators – refer to Chapter 8
Report on Operations – refer to Chapters 7 and 12
Statement of Compliance – refer to Chapter 14
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2.4 GOVERNANCE
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Key Priorities for TAFEWA for 2004 – 2005

The Minister for Education and Training identified key priorities for TAFEWA colleges for the 2004-2005 year, based on state
goals. These priorities are:
•
•
•
•

Increase Apprenticeships and Traineeships in conjunction with appropriate branches of the Department of Education
and Training
Increase number of Indigenous students enrolled in employment related qualifications Certificate III and above from a
base of 206 in 2004 to 331 by 2009.
Ensure all new and existing TAFEWA permanent and contract lecturers, as a minimum, hold a Certificate IV in Training
and Assessment or equivalent.
Management Accountability.

Specific outcomes, defined by the Minister for the College in 2005 are set out below:

3.1 INCREASE APPRENTICESHIPS AND TRAINEESHIPS IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE
FOLLOWING BRANCHES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION AND TRAINING –
APPRENTICESHIPS AND TRAINEESHIPS; INDUSTRY AND COMMUNITY PLANNING;
VET TEACHING AND LEARNING; AND CAREER DEVELOPMENT.
Challenger TAFE’s Interim Targets
Increase apprenticeships and traineeships from a base of 1,817 in the June quarter 2004 to 2 070 by June 2009, with an
emphasis on apprenticeships in traditional trades in the initial years.
2005/06 = 1 844 (1.5% increase on 2004 actual)
2006/07 = 1 896 (2.8% increase on 2005/06 target)
2007/08 = 1 979 (4.4% increase on 2006/07 target)
2008/09 = 2 070 (4.6% increase on 2007/08 target)
Increase ‘Fast Track’ Apprenticeships by 20 students by December 2005.
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3.2 INCREASE THE NUMBER OF INDIGENOUS STUDENTS ENROLLED IN EMPLOYMENTRELATED QUALIFICATIONS IE CERTIFICATE III AND ABOVE, FROM A BASE OF 206
IN 2004 TO 331 BY 2009, WORKING IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION AND TRAINING’S ABORIGINAL SERVICES BRANCH AND VET TEACHING
AND LEARNING BRANCH.
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Challenger TAFE’s Interim Targets
2005/06 = 232
2006/07 = 261
2007/08 = 294
2008/09 = 331

3.3 ENSURE ALL NEW AND EXISTING TAFEWA PERMANENT AND CONTRACT
LECTURERS, AS A MINIMUM, HOLD A CERTIFICATE IV IN TRAINING AND
ASSESSMENT, OR EQUIVALENT, WORKING IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION AND TRAINING’S VET TEACHING AND LEARNING
BRANCH.
Challenger TAFE’s Interim Target
Existing lecturers not holding Certificate IV in Training and Assessment to be up-skilled by December 2006.

3.4 MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTABILITY
Challenger TAFE’s Interim Target
Implement annual performance management statements for all senior college staff by December 2005.
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3.5 ACROSS SECTOR INITIATIVES
3.5.1 Leading, promoting and preparing for Corporate Services reform:
• Within each State Government agency
• At a whole-of-government level.
Challenger TAFE Actions
• Validate the accuracy of the data to be provided by the College to the Shared Services Centre that is being established
to provide a range of corporate services for WA public sector agencies, including Challenger TAFE.
• Reform the College’s corporate services structures, systems and processes and provide staff, where required, to assist
with the reform process.
• Participate in the Shared Services Steering Committee.
3.5.2 Leading, promoting and preparing for procurement reform:
•
•

Within each State Government agency
At a whole-of-government level.

Challenger TAFE Actions
• Reform the College’s buyer behaviours to maximise benefits from reforms to procurement policy, systems and new
contracting arrangements.
• Maximise the utilisation of common use contracting arrangements established by the Department of Treasury and
Finance.
• Meet savings targets set by the Expenditure Review Committee.
3.5.3 Ensuring that the Sustainability Code of Practice for Government Agencies is adopted and
implemented.
Challenger TAFE Actions
• The College has developed and is implementing a Sustainability Action Plan.

3.6 CHALLENGER TAFE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

•
•
•

Increase Apprenticeships and Traineeships from a base of 1,817 in the June quarter 2004 to 2,070 by June 2009, with
an emphasis on apprenticeships in traditional trades in the initial years
Increase ‘Fast Track’ apprenticeships by 20 students by December 2005
Increase the number of Indigenous students enrolled in employment-based qualifications (Cert III and above) from a
base of 206 in 2004 to 331 by 2009
Ensure all new and existing TAFEWA permanent and contract lecturers, as a minimum, hold a Certificate IV in Training
and Assessment, or equivalent, by December 2006.
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•
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The key to WA’s ‘thrival’ will be in addressing the increasing significance of knowledge to our economy and as part of our
social capital. This, in turn, impacts upon our students at Challenger TAFE’ and their need to handle new information
demands; as well as, industry’s and the community’s ability to innovate, develop and apply new technologies..
These challenges and the opportunities that they present have underpinned the development priorities and work of
Challenger TAFE’s Governing Council in 2005. The Council has ensured that the review implementation and monitoring of
the College’s strategic plan has reflected these priorities.

4.1 ALIGNMENT WITH INDUSTRY & COMMUNITY NEEDS
A particular focus of the College is it’s alignment with the needs of industry and the community that is reflected in the
organisational structure of its training delivery and the consultation processes it undertakes. The Governing Council has
worked with the College community in developing these industry relationships as a key feature. It was also instrumental in
the College being recognised in 2005 as National Large Training Provider of the Year, the highest form of Australian
recognition a training organisation can receive.
Alignment with client requirements is developed through the College’s Industry Training Centres. An Advisory Committee
guides each of the thirteen Centres, by providing current local industry and community intelligence and access to local
networks. These committees are chaired by members of Governing Council and other prominent members of the industry
or community interest groups. One recent addition to the suite of Centres has been the Centre for Adult Education, opened
in September 2005, providing a diversity of training activities under the ‘community education’ banner. The focus is lifelong
and life-wide learning. The Centre celebrated its inception by winning the foremost recognition for community learning in
Australia in November 2005, the Australian Adult Education Provider of the Year.

4.2 STRATEGIC RESPONSIVENESS
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The Governing Council has had a strong interest and involvement in the detailed planning for an Automotive Industry
Training Centre to be located within the Kwinana Education and Training Precinct. Some $10m has been allocated to the
project with an emphasis on building young people’s technical skills, in line with industry requirements for computer-based,
rather than mechanical skills. The site for the Automotive Training Centre is centrally located on the corner of Gilmore and
Sulphur Roads in Kwinana, and is currently owned by the Department of Education and Training.
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The Australian Centre for Energy and Process Training (ACEPT) continued to establish itself as the premier Oil & Gas and
Chemicals Industries’ training facility for Western Australia and as an International deliverer of quality training through a
Qatar Petroleum contract in the Middle East. In partnership with Worley Parsons and the Transfield Worley alliance, ACEPT
is also working Australia-wide to develop and deliver a common induction framework that will apply to processing
industries. This project aims to deliver significant cost savings and realise efficiencies in induction training locally and
nationally. ACEPT was finalist in the Premier’s Awards for 2005, bringing welcome recognition for the extensive
development work that has been achieved over the last 24 months.
Innovation and applied research related to the College’s training and support services is strongly supported by the
Governing Council. The College’s Aquaculture Development Unit (ADU) successfully secured a major three-year grant from
the Fisheries Research and Development Corporation to develop ‘New technologies for sustainable commercial finfish
culture’. This project is being conducted in collaboration with CY O'Connor TAFE, Murdoch University and two private
companies. The project will develop the innovative Semi Intensive Flotation Tank System (SIFTS) technology that won an
episode of the New Inventors ABC TV show in May 2005 and made the series finals for Invention of the Year. The ADU was
a another finalist in the Premiers Awards for 2005.
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The Governing Council is also pleased to acknowledge an innovative program that reached its full potential in 2005
developed in response to community needs for support for people with a mental illness. The College’s Community & Health
Services Training Centre, in cooperation with several local health agencies, joined forces to help people with psychological
disabilities to access TAFE courses – and to support them once they were at TAFE. The partners and collaborators shared
a vision of a brighter future for people with a mental illness. The program is designed to bring students with a mental illness
back into the community. Backed by a body of research and collaborative work, the concept represented a first of its kind
program. It has empowered participants and increased their opportunities to establish connections with work and
participate in social networks. Graduates of the first and second courses completed at the end of 2004 and 2005 have new
futures – they are in part-time work or further training – and even more importantly, there has been an improvement in their
overall well-being.

4.3 INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT
During 2005, the WA Maritime Training Centre – Fremantle Development Stage 2 – Fleet Street Precinct construction was
completed and handed over for occupancy in early September 2005. An official opening ceremony was conducted on
15 November 2005 with the WA Minister for Education and Training and the Commonwealth Minister for Education as our
special guests. The final cost for the project was $8.477m of which Challenger TAFE contributed $650,000.
The Governing Council is very pleased with the cooperation and commitment made by the State and Commonwealth
Governments, together with a number of industry partners to the establishment of the Australian Centre for Energy and
Process Training (ACEPT). Land acquisition for the Centre was finalised in November 2005 at a cost of $1.4m in the Marine
Industry Technology Precinct at Henderson. The State Government has committed more than $20m to the project,
including an allocation from Commonwealth sourced capital funds. As a public/private partnership, through the ACEPT
Industry Board, support in establishing the facility has been received from industry. Chevron Australia Pty Ltd has pledged
$125,000. Woodside Energy Ltd is contributing equipment, as well as teaching and learning support through the
secondment to ACEPT of a skilled operator trainer from the company's Karratha gas plant. Apache Energy has donated
various items of equipment and negotiations are continuing with a range of other potential partners. Forward civil works
on the site were anticipated to commence in December 2005, and the Centre is to be fully operational in February 2007.

The Governing Council is pleased with the outcomes achieved with the College’s Delivery and Performance Agreement in
2005. As part of our contractual obligation as a semi-autonomous government instrumentality, in 2005, Challenger TAFE
received a total of $34,628,541 to deliver 3,675,319 Student Curriculum Hours (SCH). The College had been able to negotiate
a small increase in the contracted hours in response to rising demand for traditional trade places. The College achieved
100% delivery of the 2005 Delivery and Performance Agreement. Challenger TAFE also earned $14,758,286 from other
sources, including delivering training and related services within the State and overseas. As part of this activity, 761,162
Student Curriculum Hours (SCH) were delivered as fee-for-service training, not including additional training for the
Ministry for Defence and work undertaken entirely off-shore.

4.5 GOVERNING COUNCIL BUSINESS
Governing Council met on six occasions. The Governing Council’s committee for Finance Performance and Audit met on
five occasions and the Council’s Planning and Development committee met on four occasions. The Governing Council
approved 38 occasions for use of Challenger TAFE’s Corporate Seal on contracts undertaken by the College.

4.6 A STRONG FUTURE
The Governing Council is committed to providing Challenger TAFE with strong support in the forthcoming years, in
responding to the training needs of a buoyant economy and an expanding population in the southern metropolitan corridor
and regional coastal strip.

Paddi Creevey
CHAIR, GOVERNING COUNCIL
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4.4 CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
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2005 has provided a number of notable achievements for Challenger TAFE. A particular highlight was our recognition at the
Training Excellence Awards as the 2005 Large Training Provider of the Year both nationally and at state level.

5.1 CHALLENGER TAFE MINISTER’S OUTCOMES SUMMARY 2005
Priority

Outcome Measures

Increase Apprenticeships and Traineeships from a base
of 1817 in the June quarter 2004 to 2070 by June 2009
with an emphasis on apprenticeships in traditional
trades in the initial years

2005/06
Target 1,844 (1.5% increase on 2004 actual)
Actual 2117 (16.4% increase on 2004 actuals)

Increase Fast Track by 20 students by December 2005

2005/06
Target 33 (an increase of 21 students)
Actual 63 (an increase of 30 students)

Increase number of Indigenous students enrolled in
employment related qualifications Certificate III and
above from a base of 206 in 2004 to 331 by 2009

2005/06
Target 206
Actual 224 (8.7% increase)

Ensure all new and existing TAFEWA permanent and
contract lecturers, as a minimum, hold a Certificate IV
in Training and Assessment or equivalent

2005/06
Target 21 existing lecturers not holding Certificate IV in
Training and Assessment to be up-skilled by December
2006
Actual to be reported 2006

Develop annual performance management statements
for all senior college staff by December 2005

2005/06
Target all Senior staff
Actual all Senior staff
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5.2 TRAINING TO DELIVER A SKILLED WORKFORCE – JUST IN TIME AND JUST THE
RIGHT AMOUNT
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In 2005 Challenger TAFE delivered 3,707,596 Student Curriculum Hours under the 2005 Delivery and Performance
Agreement with the Western Australian Department of Education and Training. This was slightly in excess of the number of
contracted hours and reflected the College’s commitment to address skills shortages in a financially sustainable way. The
initial target was re-negotiated upwards to allow for increased demand for traditional trade places and traineeships and the
College exceeded its targets in these areas of contracted training delivery. This was a welcome increase because the South
West corridor of the metropolitan region and the Peel region (including Mandurah) in particular, are the fastest growing
areas of WA. These regions encompass the heavy industry areas of Kwinana; Defence industries associated with the
Australian Navy’s presence at Garden Island; the fast ferry, shipbuilding and Australian Marine Complex industries located
at Henderson; as well as the light and service industries associated with regional housing and population growth.

5.3 PROMOTING LIFE-LONG LEARNING
The College has focused on the need for delivery of life-long learning to our metropolitan and regional communities. This
is provided in a variety of forms, including adult community education. In 2005 the College has provided for a new focus
and impetus for this form of education with the establishment of the Centre for Adult Education. The Centre was recognised
nationally as Australian Adult Education Provider of the Year. It works with more than 50 community organisations each
year to develop and deliver courses where and when they are required.
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5.4 SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES, INDUSTRIES AND REGIONS
As a large publicly funded training organisation, Challenger TAFE has an important role in progressing WA’s Sustainability
Strategy, both for ourselves as a government agency and in imparting training to promote economic and community
sustainability.
In 2005, the WA Maritime Centre – Fremantle, the Business and IT Skills Centre, the Fremantle Hospitality and Tourism
Training Centre, the WA Horticulture and Environmental Science Skills Centre, the WA Centre for Leadership and
Community Development, the Applied Engineering and Shipbuilding Training Centre, the Australian Centre for Energy and
Process Training, and the Wool Technologies Training Centre have each provided training to Western Australian workers in
regional WA, and many also having been involved in off-shore training delivery.
Training delivery increased once more in the Peel Region, reflecting the population growth and the increase in work
opportunities in the region.

5.5 COMMERCIAL ACTIVITY ADDRESSING STATE, NATIONAL AND INTERNATIONAL
DEMAND
In 2005, the Industry Training Centres committed to the further development of commercial work, achieving a 1.5% increase
in activity over 2004 outcomes. The number of international students at Challenger TAFE increased and international work
in the Middle East was varied and buoyant. Opportunities are being investigated to provide training and support services
in India.

5.6 PROVIDING HIGH QUALITY TRAINING PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
A special project for 2005 was designed to increase the professional skill levels of Challenger TAFE staff. An inaugural
Octoberfest Professional Development Conference was held focusing on the theme of ‘challenges and opportunities’. Over
100 staff attended the first day, convened at The Esplanade Hotel in Fremantle. Simultaneous sessions were offered at the
Beaconsfield, Murdoch and Rockingham campuses on two subsequent days. A dynamic program has already been mapped
for 2006. Staff have been engaging with emerging learning technologies through projects such as LearnScope, and
publications such as the November edition of our Quest periodical. Challenger TAFE was the first college to gain
accreditation to deliver the new Training and Assessment (TAA) Training Package, the professional qualification for training
practitioners and provided training at both the Certificate IV and Diploma levels during 2005.

In 2005, the focus for developing a culture of excellence in the delivery of support services has been in on-line services that
empower and allow the client to manage their access to College services. By providing well integrated, transparent and
easily accessible processes the College is able improve convenience and usefulness to its external and internal clients
Adopting these strategies also has the potential to generate efficiencies in process management.
The College has expanded the development of its on-line student-managed enrolment service; provided an on-line job
placement service; instigated a project to allow for on-line processing of assessments and awards (including the automated
issuing of awards); developed a information portal for overseas students, agents and parents; and expanded the functions
available in the student portal services so that students can readily access information regarding their results, awards,
enrolments and courses.
The College has developed a number of improvements in workplace efficiency including, the installation of scanners to
record incoming correspondence at all major campuses; planning for an increase in bandwidth capacity across the
computer system; a review of the college’s recruitment, selection and appointment processes; and documentation and
installation of new software for the Network Operating System;
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5.7 A CULTURE OF EXCELLENCE IN THE DELIVERY OF SUPPORT SERVICES TO OUR
CLIENTS
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5.8 HIGHLY SKILLED AND MOTIVATED WORKFORCE
In 2005, the commitment and professionalism of our training staff were recognised through the Premier’s Teachers Awards:
lecturers Ms Carolyn O’Connor, Mr Ralph Minervini and Dr Suzette Thompson were award finalists, while lecturer
Ms Margaret Anderson was recognised by her industry as WA Fitness Trainer of the Year.

5.9 ORGANISATIONAL AGILITY TO OPTIMISE NEW OPPORTUNITIES
Challenger TAFE has demonstrated its organisational agility in delivering more than 300 accredited courses, including
delivery of VET for Schools in nearly 50 local government and private high schools. Changes to legislation for the 2006
school year will present a new set of contexts and opportunities for sixteen year olds, as they decide whether to take a return
to school pathway or seek some combination of education, training and employment.
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Malcolm H Goff
MANAGING DIRECTOR
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6.1 CHALLENGER TAFE’S VISION, MISSION AND VALUES
Vision
To be: a high performance, visionary training organisation.
Mission
As a member of TAFEWA, Challenger TAFE researches, develops and delivers quality vocational education and training
services and products which support the sustainable development of individuals, industry, and our communities.
Values
The College community is building a culture that reflects the following guiding principles on how they will behave towards
clients, customers and with each other. Fostering a shared culture across a large organisation is an on-going task with good
practice starting from the top.
The College community values and fosters:
Excellence – achieving high quality outcomes in the development of programs and provision of services
Innovation – developing new and improved ways of doing business and meeting client and customer needs
Integrity – applying honest and ethical practice in all transactions
Empowerment – supporting informed decisions at every level within policy and resource parameters
Accountability – accepting responsibility at each level for achieving agreed outcomes
Collaboration – building positive working relationships with each other and with the community, government, industry and
other education and training agencies.

6.2 DESIRED OUTCOMES FOR 2005
To provide timely, efficient and effective vocational education and training and employment services to meet community,
business and employment needs.

6.3 STRATEGIC GOALS
Goal 1 – Training to provide for a skilled workforce
Key Result Area: Provision of a broad range of training opportunities for labour market entrants and existing workers
seeking further skills.

College Strategies
• Reviewing the scope of training to ensure its continued relevance
• Developing expertise to ensure that there is alignment with existing, emerging and niche areas of need
• Increasing responsiveness in ways that best meet the differing needs of client groups, especially in an environment of
skill shortages
• Strengthening relationships with enterprises, industry and other education and training providers
• Broadening the focus of training delivery from narrow competencies to include training in generic work skills and
developing students’ positive attributes relating to learning and work
• Providing opportunities for students to form, or work in and with, expert teams
• Communicating the benefits of the College’s training and services to learners and stakeholders.
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Challenger TAFE’s primary focus is on training people for the workforce. The State and federal governments provide funding
to deliver this outcome. The College therefore contributes to the growth and strengthening of a skilled Western Australian
workforce through the provision of industry-aligned vocational education and training products and services that lead to
employment outcomes and are responsive to industry’s demand for skills.
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Goal 2 – Promoting life-long learning
Key Result Area: Provision of training for individuals to meet changing personal circumstances and career objectives.
Lifelong learning assists people to respond positively to new skill demands for and in the workplace and to support their
effectiveness in community, family and personal life. The College encourages commitment to lifelong learning principles by
offering timely, high quality vocational education and training services and products, designed to address these needs, and
delivered to the labour market and community in conducive, accessible and timely ways.
College Strategies
• Developing and strengthening partnerships to ensure seamless learning pathways across education and training
sectors and transitions to and from employment
• Making learning solutions relevant for identified groups and to particular work environments
• Fostering positive attitudes to lifelong learning and assisting people to respond to new skill demands in the workplace,
community and family life
• Equipping people to achieve balance in work, community and family life
• Improving the image of TAFE studies by recognising and promoting the achievements of the College’s students
• Identifying fast track solutions that do not compromise the quality of skill and knowledge outcomes
• Recognising that information literacy and knowledge building are fundamental to lifelong learning
• Providing support structures that assist students to develop their career aspirations.
Goal 3 – Contributing to the development of sustainable communities, industries and regions
Key Result Area: Sustainable outcomes for WA through college collaboration with community, industry and regional
organisations in providing training and services.
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Strong communities, industries and regions underpin the economic, social and environmental sustainability of WA..
Challenger TAFE will contribute by providing vocational education and training services and products that promote
diversity, leadership, knowledge building, community awareness and participation and environmental responsibility, to
achieve shared and agreed outcomes.
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College Strategies
• Implementing the College’s Sustainability Action Plan 2005-2007
• Encouraging energy efficient practices in all aspects of training delivery and in the provision of support services
• Delivering learning outcomes that help build sustainable communities, industries and regions
• Supporting community and enterprise environmental efforts to build capacity and capabilities by responding to their
learning & training needs
• Integrating training outcomes into community, industry and environmental project activities
• Integrating training for sustainability into the programs that the College offers for regional and community
organisations and industry
• Expanding relationships and partnerships with individual enterprises, and industry and community groups.
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Goal 4 – Developing commercial products to meet state, national and international demands for training
and related services
Key Result Area: Generation of revenue from commercial training and related services.
Challenger TAFE will develop commercial local, national and international markets as part of its contribution to the State
economy. Extension of these markets will be achieved through the development and delivery of innovative, customised
training services and products and by the conduct of applied research and development of new technologies partnering with
industry, enterprises and other training and education providers. The principles of sustainability will be applied in the
development of these commercial markets.
College Strategies
• Generating local and international training and service activities that contribute to social, economic and
environmental outcomes for the State
• Increasing externally funded research and development activities aligned with State priorities
• Better aligning training programs and services with emergent industry and community opportunities
• Increasing the export of education and training products and services through provision of training to international
students
• Improving community, industry and individual access to College resources and expertise through fee-for-service
training, research and development, and other services
• Adopting a stronger commercial focus for generating income
• Increasing the level of commercial responsiveness when opportunities are identified.
Goal 5 – Providing high quality training products and services
Key Result Area: Industry, community and individual clients recognise the quality of the College’s training delivery,related
products and services.

College Strategies
• Continuing to improve and diversify training products and services to facilitate positive learning outcomes for client groups
• Maintaining a culture of continuous improvement and innovation in teaching and in the learning environment
• Increasing the capacity for academic leadership at all levels of the College
• Implementing collaborative projects to enable staff and students to work with other agencies on building new skills,
knowledge and industry solutions
• Implementing a collaborative approach to teaching to build staff skills, knowledge and professional support.
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Challenger TAFE’s reputation as a preferred supplier of vocational education and training services and products is
underpinned by the quality and appropriateness of the learning solutions that are provided. A strong focus will be
maintained on continuous improvement so that clients receive high standard training and related services. Ultimately, the
College wants clients to act as its advocates in the community and industry.
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Goal 6 – Developing a culture of excellence in the delivery of support services to the College’s clients
Key Result Area: Excellence in teaching and learning is underpinned by excellence in business and client services.
Challenger TAFE staff will work hard to optimise the quality and delivery of services that support the College’s vocational
education and training. This will be achieved through effective and efficient management of human, financial and physical
resources supported by the provision of a range of client-focused support services.
College Strategies
• Achieving a culture of supporting internal clients, with timely and value- added services
• Continuously improving administrative processes to enable delivery areas to focus on servicing clients
• Optimising and delivering support services to respond appropriately to a wide range of student needs, such as those
for international student and students with special needs
• Implementing strategies to improve student retention and increasing the number of students returning to study,
including responding to feedback from existing students
• Supporting training delivery using innovative information and communication technologies and strategies.
Goal 7 – Developing a highly skilled and motivated workforce
Key Result Area: Staff have the skills and motivation to deliver a high quality service.
Challenger TAFE achieves quality results by having a highly skilled and motivated workforce. The College will build its organisation by
developing and supporting staff in their professional duties, skill building, and by recognising their achievements.
College Strategies
• Improving the College’s workplace culture to better reflect the workplace practices that are valued and fostered
• Implementing the Workforce Development Plan
• Devising means for staff to refresh their skills through return-to-industry and other professional development
arrangements
• Continuing to allocate funding dedicated to further building staff skills
• Assisting staff to develop a balance in work, community and family life
• Continuing to improve the ways that the College recognises the contribution of staff and celebration of their achievements.
Goal 8 – Developing the organisational agility to optimise new opportunities
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Key Result Area: The work environment fosters innovation, responsiveness and timeliness in service delivery.
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Staff at Challenger TAFE will perform at their best when they work in a professionally supportive environment that is conducive to
innovation and good work practices. The College is committed to providing a safe work environment where staff have the necessary
tools and equipment to provide timely services. Challenger TAFE will be risk aware but not risk averse.
College Strategies
• Continuing to enhance occupational safety and health programs
• Providing the necessary tools and equipment for efficient work practices
• Enhancing the College’s technology solutions
• Developing the organisational agility to respond quickly and effectively to market demand
• Undertaking security risk assessments for international opportunities
• Promoting a culture of being risk aware but not risk averse
• Encouraging and supporting innovative solutions.

6.4 ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Challenger TAFE’s planning is activated throughout the organisation with a Directorate Business Plan, Division Business
Plans and Unit Operational Plans. Individual Performance and Development Plans are negotiated so that personal and
professional development activities are aligned with College outcomes.
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Table 6.1 Goal Achievement Framework
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7.1. COMMITTEES AND CONSULTATION
Challenger TAFE has a comprehensive internal and external consultation system comprising two committees attached to
Governing Council and a number of Industry Boards with an industry leader as chair.
Governing Council Committees
Two committees deal with issues of strategic planning and governance. In 2005 Governing Council members were invited
to join one of these committees.
The Planning and Development Committee was chaired by Governing Council member Ms Helen Cattalini OAM and its role
has been to oversee the strategic directions of the College. The Planning and Development Committee met four times. It
oversaw the development and production of the Challenger TAFE Strategic Planning Framework 2006-2011 and conducted
a planning session in September involving more than 80 staff.
The Finance Performance and Audit Committee was convened five times during the year and its role was to monitor overall
College performance on a bi-monthly basis. The Committee was chaired by Mr Kim Bailey, Deputy Chair of the Governing
Council. In 2005 the Committee was able to report a reduction in the cost per Student Curriculum Hour of $0.59 on the
projected cost set out in January 2005 in the Section 42 Forward Estimates. This substantial increase in efficiency was
created by the delivery of 104.85% of agreed training delivery for a very modest increase in costs. The buoyant labour market
assisted the College with this achievement.
Industry Advisory Committees
Each Industry Training Centre has an Industry Advisory Committee to provide current informed views from local industry
members on training needs and training contexts. These groups meet as required and are proving invaluable in providing
first-hand evidence on local training needs and opportunities.
Occupational Health and Safety
A regular meeting schedule for the Challenger TAFE Occupational Health and Safety Committee forms part of the College
OHS Business Plan. The Committee has overseen the Business Plan implementation.
Each campus has an OHS working group at the local level. The dynamism and vigilance of the Committee has played an
important part in reducing the level of Workers Compensation claims and the Riskcover insurance premiums at Challenger
TAFE .This was recognised with the College being awarded a silver medal for good practice in OHS in early 2005.
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Workforce Planning
Following on from the 2004 development of the Workforce Management Strategy, two projects were selected in 2005 to
progress the goals of the Strategy.
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A grant of $25,000 was obtained from the Reframing the Future Program and this was used in to support change
management initiatives for administrative and lecturing staff in the Training, Research & Development units.
A team of consultant post-graduate students from Murdoch University completed a project on succession planning under
the auspices of the Workforce Management Unit. The findings and recommendations from that project will be used as the
basis to pilot for specific positions, a succession planning strategy during 2006.

7.2 DELIVERY PROFILE
Challenger TAFE delivered a total of 4,468,758 Student Curriculum Hours of training of which 3,707,596 were delivered
within the 2005 Delivery and Performance Agreement with the WA Department of Education and Training.
A comparison of 2005 Targets with 2005 Outcomes is contained in Table 7.1.
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Table 7.1 Target to Actual Achieved 2005 Delivery by SCH (data trawl 17 Feb 2006)
WADTGroup Description by Category

Profile Targets

SCH Achieved

95,316

110,003

40,440

34,690

01A

Recreation Sports and Entertainment

01B

Visual and Performing Arts

01C

Design

02A

Automotive

03A

Building and Construction

03B

Surveying and Building

04A
04B
04C
05A
06A

Food Trades and Processing

7,720

5,460

07A

Clothing Footwear and Soft Furnishings

39,171

33,799

09A

Engineering and Drafting

110,966

113,751

09B

Metal and Mining

242,787

232,418

10A

Animal Care

10B

Forestry, Farming and Landcare

10C

Fishing

10D

Horticulture

11A

Process Manufacturing

12A

Personal Service

0
85,674

69,667

205,975

195,636

14,875

19,790

Community Service Workers

225,511

234,490

Education and Childcare

101,922

108,432

Health

34,880

46,741

Finance Insurance Property Service Workers

19,000

18,723

19,945

15,189

163,170

171,768

70,032

65,194

295,203

319,198

38,380

31,958

127,449

147,997

12B

Retail

47,603

48,348

13A

Cooking

69,982

66,861

13B

Hospitality

103,772

92,097

13C

Tourism

57,780

56,626

14A

Transport Trades, Storage and Associated

173,752

184,217

15A

Electrical and Electronic Engineering

74,001

76,266

15B

Electrical Trades

110,752

109,571

16A

Accounting and Other Business Services

132,561

136,612

16B

Management

177,698

178,032

16C

Office and Clerical

117,890

119,254

17A

Computing

296,922

288,345

18A

Science and Technical Workers

124,000

122,520

19B

Adult Literacy/ESL

114,000

112,472

19D

Miscellaneous

5,160

5,000

19E

Targeted Access and Participation Courses

TOTAL SCH

131,030

136,471

3,675,319

3,707,596

C h a l l e n g e r TA F E – A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 0 5

WADTGroup

32

CHAPTER 7

Overview of Operations

Table 7.2 All delivery 2005 by funding source category (data trawl 17 Feb 2006)

Fund

SCH

Delivery & Performance Agreement 2005 Addendum 2

3,707,596

State tendered training

65,066

Commonwealth special funded activities

13,038

Overseas students

207,445

Adult Community Education

60,044

Fee for Service

415,569

Total

4,468,758

Overall, the College delivered 4.85% above target.

7.3 BLENDED DELIVERY
In 2005, most training featured a range of delivery modes to suit the students, the subject matter and/or industry involved.
Teaching, learning and assessment strategies covered in learning programs included, but were not limited to:
• teacher-centred classroom delivery
• tests, presentations, and other classroom based assessments
• educational support/remediation
• self-paced delivery and associated assessment
• on-line delivery and assessment
• live work programs and associated assessments
• tutorial sessions for learning support
• on-line and telephone supported coaching
• work placement
• on-the-job training
• workplace assessment
• assessment for skills recognition
• clustering of competencies as required
• combinations of the above.
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In 2006 particular attention will be placed on extending the models for delivering training in the workplace.
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CERTIFICATION OF KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
We hereby certify that the performance indicators are based on prop0er records, which are relevant and appropriate for
assisting users to assess the performance of Challenger TAFE and fairly represent the performance of the College for the
financial year ended 31 December, 2005.

Patricia M. Creevey
Chair, Governing Council

Malcolm H. Goff
Managing Director
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27 February 2006
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OUTCOME, OUTPUTS AND PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
Outcome: The provision of effective and efficient vocational education and training services to meet community and
industry training needs.
Output: Development and delivery of quality vocational education and training services and products which contribute to
the social and employment-related skills of Challenger TAFE’s clients and promote industrial, community and regional
growth and development.
Output Measures – reported in accordance with Treasurer's Instruction 904.
2005 Targets

2005 Actuals

Change

Explanatory Notes

1. QUANTITY
1.1 Total Student Curriculum Hours 3,675,319+
(SCH) delivered (profile
800,000
+non-profile)
= 4,475,319

3,707,596
761,162
4,468,758

6,651

1.2 Profiled Delivery Target
Achievement

100.88%

88%

Profile includes employment-based and institutionbased delivery. Employment-based training delivery
improved, exceeding this year’s target of 1,844
students by 298.

2004 Outcomes 2005 Actuals

Change

Explanatory Notes

2.1 Student Satisfaction –
Apprentices & Trainees

81.8%

84

3.2%

There was a 3.2% increase in satisfaction levels of
Challenger TAFE’s apprentices and trainees, as measured
by the 2005 Colmar Brunton State survey.

2.2 Student Satisfaction –
Other Students

82.1%

85

+2.9%

There was a 2.9% increase in satisfaction levels of
Challenger TAFE’s students, other than apprentices
and trainees, undertaking accredited training, as
measured by the 2005 Colmar Brunton State survey.

2.3 Graduates Achieved Main
Reason for Study

79.7%

81.00%

+2.3%

The comparative measure was derived from a 2003
national survey of 2002 graduates as data was
unavailable in 2004 for the 2003 cohort.

2.4 Graduate Labour Market Status:
students employed

72.2%

76.00%*

+3.8%

The comparative measure was derived from a 2003
national survey of 2002 graduates as data was
unavailable in 2004 for the 2003 cohort. 2004
outcomes were unavailable. In the 2005 survey of
2004 graduates 3.8% more graduates who were no
longer enrolled in a VET course reported they were
employed. This measures differs slightly from the last
measure taken in 2003 when 72.2% of all graduates
reported being in employment.

2.5 Module Load Completion Rate
(MLCR) – successful training
completions

74%

75.58%

1.58%

The target has remained the same since 2002. The
outcome was above target and above 2004 outcomes.

December

January

1 month

Agreement for 2005 signed January ‘05.

2005 Targets

2005 Actuals

Change

Explanatory Notes

$15.25

$14.60

-$0.65

The target was set in Sections 42 preview Jan ‘05. The
decreased cost per SCH was accounted for by the 104%
delivery at only slightly increased costs.

100%

Increases in profile targets and delivery (DPA Second
Addendum) provided additional funded hours

3. TIMELINESS
3.1 Completion of Delivery and
Performance Agreement

4. COST
4.1 Cost per SCH

The method of calculating students in employment was altered in 2005 to exclude students who were enrolled in TAFE at the
time the survey was taken (May 2005). In previous years this group had been included in the total.
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2. QUALITY
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
CHALLENGER TAFE’S VISION AND MISSION
The College’s vision is to be a high performance, visionary organisation. As a member of TAFEWA, our mission is to
research, develop and deliver quality vocational education and training services and products which support the sustainable
development of individuals, industry and our communities.
CHALLENGER TAFE’S KEY DIRECTIONS FOR 2005
To improve skill development and employment outcomes by:
Goal 1 – Training to deliver a skilled workforce
Goal 2 – Promoting life-long learning
Goal 3 – Contributing to the development of sustainable communities, industries and regions
Goal 4 – Developing commercial products to meet state, national and international demands for training and related services
Goal 5 – Providing high quality training products and services
Goal 6 – Developing a culture of excellence in the delivery of support services to our clients
Goal 7 – Developing a highly skilled and motivated workforce
Goal 8 – Developing the organisational agility to optimise new opportunities
DESIRED OUTCOMES FOR 2005
A key desired outcome for 2005 was the provision of effective and efficient vocational education and training services to
meet community and industry training needs.
The following effectiveness and efficiency indicators have been developed to assist in the College’s monitoring and
management processes and to enhance its accountability to its stakeholders. They are subject to audit under the provisions
of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985.
KEY INDICATORS OF PERFORMANCE EFFICIENCY
The efficiency and effectiveness of Challenger TAFE’s efforts to meet its community and industry training needs have been
measured using four Key Performance Indicators. The measure of efficiency that College has applied is: Total delivery cost
per SCH
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR EFFICIENCY BASED ON TOTAL DELIVERY COST PER SCH
Every student at Challenger TAFE enrols in one or more modules. Each module is linked to a relevant course and has a
nominal number of curriculum hours. Students’ enrolments in these modules generate Student Curriculum Hours (SCH).
For each year, a cost per SCH target has been established based on the previous year’s results. The total operating costs
include Capital User Charge and the costs have not been indexed against annual Cost of Living measures.
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The level of expenditure required to produce an output or product unit is a standard measure of efficiency. The major unit
of product output for the Challenger TAFE is the Student Curriculum Hour and the cost per SCH provides an indicator of
efficiency.
This year, there was an increase in delivery of employment-based training with the College exceeding its agreed targets.
Delivery costs for this category are significantly higher per SCH than for other State contracted delivery. A second factor
impacting on the cost per SCH in 2005 was the salary increases for both lecturers and non-lecturing staff and the costs
associated with the development of additional delivery site facilities. This has led to an increase in the Capital User Charges
(which are included in the Cost per SCH calculation).
COST PER SCH OF CHALLENGER TAFE TRAINING DELIVERY
The output of Challenger TAFE’s training services and products are quantified through the standard measure of Student
Curriculum Hours (SCH). A measure of the College’s efficiency is the cost per SCH.
Source The Financial Data applied in the measure is from the 2005 Financial Statements included in this report. The total
of the Student Curriculum Hours of training delivered is as reported in Table 6.4 from the 2005 census provided to the
Western Australian Department of Education and Training in February 2006.
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Methodology: The average cost per Student Curriculum Hour is derived from the amount identified as Cost of Services
divided by the total Student Curriculum Hours delivered. The Cost per SCH inclusive of the Capital User Charge of $14.60
is shown in Table 8.1. This was $0.65 lower than the cost submitted in the January 2005 Cost Estimates.
Explanation: The average cost of $14.60 per SCH in 2005 shows a slight increase in cost over last year’s outcome of $14.17
ie $0.43 per SCH from last year however it represents a substantially reduced cost from the target recorded in the Section
42 Forward Estimates of January 2005 ($15.25). Factors that influence the cost per SCH rise from 2004 but may not directly
contribute to SCH production include:
•

•

•

the depreciation and amortisation of the College’s capital. Challenger TAFE has 17 sites across an extensive geographic
region and the cost of these multiple facilities increases the influence of its capital elements on its operating costs.
Depreciation is included in the cost of services and therefore influences the cost per SCH
consultancy services, especially those related to the development of overseas training programs. These have no
Australian “on-shore” delivery, are externally funded and incur costs reflected in the cost per SCH but do not contribute
to the production of SCH
the contracted training provided to the Australian Submarine Corporation by Challenger TAFE. This affects the revenue
and expenditure of the College but, due to security arrangements, the Navy staff undertaking the submarine training
program are not enrolled on Challenger TAFE's systems. The program is taught by Challenger TAFE staff and the
associated costs are reflected in the cost of services but the enrolments are not included in the Student Curriculum
Hours recorded on the CMIS.

Table 8.1 Cost per SCH (Capital User Charge Included
Year

SCH

Cost per SCH

2001

4,041,259

$12.09

2002

4,180,540

$12.71

2003

4,114,949

$13.53

2004

4,286,082

$14.17

2005

4,468,758

$14.60*

Figure 8.2 Cost per SCH (including Capital User Charge)
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* Explanatory Note: While the Cost per SCH rose in 2005 in relation to 2004, it was -$0.65 lower than the target set in the
January 2005 Section 42 Forward Estimates. The decreased cost per SCH was accounted for by the 100.88% delivery at only
slightly increased costs.
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KEY INDICATORS OF PERFORMANCE EFFECTIVENESS
Challenger TAFE provides four KPI measures of effectiveness, including data based upon NCVER Graduate Satisfaction and
Graduate Employment Outcomes from 2003. This material was available for 2005 but not made available in 2004; therefore
internal measures of effectiveness have been included below to supplement the four key measures provided.
Achievement of College Profile (%) using 2005 enrolment data confirmed at 17 February 2006 from Challenger TAFE’s
College’s Management Information System (CMIS) enrolment data.
Student Satisfaction (%) using data from the WA government contracted annual 2005 Student Satisfaction Survey
conducted by contractor Colmar Brunton Intelligence.
Note: In previous years the College has been able to report on Graduate Satisfaction (%) using data from the Student
Outcomes Survey that is conducted Australia-wide and contracted to NCVER. This arrangement was discontinued in 2004
(for 2003 Graduates) and resumed on a bi-annual basis from 2005.
Similarly, the Graduate Employment (%) using data from the Student Outcomes Surveys conducted Australia wide and
contracted to NCVER to complete were not available in 2004 (for 2003 Graduates) but resumed on a biennial basis from 2005.
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR EFFECTIVENESS BASED ON DATA FROM THE COLLEGE’S MANAGEMENT
INFORMATION SYSTEMS (CMIS) ON ACHIEVEMENT OF COLLEGE PROFILE TARGETS
Every student at Challenger TAFE enrols in one or more modules. Each module is linked to a relevant course and has a
nominal number of curriculum hours. Students’ enrolments in these modules generate Student Curriculum Hours (SCH).
Module enrolments and therefore the SCH are coded in the system according to funding source, delivery location, method
of study, occupational category to which the course has been assigned (WADT Group) and a variety of other categories.
Data are aggregated according to the number of students enrolled in each module in any designated category.
Aggregated data using the standard SCH measure have been applied in Table 8.2, Figure 8.3 and Table 8.4. The data for this
Key Performance Indicator is also generated from CMIS. The measures have been generated from the 2005 CMIS Census
provided by Challenger TAFE in February 2006 to the Western Australian Department of Education and Training and was
extracted according to the Business Rules of the Australian Vocational Education and Training Management Information
Statistical Standards (AVETMISS).

C h a l l e n g e r TA F E – A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 0 5

ACHIEVEMENT OF COLLEGE PROFILE TARGET
Profiled delivery is training which the Western Australian Department of Education and Training purchases from Challenger
TAFE under the terms of the Delivery and Performance Agreement. The training programs are specified by occupational
category and course level in Student Curriculum Hour targets. The extent to which the College meets its profile targets is a
measure of its effectiveness in contributing to the State Training Strategy by meeting industrial and community training needs.
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Table 8.3 Targeted Profile Achievement
Year

SCH Profile Target

SCH Actual Delivery

% Achievement

2001

3,337,629

3,325,941

99.65%

2002

3,411,761

3,419,298

100.22%

2003

3,545,000

3,544,878

100.00%

2004

3,551,062

3,612,644

101.73%

2005

3,675,319

3,707,596

100.88%
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Figure 8.4 Targeted Profile Achievement

Source: Challenger TAFE 2005 Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA) and Second Addendum and the College CMIS
Census summary

Derivation: The percentage achieved in each WADT Group and overall was calculated by dividing the achieved delivery by
the SCH targets specified in the addenda to the 2005 Delivery and Performance Agreement.
Explanation: Delivery achieved in 2005 was 94,952 SCH more than that achieved in 2004.
Delivery achieved on or above target in WADT groups 1A, 3A, 3B, 4B, 4C, 5A, 9A, 10A, 10B, 10D, 12A, 12B, 14A 15A, 16A, 19E
was a feature in 2005. Both enterprise-based and Institutional delivery met the revised targets.
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Methodology: The profiled delivery targets for 2005 were initially included in the College’s Delivery and Performance
Agreement with the Western Australian Department of Education and Training and were finalised in a Second Addendum.
The targets are detailed in the purchasing matrix cross-matched by WADT Group and WADT Level (see glossary for
description of WADT Group etc.)
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Table 8.5 Matrix Target to Actual Achieved Delivery of SCH
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WADT
Group

WADT
Group Description

01A
01B
01C
02A
03A
03B
04A
04B
04C
05A
06A
07A
09A
09B
10A
10B
10C
10D
11A
12A
12B
13A
13B
13C
14A
15A
15B
16A
16B
16C
17A
18A
19B
19D
19E
TOTAL SCH

Recreation Sports and Entertainment
Visual and Performing Arts
Design
Automotive
Building and Construction
Surveying and Building
Community Service Workers
Education and Childcare
Health
Finance Insurance Property Service Workers
Food Trades and Processing
Clothing Footwear and Soft Furnishings
Engineering and Drafting
Metal and Mining
Animal Care
Forestry, Farming and Landcare
Fishing
Horticulture
Process Manufacturing
Personal Service
Retail
Cooking
Hospitality
Tourism
Transport Trades, Storage and Associated
Electrical and Electronic Engineering
Electrical Trades
Accounting and Other Business Services
Management
Office and Clerical
Computing
Science and Technical Workers
Adult Literacy/ESL
Miscellaneous
Targeted Access and Participation Courses

Profile Targets

Profile SCH

95,316
40,440
0
85,674
205,975
14,875
225,511
101,922
34,880
19,000
7,720
39,171
110,966
242,787
19,945
163,170
70,032
295,203
38,380
127,449
47,603
69,982
103,772
57,780
173,752
74,001
110,752
132,561
177,698
117,890
296,922
124,000
114,000
5,160
131,030
3,675,319

110,003
34,690
69,667
195,636
19,790
234,490
108,432
46,741
18,723
5,460
33,799
113,751
232,418
15,189
171,768
65,194
319,198
31,958
147,997
48,348
66,861
92,137
56,626
184,217
76,266
109,571
136,612
178,032
119,254
288,345
122,520
112,472
5,000
136,471
3,707,596
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR EFFECTIVENESS STUDENT SATISFACTION SURVEY – DATA BASED ON THE STATE
SURVEY OF ENROLLED STUDENTS
A survey managed by the Western Australian Department of Education and Training during the 2005 academic year
measured student satisfaction at College and State levels and provides an indicator of the effectiveness of Challenger
TAFE’s training services and products. The survey asked students about their degree of satisfaction with the quality and
relevance of their courses and the teaching, student support, learning resources and facilities provided.
Table 8.6 College and State Student Satisfaction Percentages 2001 –2005 (all students)
2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

College

85.40%

83.50%

82.90%

82.20%

84.00%*

State

87.30%

83.00%

85.40%

84.70%

85.00%

Explanatory Note: The 2004-2005 Challenger TAFE Managing Director’s Performance Agreement contained a target for
increasing the College’s Student Satisfaction level by 1% in 2005. This target was exceeded with an increase on the 2004
outcome of 1.8%.
Please also see the internal measures of Student Satisfaction contained in Figure 8.17.
In addition, Table 8.8: Graduates Achievement of Main Reason for Study 2001-2005 Challenger TAFE results indicates a
lower than State average outcome for Challenger TAFE. This is likely to be a factor influencing outcomes here in Table 8.6.
The outcomes for older students seeking re-employment or a change in career direction historically are lower than for any
other age cohort and may account for Challenger TAFE’s lower than State average result.

Source: 2005 Student Satisfaction Survey: (The Western Australian Department of Education and Training contracted
Colmar Brunton Intelligence to conduct the surveys at all Western Australian TAFE Colleges).
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Figure 8.7 College and State Student Satisfaction Percentages 2001 – 2005 (all students)
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Methodology: The 2005 Student Satisfaction Survey was conducted as a two-stage mail out augmented with an on-line facility
and Computer Assisted Telephone Interviewing in areas exhibiting low response rates. A prize of up to $2000 prize was used
as an incentive to encourage a higher level of response. As in prior years, the results were weighted to overcome sampling
error and were based on the satisfaction levels of students who were enrolled in publicly funded courses at either a TAFE
College or a publicly funded private training institution in semester one or semester two of 2005. Two surveys instruments
were used, one focused on the needs of enterprise-based students and the other on those of institution based students.
Derivation: The performance indicator was calculated using the collective responses to a question that was in common to
both survey instruments and which asked students about their level of satisfaction with their course at the TAFE College or
private institution in which they had been or were enrolled in 2005.
Explanation: The satisfaction rating for Challenger TAFE was at the 84% level, performing slightly below an overall State
performance average of 85%. The change from 2004 was very positive however Challenger TAFE satisfaction levels continue
to be lower than State measures.
Statistical Details: Of the potential population of 7154 institution-based students, 5703 individual students were contacted.
The sample number achieved was 1169 being a 20% response rate. Of a potential sample of 1578 enterprise-based students,
1031 students were contact and 160 responded, representing a 16% response rate. The sampling error for the survey of
Challenger TAFE students was +/-1.98% at the 95% confidence level.
OVERALL STUDENT SATISFACTION WITH COURSE (DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION SCIENCE AND
TRAINING SCOPE ONLY)
Once again in 2005, a student satisfaction measure based on graduate outcomes was made available from the Department
of Education Science and Training. This will be a biennial measure, due again in 2007.
Collated results from the study evaluation process continue to show high levels of satisfaction of students. The following
graphs are representation of the process and outcomes.
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR EFFECTIVENESS GRADUATE SATISFACTION
All the graduates surveyed had completed their course with a VET provider and had an Australian address as their usual
address In 2005, the survey collected key information on the employment status of graduates, further study destinations
and satisfaction with their training program of graduates in each Australian State and territory, who successfully completed
a vocational education and training (VET) award during 2004. Hobby, recreational and short courses were excluded from
the survey.

43

The same questionnaire was sent to graduates and module completers in a stratified randomly selected sample. In previous
years in Western Australia, the survey was based on a census. Because the survey was undertaken as a sample rather than
a census, responses have been weighted to the total population of graduates. One of the effects of weighting data is that
proportions are based on the population rather than on the actual number of responses. For instance, the survey shows
that 50% of VET graduates at the national level were female. In contrast, the actual proportion of female VET graduates who
responded was 59%, which shows that females were more likely than males to respond to the survey.
The survey was conducted by I-view on behalf of the National Centre for Vocational Education Research (NCVER). . All the
graduates surveyed had completed their course with a VET provider and had an Australian address as their usual address
Graduate Satisfaction
In data collection in previous years, achieved or partly achieved their main purpose in studying have been reported together
using actual number of responses. In 2005, once again, achieved or partly achieved their main purpose in studying have
been reported together. Rather than based on actual numbers of responses, the percentages have been weighted to reflect
the total population. Trend data has been expressed in percentages only however the source data differs from that available
in previous years.
The percentage of Challenger respondents who indicated that they achieved or partly achieved their main purpose in
studying increased by 2.3% on the previous measure taken in 2003. This is one indicator of the students’ degree of
satisfaction with their training program and its relevance. In 2005, 81% of Challenger TAFE’s graduates (compared with
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84% of Western Australian TAFE graduates and 86% of Australian TAFE graduates) achieved or partly achieved their main
reason for studying.
72% of the student weighted population indicated their main reason for studying was employment-related, a decrease of
1.17% on the previous measure completed in 2003 on the 2002 cohort. Within that response, the most frequently given
single reason was: to get a job (24%) to improve general education skills (14%) the skills being a requirement of the job
(12%) and requiring extra skills (12%). 31% of the respondents identified that they had sought to improve their work
circumstances through a different career or extra skills or a better job or promotion and 6% indicated that their reasons
included improving skills for starting or building their own business.
Methodology: The measures are drawn from the survey report titled “Student Outcomes Survey Western Australian Institute
Report for Challenger TAFE November 2005” that provides comparative data on an institution, State and national basis.
Derivation: In each of the Student Outcomes Surveys (previously called Graduate Destination Surveys) conducted since
1997, the same question regarding the main reason for doing the course was asked of graduates and the same rating scale
used enabling maintenance of trend data to 2003. To 2003, the measure was re-based and reflected as a percentage of
those who answered “Yes” or “Partly” as a proportion of all those who gave a valid response to the question. In 2005 the
exact number of respondents was not available and results were provided as weighted samples.
Statistical Details: A weighted sample of 760 Challenger TAFE graduates responded to a question about whether they
achieved their main reason for undertaking a course. The estimated Challenger graduate student population was 5339. A
standard error measure was provided based on the response population for each question. The standard error was +/- 2.6
with a confidence level of 95%.
Explanation: The results indicate that most TAFE graduates, including those from Challenger TAFE, were studying for
vocational reasons in 2004 and the majority of these students sought to get a job. Note that national data on graduate
satisfaction was not available prior to 2000 nor in 2004 based on the 2003 graduate population.
The lower result for Challenger TAFE compared with the state and national figures is the subject of an internal project to
clarify the possible explanations. The outcome for Challenger TAFE may relate to an older profile for its students. Older
graduate experience less success when seeking their desired employment. Internal measures of levels of student
satisfaction remain very high.

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

77.99%

81.16%

79.70%

N/A

81.00%

Western Australia 76.33%

76.98%

77.96%

N/A

84.00%

Australia

77.98%

78.80%

N/A

86.00%

Challenger TAFE

78.96%

Table 8.9 Graduates' Main Reasons for Study 1999-2005
1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

Employment- related

73.60%

73.60%

71.50%

71.30%

73.17%

N/A*

72.00%

To enter further study

9.30%

9.80%

10.00%

9.10%

9.20%

N/A*

9.00%

Personal or Interest

13.90%

14.10%

12.70%

16.80%

14.98%

N/A*

19.00%

Other Reasons or Unknown

3.20%

2.50%

5.80%

2.70%

2.65%

N/A*

Note: The College is unable to provide an update to this KPI on an annual basis as statistically valid College level data was
not available in 2004.
The National Centre for Vocational Education Research (NCVER) intends to conduct surveys with an appropriate weighted
sample design to produce statistically reliable College level data in alternate years and commenced this arrangement in 2005.
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Table 8.8 Graduates Achievement of Main Reason for Study 2001-2005
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR EFFECTIVENESS GRADUATE EMPLOYMENT OUTCOMES
Graduate Employment Outcomes (Destination)
Graduates’ employment status after the completion of a training program provides an indicator of Challenger TAFE’s
effectiveness in providing relevant skills for the workforce and contributing to the development of industries, regions and
the economy.
The 2005 Student Outcomes Survey report indicated that of a weighted sample of 750 students who responded to a
question on their employment and had completed their course at Challenger TAFE, the graduate employment rate was
calculated at 76% across the Challenger graduate population and this compared with a weighted sample of students across
Western Australia where 78% were employed after their course and nationally 79% were employed after their course. The
standard error measure was +/-2.4% and confidence level at 95%.
Source: The following Key Performance Indicator relating to Graduate Destination is derived from the national 2005 Student
Outcomes Survey, funded by the Department of Education Science and Training (DEST) and conducted by the National
Centre for Vocational Education Research (NCVER) through contractor 1-View.
Methodology: The measures are drawn from the survey report titled “Student Outcomes Survey Western Australian Institute
Report for Challenger TAFE November 2005” that provides comparative data on an institution, State and national basis. In
2005 3.8% more graduates who were no longer enrolled in a VET course reported they were employed. This measures differs
slightly from the previous measure taken in 2003 when 72.2% of all graduates reported being in employment.
Statistical Details: 750 students who responded to a question on their employment and had completed their course at
Challenger TAFE out of an estimated student population of 5226. A standard error measure was provided based on the
response population for each question. The standard error overall was +/-2.4% the confidence level was at 95%.
Table 8.10 Graduate Labour Market Status May 2005

Challenger TAFE
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Western Australia
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Australia

Employed

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005\

Employed

64.08%

65.18%

72.20%

N/A

76.00%*

Unemployed

14.89%

13.34%

11.81%

N/A

11.00%*

Not in the labour force

21.04%

19.93%

14.65%

N/A

12.00%*

Employed

67.83%

70.50%

72.36%

N/A

78.00%

Unemployed

13.83%

12.55%

11.72%

N/A

9.00%

Not in the labour force

18.34%

16.05%

13.77%

N/A

13.00%

Employed

72.90%

72.50%

74.76%

N/A

79.00%

Unemployed

12.28%

12.77%

11.93%

N/A

10.00%

Not in the labour force

14.82%

13.96%

11.36%

N/A

11.00%
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Figure 8.11: Graduate Labour Market Status May 2005

Derivation: Graduate employment status was measured by questions asked each year on whether graduates were employed,
unemployed or not in the labour force at a specified date at the end of May 2005. The measure is expressed as a percentage
of the respondents in each category as a proportion of weighted responses. Note that national data on graduate
employment outcomes were not available prior to 2000 nor in 2004.
Explanation: The data for 2001 through to 2003 was been recalculated so that the percentage was based on the number of
valid responses to each question. This was to maintain a comparative analysis based upon a consistent methodology. The
percentage of graduates who reported that they were in employment has increased from the previous survey in 2003 by
3.8% and the percentage of those who reported that they were unemployed or not in the workforce declined since the 2003
measure was taken. The standard error measure was +/-2.4% and confidence level at 95%.
ADDITIONAL INTERNAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS DELIVERY PROFILE
Additional Non-profiled Training Programs
Most of Challenger TAFE’s training programs are specified and funded in the annual Delivery and Performance Agreement
through a formula-driven resource-allocation process. Funds to support the delivery of additional training programs are
secured through a variety of alternative strategies. These include tendering for public funds targeting specific enterprise or
community training needs, fee-for-service customised training or provision for overseas students (in partnership with
Education and Training International[). Adult Community Education courses that cater for community and personal
development, including hobby courses, are included here and are conducted on a self-supporting basis.

Source: Non-profiled delivery is that which is funded other than through the Delivery and Performance Agreement between
the College and the Western Australian Department of Training. Student enrolment in non-profile courses is identified on
the College Management Information System (CMIS) by funding source codes other than “C” or “10”.
Explanation: The quantity of non-profile delivery increased from the 2004 outcome, with fee for service and international
student categories being the best performers by quantity. The total delivery of 4,350,029 SCH is an increase on all previous
years while the non-profile component of 750,867 SCH has grown in SCH since 2003. There was a growth in SCH generated
from overseas students. As a proportion of the whole delivery, non-profile activity in terms of SCH improved on the 2003
and 2004 results.
The training recorded on the CMIS for overseas students relates only to delivery to those students whose usual address is
overseas but who are located within Western Australia while studying and does not include training delivered in other
countries.
Training delivered to submariners under a subcontracted arrangement with Australian Submarine Corporation is not
included in the final tally of student Contact Hours (SCH).
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The College’s fee-for-service training programs (not including the Collins Class Submarine Training) have shown growth in
SCH since 2001, although the percentage of total delivery (17.03%) is up from 2004.
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Table 8.12 Non-Profile Delivery as a Percentage of All Delivery
2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

Industry Specific

75,046

61,746

93,475

83,768

78,104*

Fee-for-Service*

474,561

563,309

507,398

437,131

415,569

Overseas Stds

62,659

74,962

95,026

148,416

207,445

ACE

103,052

93,122

62,673

84,653

60,044

Non-profile

715,318

761,242

570,071

673,438

761,162

Profile

3,325,941

3,419,298

3,544,878

3,612,644

3,707,596

Total

4,041,259

4,180,540

4,114,949

4,286,082

4,468,758

* This includes programs funded through the State and Commonwealth
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Figure 8.13 Total Non-Profile Delivery as a Proportion of All Delivery
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REPUTATION AND GROWTH
The Centres of Specialisation have developed a strong rapport with industry and community organisations, providing
customised training programs when and where the clients require them. It is anticipated that fee-for-service training
delivered to clients in Western Australia, nationally and overseas will remain a reliable source of substantial income. For
2006, the College aims to produce the following outcomes in Profile and Non Profile VET Delivery.
Figure 8.14 Non-Profile Delivery Categories 2002-2005

Figure 8.14 demonstrates that while the extent of activity in delivering training to overseas students has increased over time,
other areas such as fee for service commercial delivery and Adult Community Education activity have declined in recent years.

Profile Delivery

Non Profile
Delivery (2)

Total Delivery

2001

3,325,941

612,266

3,938,207

2002

3,419,298

761,242

4,180,540

2003

3,544,878

570,071

4,114,949

2004

3,612,644

673,438

4,286,082

2005

3,707,596

761,162

4,468,758

2006

3,675,319

Notes

(1)

(1)
(3)

2005 EOY delivery achievement

NB: Competitive Allocated Tenders won for 2006 include a further 68,428 SCH with $691,455
Notes:

(1) 2006 delivery targets as negotiated Dec 2005
(2) Non-profile delivery does not include training for the Navy (submarine school) or delivery off-shore.
(3) Delivery recorded in the 2006 Delivery and Performance Agreement

NB: Competitive Allocated Tenders won for 2006 include a further 70,640 SCH.
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Table 8.15 Profile and Non Profile VET Delivery 2001 – 2005
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Program Evaluation
OVERVIEW
The Challenger TAFE improvement process has continued to obtain feedback from its students through training experience
evaluation. This allows students to provide positive and negative feedback on their training experience with the college. The
questionnaire used measures the relative quality of Course Content, Delivery, Assessment and Resources.
OBJECTIVE
The feedback obtained by this process allows opportunity for college management to praise staff where their contribution
to achieving the vision of the college has been recognised by students.
The process also enables action to be taken where students have indicated an opportunity to improve training delivery and
assessment in line with their expectations.
ACHIEVEMENTS
Collated results from the study evaluation process continue to show high levels of satisfaction of students. The following
graphs are representation of the process and outcomes.
During 2005 a new electronic facility has been developed which will allow students to submit their feedback on line. 2006
will see the introduction of the new facility which will complement the current manual system and aims to increase the
volume of feedback received. This will enable Challenger TAFE to gain a better understanding of the requirements of its
students.
Table 8.16 Volume of Evaluations returned by students
2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

15206

10351

8529

8446

6873

The following graph demonstrates the continued high levels of student satisfaction with College training for the last five
years. The groupings relate to the four categories of questions asked of students. The improved satisfaction levels with
Delivery and Assessments are a reflection of the Colleges ongoing commitment to AQTF standards.
The following graph reflects the continued high levels of student satisfaction with College training for the last five years.
The groupings relate to the four categories of questions asked of students. They indicate a high level of student satisfaction
with college training for the last five years. The groupings relate to the four categories of questions asked of students.
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Figure 8.17 Levels of Student Satisfaction (Internal Measure)
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Customer Comments
OVERVIEW
Challenger TAFE is committed to continuous improvement and has a management system that actively seeks comments
from its customers and staff. This feedback process covers all aspects of College operations and is available using hardcopy
documents or electronically via the Internet.
The college’s Customer Comment process has been recognised over recent years as being one of the best Customer
Comments processes in our sector, with some aspects close to best practice.
ACHIEVEMENTS
In 2005, a total of 117 customer comments were received. These included both praise for College staff and services, as well
as those suggesting opportunity for service improvement. In 2005 there have been 170 comments submitted.
The number of comments has increased owing, in part, to an improved awareness campaign introduced by the Client
Services Improvement Unit; and the introduction of the on-line feedback facility through which comments can be recorded.

BUREAU VERITAS QUALITY INTERNATIONAL (BVQI)
The College has been certified to the ISO 9000 series of International Quality Management Standards since 1992. The
accrediting agency is Bureau Veritas Quality International (BVQI). The Scope of Certification approved by BVQI for
Challenger TAFE covers “The design, Development and Provision of Vocational Education and Training and Associated
Services”. The College is certified to the highest level of this series of standards; ISO 9001:2000.
The College is audited twice each year and for the last four visits, no non-compliances have been reported; however, a few
opportunities for improvement have been suggested. The College incorporates these suggestions into its continuous
improvement program.
During the most recent visit in August 2005 the college was acknowledged for its further progress in meeting AQTF
requirements and the evident positive impact this continues to have on College operations. The two sets of quality
management standards (ISO and AQTF) continue to complement each other for both the College’s training services and
supporting functions.
The August 2005 audit reflected a good understanding of the management system by all staff interviewed and all areas
audited showed good customer focus. The Hospitality and Maritime facilities and resources were reviewed and their high
standard was commended. Of the several improvement initiatives in the last twelve months, the introduction of Career
Connect was highlighted. This free service is committed to linking employers and students and is available to Challenger
TAFE students and graduates for up to twelve months after graduation.
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Figure 8.18 Customer Comments 2004 and 2005
Number of Customer Comment Forms Lodged
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APPRENTICESHIPS AND TRAINEESHIPS
The Minister has established annual targets for Apprenticeships and Traineeships applying a base of 1,817 in the June
quarter 2004 and seeking a target of 2,070 Apprenticeships and Traineeships by June 2009, with an emphasis on
apprenticeships in traditional trades in the initial years.
Figure 8.19 Apprenticeships and Traineeships Annual Target
Year

Target

% target

2004/5

Actual

% actual

1,817

2005/6

1,844

1.5

2006/7

1,896

2.8

2007/8

1,979

4.4

2008/9

2,070

4.6

2,115

16.4

FAST TRACK
The Minister has established an annual target for Fast Track students by December 2005.
Figure 8.20 Fast Track Students
Year

Target

% target

2004/5
2005/6

Actual

% actual

12
33

21

63

51

INDIGENOUS STUDENTS
The Minister has established annual targets for indigenous students to increase the number enrolled in employment related
qualifications Certificate III and above
Figure 8.21 Indigenous Students
Year

Target

% target
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2004/5

51

Actual

% actual

206

2005/6

232

12.60%

2006/7

261

26.70%

2007/8

294

42.7

2008/9

331

60.7

224

8.70%
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS USED IN THE KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Census
The student-based information gathered on the College Management Information System (CMIS) and provided to the
Western Australian Department of Education and Training (WADT) periodically and at the conclusion of the academic year
as specified in the Delivery and Performance Agreement. The census has a formal set of Business Rules, complies with the
Australian Vocational Education and Training Information Statistical Standards (AVETMISS) and is the source of the
measures of target achievement for the College. Delivery is measured in Student Curriculum Hours (SCH). The following
categories of activity do not produce SCH and are excluded from the census:
•
•
•
•
•

exam only (no tuition) enrolments
enrolments which commenced prior to 1 January of the calendar year or which were reported in a previous full year
collection
exemptions
unsupervised field placements
module enrolments in which no attendance or submission of work are recorded.

Course
Every module must be attached to a course, which usually comprises one or more modules. The same module may be
assigned to more than one course.
Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA)
Constitutes a Resource Agreement, as per Section 5 of the Vocational and Training Act 1996, between the Western Australia
Department of Education and Training representing the Minister for Training, and the Governing Council of the College for
the delivery of vocational education and training for the agreed calendar year.
Module
A unit of training, usually with a prescribed curriculum, in which a client enrols within a course structure. Modules may or
may not be assessable. All modules must be assigned to a course for enrolment purposes.
Profiled Matrix
Refers to the approved planned delivery by the College as described in Schedule 1 of the DPA. This consists of the SCH for
each combination of WADT Group and WADT Level.

WADT Group
A classification of courses based on the Australian Standard Classification of Occupations and related to the occupation or
outcome the course is intended to serve. This classification provides the horizontal or “X” axis of the Profile Matrix. The
classification is the value recognised by the Western Australian Department of Education and Training.
WADT Level
A classification which distinguishes new apprenticeships from other delivery as Level 1 and sub-divides the remainder on
the basis of the Australian Qualification Framework levels. This classification provides the vertical or “Y” axis of the Profile
Matrix. The classification is the value recognised by the Department of Education and Training.
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Student Curriculum Hours (SCH)
The nominal hours assigned to a program of study by the curriculum or, in the absence of an endorsed curriculum, by
common agreement with the Western Australian Department of Education and Training’s Statistical Unit.
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MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

Governing Council

Director
Australian Centre for
Energy and Process
Training
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General Manager
Training, Research &
Development
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9.1. CHALLENGER TAFE GOVERNING COUNCIL
Council Membership
The members of the Challenger TAFE Governing Council during 2005 were:
Ms Paddi Creevey (Chair) was a senior social worker at the Mandurah Community Health Centre for 20 years. Her
qualifications include a Bachelor of Social Work. She is the Mayor of the City of Mandurah. She has been involved in local
government for eleven years and chaired the Planning and Development Committee for six years. She has strong interests
in sustainability and community development, particularly in the Peel region. Paddi serves on the boards of a number of
community organisations such as the Women’s Refuge, Peel Community Legal Centre, Peel Community Development
Group and WestAus Crisis. She has been appointed to the Peel Dev Commission,the Local Government Advisory Board, the
Ministerial Advisory Committee for Women in Local Government and is a State Councillor of the WA Local Government
Association. Paddi is also a member of Zonta International and the Mandurah Fishing Club.
Current term of Appointment: 1/1/2005-31/12/07
Mr Kim Bailey (Deputy Chair) is the Chair of the Challenger TAFE Finance Performance and Audit Committee and a founding
member of the Governing Council. He has more than 43 years of experience in the family business, Bailey’s Fertilisers, and
in the field of horticulture. He is a resident of the College region and a former Rockingham City Councillor. He is also the
Chair of the Turf and Landscape Industry Association.
Term of Appointment: 19/01/04 – 30/06/06
Ms Cheryl Bridge has had eight years experience in the VET industry and for the past two and a half years has been
employed as the Manager of Kadadjiny Mia Centre for Aboriginal Learning at Challenger TAFE. Cheryl represents the college
on a number of regional committees including the Youth Advantage Strategy and Peel Employment Committee. As a
member of the Indigenous community, Cheryl is passionate about ensuring Aboriginal people have access to the best
possible training opportunities.
Term of Appointment: 1/1/2005 – 31/12/2008

Term of Appointment: 01/01/03 – 31/12/05
Mr David English
David has over twenty years experience working in the Western Australian mining and resource industries. He is a degreequalified Engineer (BE Mech.) and has completed a Masters in Leadership Management through the Curtin University.
David has held numerous board and committee positions as part of his active support for training and development in
industry and the community. He is 43 years old, married with three school-aged children.
Term of Appointment: 1/01/05 – 31/12/07
Ms Heather Gluyas is a Registered Nurse and has worked within nursing and the health industry for over 30 years. Until
2004, she was the Nurse Co-Director of the Osborne Park Hospital Program (which encompasses Rehabilitation and Aged
Care Services at Sir Charles Gairdner Hospital, as well as Osborne Park Hospital). Currently she works at Notre Dame
University. Ms Gluyas holds a Bachelor of Science, as well as a Post-graduate Certificate in Management and a Masters
Degree in Service Administration. Heather is a resident of the College region and is keen to contribute to her own
community by her involvement in the Governing Council.
Term of Appointment: 19/1/04 – 30/6/06 Resigned October 2005.
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Ms Helen Cattalini is the Chair of Challenger TAFE’s Planning and Development Committee. She is a former Commissioner
of Multicultural and Ethnic Affairs in the Government of Western Australia. She was awarded a Member of the Order of
Australia Medal in 1998 for services to the community. Since 1987, she has been a Director of Helen Cattalini Consultancy
Services Pty Ltd, a company specialising in social research, as well as policy and program development in government, local
government and community sectors.
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Mr David Holland is the Chair of the Challenger TAFE Hospitality and Tourism Industry Advisory Committee. He is Managing
Director of 'Yalgorup Eco Park On The Beach' and a Director of Brighthouse, a consultancy specialising in nature-based
tourism developments. He is immediate past chairman of the Peel Region Tourism Association, past member of the WA
Tourism Commission's Industry Development Advisory Committee, past president of the Caravan Industry Australia (WA).
Term of Appointment: 01/01/03 – 31/12/05
Wayne Murray returns to Governing Council after a period working in international markets. He is self-employed and has
completed work recently in Indonesia, China and Papua New Guinea. Wayne has many years experience in the petrochemical, refining and logistics industries. He has a working knowledge of Indonesian, Tagalog and Mandarin and has a
Trade Certificate (Turner Iron Machinist), a BA in Training and Development and is an accredited Workplace
Trainer/Assessor.
Term of Appointment: 1/01/05 – 31/12/07
Ms Sally O’Loughlin has a Bachelor of Arts and is currently pursuing Swedish language studies. She is a Company Director
and Consultant for NRMC Pty Ltd WA (which is a small family-owned company) as a consultant on communications issues.
She has been a Board Member of Public Sector Superannuation/Commonwealth Service Superannuation since 1991 and
Board Member of the Australian Government Employment Superannuation Trust since 2002. She was an Elected Officer,
Community and Public Sector Union from 1983 to 2000.
Term of Appointment: 1/07/03 – 30/06/06 Resigned May 2005
Mr Geoff Richards is the Chair of the Industry Advisory Committee to the Challenger TAFE WA Horticulture &
Environmental Science Skills Centre. He is National President of Greening Australia and past National President of the
Nursery and Garden Industry Australia. He is owner and Managing Director of Richgro Garden Products and has been a
Rotary member for the last 29 years.
Term of Appointment: 01/01/03 – 31/12/05
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Mr Rasa Subramaniam OAM, JP arrived in Australia in 1968 and is Senior Medical Imaging Technologist at Fremantle
Hospital. He was the first Asian to be elected to Local Government in Western Australia in 1991. Since its inception, Rasa
has been a member of the Multicultural Advisory Committee of the City of Melville. On Australia Day in 1995, he was
awarded Citizen of the Year by the City of Melville, as well as a Medal of the Order of Australia for his services to
multicultural organisations, the Tamil community and local government. In 2003, he was awarded the Centenary of
Federation Medal for his outstanding contribution to the promotion of multiculturalism. He is also a member of the
Western Australian Council for Safety and Quality in Health Care
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9.2 COLLEGE EXECUTIVE
Mr Malcolm Goff (Managing Director) has a Bachelor of Arts (Economics), Higher Certificate in Teaching, Graduate
Diploma in Education Administration and a Master of Business. He is a current member of the Australian College of
Education and has been Managing Director of Challenger TAFE since 1999. He was formerly the Executive Director,
Strategic Services in the WA Department of Training. Malcolm has many years of teaching and management experience in
the vocational education and training system.
Ms Liz Harris (General Manager Training Research and Development) has a Bachelor of Arts (Literature & Media), a
Graduate Diploma in Applied Linguistics, a Graduate Diploma in Adult and Tertiary Education and a Master of Education
degree. Liz is the General Manager Training, Research and Development and was previously a Training Director in the
College. Liz has an extensive and diverse background in the field of vocational education and learning in post-secondary
sectors, having worked at the national level with the Australian National Training Authority (ANTA) for three years, as well
as in the university sector.
Mr Neil McAullay (General Manager Business Services) has a Diploma in Public Administration and has been responsible
for corporate services at Challenger TAFE for approximately 12 years. Prior to that he occupied a senior manager role with
the WA Public Service Commission with responsibility for organisational development and human resource management
issues.
Mr Jan Lipiec (General Manager Client Services and Communications) has a Bachelor of Business, a Masters of Business
Administration and is a Graduate Member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. Having spent most of his
customer service career in the private sector, including ten years with Qantas Holidays, Jan joined the WA Public Sector in
2000. Commencing his public service at the Department of Transport as Director, Customer Service, Jan joined Challenger
TAFE in 2003. In addition to his passion for effective client service delivery, Jan has experience in marketing and business
management.
Ms Cheryll Meade (General Manager Teaching and Learning) has a Bachelor of Applied Science (Mathematics), Graduate
Diploma in Education and Statements of Attainment for Assessment & Workplace Training. Cheryll has extensive experience
in the education sector including Curriculum Manager at the Curriculum Council and executive roles for the Ministerial
Review into the Interface between Education and Training (the Tannock Report) and the Department of Education &
Training’s review of the educational needs of 15-19 year olds in WA.
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Mr Rob Meecham (Director Business Development) has worked in the Commonwealth Public Service, the trade union
movement, Curtin University and for a mining company before joining Challenger TAFE. Rob has been involved with Indian
Ocean region countries and development issues throughout his career, particularly in his role as Associate Director of the
Indian Ocean Centre at Curtin University. Rob has an Arts degree with a major in Economics from UWA.
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9.3 STAFF OF CHALLENGER TAFE
The Table below show both the number of Full Time Equivalent and persons paid for the pay period ending
2 December 2005 FTE and Head Count As at 1 December 2005.
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Table 9.1 Staff of Challenger TAFE
FTE and Head Count As at 1 December 2005
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Group

Head

FTE

Lecturing staff

229

216.99

Academic Support

80

70.51

Academic Management

26

26

Support Staff

167

151.44

Split

7

6

Other

12

12

Casuals (Lecturing/Non Lecturing

248

80.38

Grand Total

769

563.32
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10.1 CLIENT SERVICES, CLIENT RELATIONSHIPS AND INFRASTRUCTURE SUPPORT
INTRODUCTION
Client Services and Communications, Campus Services and the Learning Resources Centres (LRCs) comprises a group of
integrated services that advise potential students on course and career options, ensure students have a supportive learning
experience at the college, and maintain the physical facilities necessary for students and staff to participate in successful
learning experiences. Additionally, the College’s training delivery centres ie the Industry Training Centres, Kadadjiny-Mia
Centre for Aboriginal Learning and the Centre for Adult Education, receive support services for activities such as marketing
their training and for enrolling students.
OUTCOMES FOR 2005
Goal 6 - Excellence in Support Services Students
The College’s careers management service ‘Career Connect’ commenced operations and has successfully established itself
as a key service to the College’s employer and student client groups. The service’s employment arm ‘Job Connect’ has been
registering employers with vacancies at an average rate of 30 per month. Over 436 students have registered to use the
service.
The Career Connect service has provided more than 60 workshops and talks for groups of students, parents, employers and
community groups, as well as over 100 individual sessions on issues related to career management and employment. The
Career Connect service was successful in winning an Innovative Career Development Grant of $40,000 for a project to
develop a model for the “Marketing of Career Development Services in Partnership with Industry”. The first phase of that
project was implemented in 2005. While the project is not due to finish till July 2006, early indications are that it is
providing a practical model and achieving successful employment outcomes for the participants.

•

•

A mentoring program was launched to ease the impact on overseas students of their move to a new culture and the
loss of their usual family and social support structures. The mentoring program aimed to make the support and
experience of more established international students available to guide newer students through the difficult early
stages of their stay. Introduction of the mentoring program was the first time such a support system had been utilised
in TAFEWA and it has proved popular with students.
A web site was developed in 2005 for the overseas students to enable those students and their families to obtain
information and access services more readily, both before and during the student’s stay in WA. Plans are in place to
expand this service so that the agents who send overseas students to WA can obtain information and assure themselves
that their clients are being well-supported during the course of their training.

The Student Services Unit initiated a project to enhance the recreational and support services available to students on
campus.
•

•
•

The Student Services Unit conducted life skills and information sessions to assist the personal development of
students. Under this program, talks and workshops were conducted on a range of topics including, Dressing for
Success (preparing for employment), Financial Planning and Speaking in Public. Workshops to promote cultural
awareness have also been conducted in conjunction with the Overseas Student Support Unit.
Student Services has continued to expand the suite of self-help and advice literature that it provides to students:
preparing and distributing material on Suicide Prevention, Abuse and Self-Esteem.
The Student Services Unit conducted research to determine the ideal features of viable Student Associations in TAFE
College settings. A plan has been developed for a service structure and funding model that the Unit hopes to carry
forward for implementation in 2006 with a target membership of over 3000 students.
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The Overseas Student Support program has been further developed in 2005 to improve the overseas students’ experiences
of their training in WA. These changes also support the College to establish viable commercial international training
programs.

58

CHAPTER 10

Customer Focus

The Admissions Section continued to explore ways to improve arrangements for fee payment and debt management
arrangements in order to ensure all students retain their access to training. For example, the section managed an efficient
process that ensured all eligible 16-17 year old students received their ‘It Pays to Learn’ funds.
The Section expanded the development of its on-line student-managed enrolment service by establishing continuous
enrolment sites at each of its campus. The computer-based facilities enable students to access their enrolment information
and make changes, if desired,at any time throughout the year.
The Learning Resources Centres expanded the range of information services and facilities available to students. The Centre
on the College’s Maritime campus completed its move into a new purpose-built venue. The College’s LRC management
team has continued to take an active role in the development of the joint-use libraries operated at the Peel (partnering with
the Mandurah Senior College and Murdoch University) and Rockingham (partnering with Rockingham City Council and
Murdoch University) encouraging and participating in strategic reviews of the operation of both centres.
The Admissions Section, through its Academic Records Centre, began trials of a new automated Assessments and Results
System that will allow teaching staff to enter results, as they conduct the assessments. This information can be entered
from any point that has access to the Internet and will provide students with more rapid access to their results. As part of
this project, the Admissions Section is developing the specifications for a new process to automatically issue awards
without the student needing to make a written application. The new system will provide a more convenient service for
students and eliminate delays in their receipt of results and awards.
Client Services participated in a TAFEWA Student Portal Project to implement a web-based gateway for potential students.
It provides a single point of contact for all of the essential information and enrolment services related to training offered
by the TAFEWA.network.
The Client Services Improvement staff instigated new procedures for internal audits that ensure a closely integrated review
of all management system procedures and policies so that they meet all of the requirements of the various quality
certifications to which the College complies, including the Australian Quality Training Framework, International Standards
Organisation and the Australian Maritime Safety Association.
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The Disability Services Unit managed a caseload of 235 students during 2005 and continued to expand its operations in
response to increasing demand from the client population.
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Client Relationships
The Client Communications Section conducted very successful displays at the Careers Choice Expo at Burswood, the Peel
Career Expo and for the first time in 2005, the Careers and Education Expo.Rockingham Campus hosted 12 schools and over
1,000 students from the Kwinana Industries Education Partnership (KIEP). Prospective Student Advisers conducted 103
school liaison visits and 1 061 individual career guidance appointments;
Graduates from 2004 attended the Challenger TAFE graduation ceremony coordinated by Client Communications, held for
the second year running at the Esplanade Hotel Fremantle with more than 1,000 guests, including 200 graduates;
Client Communications coordinated the publication and distribution of the College’s regular newsletter, Seven Waves and
the applied research and development journal, Quest which is published twice yearly.
The Section coordinated applications, selection panel visits and interviews for the WA Training Excellence Awards, the
Australian Training Awards, the Premier’s Awards for Excellence in Public Sector Management, WA Tourism Awards and the
Australian Adult Education Awards. The College won both the Western Australian and Australian 2005 Large Training
Provider of the Year Award and was finalist in two Premier’s Awards: for the Aquaculture Development Unit; and the
Australian Centre for Energy and Process Training (ACEPT). The Centre for Adult Education won the Australian Adult
Education Award;
Client Communications managed the redesign and implementation of the college websites (both the internet for external
access and the intranet for staff ) with each specialist training centre having its own webpage and web address (URL). The
new internet website was launched in February and the intranet in May.
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Client Communications event managed The official opening of the new WA Maritime Training Centre by the Federal
Minister for Education the Hon Brendan Nelson and also attended by the WA Minister for Education the Hon Ljiljanna
Ravlich, was event managed by Client Communications.
The Section assisted the Centres with a number of events: official opening of the Centre for Adult Education and the
openings of the Peel Regional Access Centres at Boddington, Waroona, Pinjarra and Mundijong and the Australian Oil and
Gas Expo. In addition, Client Communications managed the sponsorship program by LionOre Australia for student
scholarship and mine site visits;
The visit to Challenger TAFE, including a number of campuses and live work venues,. by the new Minister for Education and
Training, the Hon Ljiljanna Ravlich was managed by Client Communications.
Client Communications assisted in the introduction of the new Corporate and Centre’s Marketing Plans developed as a
result of the 2004 strategic marketing review of the College and its Centres of Specialisation. Full implementation of the
new Marketing Plans will progress in 2006.
Infrastructure support
Goal 4 Objective 10 Enhancing our Occupational Safety and Health Programs
The following safety and security measures were implemented in 2005:
•
•

Campus Services implemented additional security cameras at Fremantle Campus linked to and monitored by
designated security agencies
Areas of potential risk such as Library Resource Centres, computing laboratories, cafeterias and evening activities are
kept under watch by the security services.

Systems Support
Campus Services completed the roll-out of point-of-sale systems at bookshops, located at the WA Maritime Training Centre
– Fremantle and Fremantle e-Tech, as well as at Murdoch and Peel Campuses.
Evening audits on the safety of facilities, such as lighting and identification of hazards throughout campus grounds, are
conducted regularly by the security services.

Improved physical learning environment, through the College’s Occupation Health and Safety committees, Campus
Services managed the currency of staff first aid training and facilitation of emergency evacuations and critical incidents
training.
Campus Services managed the selection and implementation of software that captures, at a user level, the volume of
printing on all networked equipment such as multi-function devices and laser printers. Staff now select from their
networked PC/lap-top a multi-function device as their ‘printer’ and produce multiple, double-sided, collated and stapled
copies, at a lower cost than in the past.
In 2005 Campus Services completed the upgrade in print imagining devices, achieving improved copying and printing
throughout the College while delivering cost reductions.
Campus Services in 2006
A number of key projects are planned to come to fruition in 2006 including, implementation of energy management audits
at Fremantle e-Tech, Heathcote, Rockingham, Peel and Kwinana that will identify current good practice and opportunities
to reduce the College’s consumption of electricity, emission of greenhouse gases and related costs.
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Campus Services managed the contracts and processes associated with maintenance of buildings and grounds and
recreation areas on the college’s 17 sites.
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10.2 TEACHING AND LEARNING
INTRODUCTION
The establishment of the Teaching and Learning Directorate in 2004 has enabled the College to maintain a strategic,
integrated and holistic approach to the provision of professional development opportunities for Challenger’s staff to
enhance teaching and learning. In particular, the emphasis has been on building a culture of continuous improvement that
goes beyond a compliance approach to quality assurance.
The College continues to make a significant commitment to supporting staff in their professional duties through a
contribution of 1% of the salary budget, to maintaining professional training activities. The WA Department of Education
and Training has made available additional funds for the College’s Training and Research Division. As a result, the hours of
professional development activities has increased from over 8,000 in 2004 to more than 13,000 hours in 2005, involving 1
900 staff attendances (900 in 2004) by staff from the training divisions. The aim has been to ensure relevance; personal
service, providing ‘just-for-me’ training, and support ‘learning in context’ ie modelling good practice in the provision of
learning services.
OUTCOMES FOR 2005
In support of the College’s Strategic Planning Framework (2005-2010), the major priorities of the Teaching & Learning
Directorate in 2005 were:
Goal 5: Providing high quality training products and services
Teaching and Learning maintained a strong focus on continuous improvement in the quality of our teaching and learning
environments.
The inaugural all-of-college Octoberfest Professional Development Conference was a significant highlight for the Teaching
and Learning team and was the culmination of months of hard work and many ‘challenges and opportunities’, which
coincidentally, became the theme for the conference. Over a 100 staff attended the first day, held at the Esplanade Hotel in
Fremantle. On the following two days, simultaneous sessions were offered at the Beaconsfield, Murdoch and Rockingham
campuses. Almost 40 sessions were run representing a significant commitment by staff to sharing best-practice across the
College. Feedback indicated that staff relished, not only the opportunity to attend informative and stimulating sessions, but
also the opportunity to network with fellow Challenger colleagues on different campuses.
In addition the Teaching and Learning Directorate has:
•
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•
•

•
•
•

managed professional development funds targeted for the lecturing staff in order to deploy professional resources
effectively and efficiently, in accordance with WA and College strategic priorities.
Initiated key initiatives including workshops, action learning and working in project teams to enhance service delivery
through the development of technical expertise.
Increased awareness of emerging learning technologies through projects such as LearnScope and publications such as
the November edition of Quest.
provided professional development support to implement the use of Elluminate live! - a real time collaboration and
synchronous online learning environment. It offers lecturers a unique opportunity to enhance their distance education
programs through live discussion and dynamic interaction with their students and is also ideal for virtual meetings.
Elluminate has been available since July 2005 and already many lecturers are exploring ways it can be used to enhance
their delivery for 2006.
facilitation and project management of two Peel e-learning projects to design and develop e-learning courses that can
be delivered to people living in the Peel region and studying off-campus.
developed a VET for Schools CD-ROM as a resource for schools that includes information on career pathways, college
policies, contact details and sections specifically for VET coordinators, parents and teachers
conducted workshops relating to cultural awareness, dealing with disabilities and addressing issues of diversity
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•
•

facilitated Challenger TAFE as the first college to gain accreditation to deliver the new Training and Assessment Training
Package for training professionals and has provided training at both the Certificate IV and Diploma levels during 2005.
has project managed a plan for roll-out of the Assessment and Results Interface system in 2006 through an
Implementation Steering Committee and three Working Groups relating to a) Apprenticeships and Traineeships, b)
Awards Management and c) Records Management.

Goal 6 – Developing a culture of excellence in the delivery of support services to our clients
Teaching and Learning developed strategies and programs that demonstrate our commitment to supporting and
recognising the College’s academic staff -.

•
•

•

•
•
•
•

•

•

co-ordination of a project to identify Challenger’s academic information resources and needs and the means by which
these can be managed and shared - proof-of-concept for the development of an Online Academic Sharing Information
Service has now been completed for implementation in 2006 to provide lecturers with access to teaching and learning
materials, ‘anywhere and anytime’
administrative processes have been further streamlined to achieve effective and efficient use of resources to enable
delivery areas to focus on servicing clients
a Campus-Based Peer Support Network has been established and it provided an induction for new and casual lecturers
through afternoon teas for people to meet and the creation and distribution of flyers offering the availability of a support
service to new and casual lecturers
external funding opportunities for innovative learning have been identified and lecturers provided with tender writing
assistance, project management and facilitation services to access these resources – a number of state and national
projects have been secured and successfully completed:
o e-learning creative communities partnerships
o three LearnScope projects
o e-learning pilot for learners with disabilities
o innovative scholarship for hospitality training
o Supporting the New Practitioner – induction program
Teaching and Learning Directorate staff were involved in state-wide networks relating to building capacity and
innovative implementation of the TAA Training Package
staff from partnering schools joined Challenger academic staff in attending relevant professional development activities
offered by the College - this has continued to strengthen interagency cooperation and further clarified key processes
College initiatives supported by the Teaching and Learning Directorate were featured in The AQTF at Work – Examples
of Best Practice publication launched at the WA Training Forum in May 2005
as part of the commitment to continuous improvement, internal audits were conducted through the College’s
Australian Quality Training Framework Section Co-ordinators Network across all study areas - This provided a means of
identifying and responding to issues, as well as sharing of best practice across the College
a follow-up audit against selected Australian Quality Training Framework standards was conducted by the Training
Accreditation Council across 17 industry areas serviced by the College - it involved 51 site visits on eight different
campuses, including interviews with seven employers
the resulting audit report highlighted the significant continuous improvement that has been achieved across the College
– ie higher levels of Australian Quality Training Framework compliance, together with an increased level of innovation
and responsiveness to student needs, in particular it was noted that recognition of prior learning processes and support
materials were very well developed.
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Curriculum Services provides advice and support for sections wishing to amend or extend the College scope of registered
qualifications and accredited courses, as well as support in the development of accredited courses and applications for
extension of accreditation.
Table 10.1 Summary of Items sent to the Training Accreditation Council in 2005
Accreditations

4
49

Within Scope Registrations

7

Extension to Scope Registrations
Addition of Delivery Location

34

Removal of Delivery Location

8

Extensions to Accreditation

6

Formal Removal from Scope

12

Addition of Delivery Method

2
TOTAL

122

Curriculum Services provides a curriculum support role for TAFEWA in conjunction with the Primary Industries and
Personal Services Curriculum Support Services Networks located at Challenger TAFE. In 2005 this role included
applications to the Training Accreditation Council for extension of accreditation for a number of courses, as well as
management of a research and evaluation project for the New Opportunities for Women course.
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Support was provided by Curriculum Services for network meetings, professional development workshops and moderation
meetings for the community services and personal services industries, primary and rural industries, maritime and seafood
industries, asset security and maintenance and diversity and general education sector. Additional workshops were run for
the new TAFEWA entry requirements, as well as targeted industry areas such as Hairdressing.
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Curriculum Support Services Network funded projects undertaken by lecturing staff at Challenger TAFE in 2005 included:
• accreditation of the Security Course (Maritime)
• accreditation of the Cert IV ROV (Remotely Operated Vehicle) Pilot Technician course grade I and II
• delivery and assessment strategies for the Royal Yachting Association (RYA) and Maritime Coastguard Agency
• professional development on the use of boat simulation for training of Volunteer Marine Rescue Services personnel
• Aboriginal ex students Training Advisory Forum
• study of graduate students from Aboriginal programs
• production of delivery schedules and translation of these into WEBCT for the Cert III in Hairdressing
• hairdressing collaborative CAG project implementation
• new Certificate I in Electro-technology, Pre-Apprentice Electrical
• Boating Services Training Package resource development
• floristry e-tree.
Curriculum Services manages the College’s component of the TAFEWA Products and Services Catalogue that provides a
web-based marketing ‘shopfront’ for prospective students. In 2005 College and State-wide reviews of the Catalogue were
completed. The review process culminated in a series of professional development workshops for College staff, the
production of a Products and Services Catalogue User Guide and the introduction of an up-graded version of
the Catalogue.
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Goal 7 – Developing a highly skilled, innovative and motivated workforce
The introduction of the TAFEWA Lecturers Qualifications Framework has been a significant undertaking in 2005. It
describes career and professional development pathways for lecturers and how training and assessment skills can be
acquired. The centrepiece of the framework is the Essential Skills Internship and Mentoring Program. New permanent and
contract lecturers are provided with funding for tuition, up to 160 hours of teaching relief and mentoring. Challenger TAFE
has facilitated the development of this Framework, supported by two of the College’s lecturers.
The Teaching and Learning Directorate, on behalf of TAFEWA, has also managed three major projects relating to:
Graded Assessment
This project was initiated by the TAFEWA Executive to progress Graded Assessment in Western Australia and to further
engage other States/Territories in sharing information on current models and approaches to Graded Assessment.
Implementation of the TAFEWA Lecturers Qualifications Framework
This project was established to ensure consistent implementation and interpretation of the Qualifications Framework. A
Steering Committee chaired by the College’s Managing Director, provides advice to the TAFEWA Managing Directors
Network and the Department of Education and Training. The Teaching and Learning Directorate’s support for the
Committee has included development of Implementation Guidelines and a set of Frequently Asked Questions. An
evaluation of implementation of the Framework was commenced in the latter part of 2005.

The Teaching and Learning Directorate’s other achievements in 2005 include:
• Reframing the Future project on Change Management – developing strategies to implement the Workforce
Management Strategy across all levels of the College
• through a LearnScope project, redesign of the Teaching & Learning Directorate’s Intranet to make it a dynamic
resource for information, knowledge-sharing and collaboration
• change-agent project, as part of Reframing the Future, to develop strategies to encourage lecturers to take part in
professional development based on the new Training and Assessment Training Package 2004 qualifications and to
develop recognition of prior learning benchmarks to support lecturers gain these qualifications – an attractive and
stimulating poster that was developed through this project, will be used as a communication strategy with academic
staff in 2006.
• networks have been established for the College’s Advanced Skills Lecturers and Principal Lecturers to enhance
academic leadership skills – they participated in professional development activities and undertook small projects
relevant to their particular sections or divisions, including:
o development of material using Encoder 9 for use in distance education courses in the Peel Region
o creation of a checklist for use when implementing overseas projects, that will take the project leader from the preenrolling stages through to issue of student results
o use of Encoder 9 to create a skills recognition procedure
o development of a web-based confidential and/or anonymous feedback system for students to communicate with
lecturers to try and solve small issues before they become problems.
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Development of both a Vocational Graduate Certificate and Diploma in VET Leadership
These qualifications are being designed to incorporate the highly specialised range of knowledge and skills required for the
VET professional to provide effective leadership in the education and training organisations of the future. State and national
research has formed the foundation for this initiative.
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TEACHING AND LEARNING DIRECTORATE IN 2006
The main areas of focus in 2006 will include:
• continued provision of professional learning opportunities for academic staff
• promoting and supporting academic leadership
• facilitating and co-ordinating formal professional networks
• capacity building at the local level through the appointment of five Teaching and Learning Campus Mentors
• provision of professional development to enhance commercial competitiveness and entrepreneurial skills
• professional development strategy for the roll-out of the online Assessment and Results System
• co-ordinated support for implementation of the online Academic Sharing Information Service
• continued implementation of the TAFEWA Lecturers Qualifications Framework, including the provision of a Vocational
Graduate Certificate and Diploma in VET Leadership.

10.3 BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
INTRODUCTION
The Business Development Directorate has a diverse role within the college, from providing assistance to the Centres of
Specialisation and other business units in developing their fee-for-service markets to hands on delivery of commercial
training and the delivery of training-related services.
The Business Development Directorate operates on the basis of six key purposes derived from the College’s Strategic Plan.
These are:
•

•
•

•
•
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providing support to the Centres of Specialisation in obtaining and delivering government funded and fee-for-service
training, and other related commercial work, including provision of assistance in tendering for contracts, and managing
the risk associated with commercial activity
identifying and developing potential fee-for-service projects, managing contract negotiations arising out of
opportunities identified and managing the development of strategic relationships with potential major project clients
where appropriate, project managing the training delivery of major fee-for-service projects, such as in circumstances
where the scope of a particular fee-for-service project extends across several of the College’s Centres, or does not
match the profile of any particular Centre, such as the Submarine training contract with ASC Pty Ltd, and of projects
that do not involve training but are associated with the College’s core training business, such as the New
Apprenticeship Centre
assisting with the identification of funding sources for a range of activities and assisting with the preparation of
applications for the funds
reviewing and continuously improving systems and procedures relating to all aspects of the College’s commercial
activity
providing ACE and non-accredited training courses.

In 2005, the Directorate provided assistance to the College’s Centres to respond to commercial demand for fee-for-services
short courses, lodge tenders for a wide range of services, develop commercial contracts and to engage in international
activities. The College increased its fee-for-service activity during the year, indicating the college’s improved capacity to
compete in the commercial market-place.
OVERVIEW
The Business Development Directorate’s primary aim is to contribute to the College’s mission by assisting the development
of its government funded and fee-for-service training and ancillary services business.
The Business Development Directorate is responsible for monitoring the fee-for-service work of the College (income other
than that contracted through the Delivery and Performance Agreement with the Department of Education and Training) to
ensure that the work is costed accurately with minimum risk to the College. The Directorate also assists with securing
contracts and managing contract performance.
The Directorate has responsibility for implementation of the TAFE WA India Strategy and the Maritime Marketing Strategy.
During the year, staff travelled to India to work with existing clients, to identify new auspicing and commercial training
opportunities and to recruit international students for the Maritime Centre.
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The College’s Community Education programs were given a new focus and organisation in 2005 with establishment of the
Centre for Adult Education (reported separately under Chapter 14 .15) Its principle role is to offer non-accredited community
based training courses throughout the College’s catchment area. The Centre also ran its first international tour, to Spain for
Spanish language learners.
The New Apprenticeship Centre (reported separately under Chapter 14 .14) also operated successfully in 2005, achieving an
increase in the number of signups for the year.
During the year ASC Pty Ltd renewed the contract for the provision of staff for the Navy’s submarine training program for
another five year period. This contract continues as a major College initiative in partnership with ASC Pty Ltd.
OUTCOMES FOR 2005
Goal 1 – Training to deliver a skilled workforce
The Business Development Directorate produced new commercial feasibility procedures in 2005 to ensure that a
satisfactory process was used throughout the College in making decisions on commercial work opportunities.
Goal 2 Provision of training for individuals to meet changing personal circumstances and career objectives
The Centre for Adult Education continued to deliver ACE courses. About 60,000 SCH were delivered at a sharply reduced
level of financial loss over 2004. Changes to government policy on advertising affected numbers and a new government
policy on the delivery of ACE by TAFE Colleges had been anticipated to reduce losses associated with the Community Service
Obligation provided in ACE course fees. (A concessional rate applies to seniors and other social welfare recipients that is
not funded by government.) The policy is expected to be finalised in 2006.
The federal government announced a plan to establish Australian Technical Colleges and the Directorate assisted in the
preparation of the application for a college to be established in Rockingham. The bid was unsuccessful but it did bring
together a number of participants in training from the region for the first time providing valuable contacts for the College.
Goal 3 – Developing stronger communities and regions
The Directorate provided executive officer support for an inter-agency examination of the need for a skills development
strategy to support anticipated growth in the defence industry over the next decade and it participated in running a survey
of the skilling needs of WA companies involved in the defence industry.
Goal 4 – Generation of revenue from commercial training and related services

The New Apprenticeship Centre under contract to the Chamber of Commerce and Industry maintained revenue of over
$170,000 in 2005.
The contract with ASC Pty Ltd to provide staff for the Navy’s submarine training centre ceased on 30 June and was replaced
with a new 5 year contract on 1 July. The new contract is for fewer staff but substantially increased profitability.
Examples of the assistance provided to Training Centres included:
• assisted the Centre for Leadership and Community Development and the WA Horticulture and Environmental Science
Skills Centre in building a partnership with National Centre for Sustainability
• assisted the Horticulture Centre and the Wool Technology Training Centre with:
o Water Corporation Trainee program management and services agreements
o ChemCert alliance for chemicals training
o WAFF Shearers and Shed Hands training contract
o CALM mentoring and AQTF auspicing for Bush Ranger program
• provided support and advice in establishing international training services contracts and relationships in Vietnam,
Mauritius, India, Iran , Kenya, and the Middle East
• Assisted the Australian Centre for Energy and Process Training with the Qatar Contract
• Assisted Defence and Resources with the preparation of quotes for work for Austal Shipbuilding

C h a l l e n g e r TA F E – A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 0 5

The college expanded its fee-for-service activity in 2005, generating in excess of $6 million in revenue. This outcome
compares favourably with the $5.3 million revenue generated in 2004.
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The Directorate continued to strengthen the College's commercial and community networks by attendance at business
briefings and seminars and by representing the College in important forums such as:
• Fremantle Chamber of Commerce
• South Coast Regional Chambers of Commerce
• Australian Industry Defence Network
• South West Coastal Development and Employment Foundation
The Directorate planned and conducted tours for the:
• Kenyan National Training Council
• Woodside Mauritanian Engineers
• BlueSeas Oil and Gas Vietnam
• International student agents from India
International activity continued with contracts in Mauritius and Qatar.
Activity in India was subdued and a review of the strategy has taken place.
In 2005 the Directorate’s also:
• established or supported national partnerships to bid for national training projects including the Navy Technical
Training contract and a project in Kuwait
• assisted TRD in submitting tender bids – one success was with a contract gained to provide Competency Mapping of
Marine Engineering Qualifications for the Australian Royal Navy
• assisted the ADU to establish an agreement for profit-sharing in a joint invention called SIFTS – this system enables
the intensive growing of fish in saline inland waters and it has the potential to significantly benefit farmers with saltaffected land
• assisted the ADU to establish commercial licensing agreements to operate small commercial aquaculture businesses
and research within Challenger TAFE’s premises
• supported WAMTC in its negotiations for a franchising agreement to deliver ROV training accredited by an English
company
• connected the College with a new funding program for the defence industry called Skilling Australia's Defence Industry
(SADI)
Goal 5 - Providing high quality training products and services in a responsive and timely manner
The Directorate boosted the College's capacity to tender for commercial work by producing a tender support package – a
‘user guide’ for all Centres and Directorates in the College
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Goal 6 - Excellence in support services
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The Directorate:
• developed new commercial procedures to improve the decision-making and recording processes associated with
taking on commercial work
• updated and improved the College's commercial contracts and its Quality System procedures
• continued to support the College’s Centres of Specialisation obtain and deliver government funded and, fee-for-service
training, as well as other related commercial work and management of the risks associated with commercial activity.
Goal 8 – Developing an operationally innovative and agile working environment to optimise new
opportunities
•

The Directorate completed a paper canvassing powers under the Act to enter into business arrangements.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT IN 2006
The College is expanding its government funded training in 2006 and the challenge will be to maintain the growth in feefor-service work.
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10.4 BUSINESS SERVICES
INTRODUCTION
The primary focus of Business Services is to strategically and operationally support Challenger TAFE’s core business of
providing training delivery services. In 2005 Business Services continued to regularly review policies and procedures and to
develop and implement new systems to enable the College to achieve its goals. The Directorate is also an active participant
in TAFEWA’s Corporate Services Network, developing the State Government’s shared services strategy.
The Directorate has overall responsibility for the functional areas relating to:
• Finance
• Human Resources Management and Development
• Information Systems
• Assets and Facilities Development
• Records Management.
Activities relating to occupational health and safety, workforce professional development, equity outcomes and staff profile
are reported elsewhere in this documentation.
OUTCOMES FOR 2005
Goal 3 – Contributing to the development of sustainable communities, industries and regions
•

The Business Services Directorate facilitated implementation of the Challenger TAFE Sustainability Action Plan.

Goal 6 – Excellence in support services
The Directorate:
• managed the installation of scanners to record incoming correspondence at all major campuses
• prepared for the roll-out of proposed increase in bandwidth capacity across the College’s internet/intranet system
• undertook a review of the college’s Recruitment Selection and Appointment processes and documentation
• maintained a watching brief on major capital works projects for the Challenger TAFE WA Maritime Training Centre,
Fremantle, Kwinana Automotive Centre and the Australian Centre for Energy and Process Training
• continued implementation of the On-Line Business Strategy including: installation of the new software for the Network
Operating System.
Goal 7 – Developing a highly skilled, innovative and motivated workforce
The Directorate implemented the Challenger TAFE Workforce Management Strategy and the Employer of Choice program.

WA Maritime Training Centre – Fremantle Development Stage 2 – Fleet Street Precinct – construction was completed and
hand-over for occupation took place in early September 2005, followed by the official opening on 15 November. The final
cost of the project is $8.477 of which Challenger TAFE contributed $650,000.
The Australian Centre for Energy and Process Training Marine Industry Technology Precinct at Henderson – the budget has
been set at $17.5m, project managers Neil Stevens Project Management, architects JCY (Jones Coulter Young) and the subconsultant team have all been appointed. The land acquisition was finalised in November 2005 at a cost of $1.4m. A tender
for the forward earth works and siteworks were to commence by December 2005. Documentation for the main contract is
planned to be completed and tendered in January 2006, with an anticipated completion date of December 2006. The new
Centre is to commence operations in Feb 2007.
$10m has been allocated to the Kwinana Automotive Centre – Kwinana Education and Training Precinct project, which is
designed to provide technical industry skills to Precinct students. The site is on the corner of Gilmore and Sulphur Roads
in Kwinana and is already owned by the Department of Education and Training. Peter Hunt Architects in association with
Ian Wilkes Architects have been appointed and are developing concept documentation.
The Directorate has undertaken a rationalisation of computer laboratory resources based on utilisation
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Goal 8 – Developing the organisational agility to optimise new opportunities
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BUSINESS SERVICES DIVISION IN 2006
The following activities will form the core of Business Services work for 2006:
• implementation of the Challenger TAFE Sustainability Action Plan;
• implementation of the Workforce Management Strategy
• implementation of the Risk Management Program
• exercising a watching brief on the major capital works programs projects involving, Kwinana Automotive Centre and
the Australian Centre for Energy and Process Training
• Coordinating the College roll-out of IP Telephony
• re-engineering Finance and Human Resources functions in response to the implementation of Shared Services
• implementation of assets management.

10.5 DIVERSE CLIENT GROUPS
INTRODUCTION
The Diversity and Community Development Section plays a vital role in delivering access and bridging programs for
disadvantaged clients, including women, Indigenous people, youth at risk, people with disabilities, mature-aged
unemployed and people of culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds. A large proportion of graduates from these
bridging programs continue with further studies, both within and outside the College. Other programs delivered by the
Section include: qualifications from the Visual Arts, Craft and Design training package for Indigenous and mainstream
clients and vocational programs for Indigenous clients, including Aboriginal Tourism, and Aboriginal Family Health &
Wellbeing. In 2005, Diversity and Community Development programs were delivered on all major campuses. In addition,
programs are also delivered at community facilities, for example the Winjan Aboriginal Community Centre in Peel, the Lady
Gowrie Centre in Willagee, Hilton PCYC and Rockingham Station Street Youth Centre.
OUTCOMES FOR 2005
Goal 1 – Training to deliver a skilled workforce
In 2005, the Diversity and Community Development Section delivered 113,000 Student Curriculum Hours of literacy and
numeracy programs. These courses continue to provide vital training which underpins all further skills development.
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The Section also delivered courses that focus on specific vocational skills areas. These included Indigenous specific courses
in the areas of Tourism and Family Health & Well Being, as well as Visual Arts programs for both mainstream and
Indigenous clients. The Certificate I in Workplace Readiness was delivered at Fremantle, Rockingham and Peel campuses
for 4 groups of Year 10 Aboriginal School-based trainees. This program, delivered in partnership with South Metropolitan
Youth Link, schools and Employment and Vocational Education Coordination Units, plays a valuable role in increasing
retention of Year 10 Aboriginal students into further education, training or employment.
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Goal 2 – Promoting life-long learning
The Section delivered 122,000 of targeted Bridging Programs which provide access to further education and employment.
One of the most popular courses was the Course in Gaining Access to Training and Education (GATE). This course and/or
the introductory version of GATE is currently being delivered to Indigenous groups, men’s groups, youth at risk and people
with a disability.
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Goal 3 – Contributing to the development of sustainable communities, industries and regions
The Section delivers real opportunities for community members by ensuring that the College’s programs are in step with
local initiatives. To that end, the Section works in close partnership with local communities and agencies.
Partnerships with youth agencies and local council youth services have been strong components of all youth programs. In
Rockingham a major part of the delivery took place at the Council run Station Street Youth Centre ,while in Fremantle,
students completed hands-on learning at the Hilton Police and Citizens Youth Club premises. Partnerships with a very wide
range of community agencies, have contributed to the excellent enrolment levels and good outcomes for participants in all
diversity programs.
The Diversity and Community Development Section has continued to make a strong contribution in the area of Indigenous
cultural sustainability through its tourism and art programs. Fremantle and Mandurah tourism programs have enabled
students to conduct cultural tours, participate in community events and undertake field visits to gain knowledge of regional
cultural tourism operations. Students of the Aboriginal Art program have participated in many exhibition opportunities and
community initiatives which have supported them on the pathway to becoming self-employed artists. Both programs have
stimulated community enterprise and provided potential for long-term employment.
Goal 5 – Providing high quality training products and services
The Section was successful in winning funds to deliver a national e-learning project for people with a disability. It was one
of only eight national projects funded during 2005. The project allowed lecturing staff to trial a wide range of innovative elearning strategies across the range of disability programs running in the College. Project outcomes were showcased at a
national gathering in Melbourne in December 2005.
Goal 8 – Developing a safe, supportive and flexible working environment

2006 and Beyond
The Diversity and Community Development Section is a large and complex Section, involving an extensive and diverse
range of programs and projects across five campuses and numerous community locations. Non-profile activities have
increased markedly over the years, with resultant work demands relating to program start-up, implementation, monitoring
and reporting.
Challenges for the Section to address include:
• managing a very large pool of permanent, contract and casual lecturers to meet diverse teaching requirements
• increasing participation and outcomes for students in Indigenous programs
• implementing programs and strategies to meet additional demand and needs resulting from the increase in the
school-leaving age
• developing innovative programs to support participation and outcomes for disadvantaged clients in mainstream
courses
• seeking additional sources of funding for new programs, increasing the range of programs delivered, and the number
of community partnership arrangements
• continuing to respond to the needs of the wide range of disadvantaged groups at different locations.
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The Section responded to the evolving needs of client groups by identifying and arranging appropriate learning
environments and facilities. This year was a challenging year for visual arts programs with the introduction of a new national
training package in 2005 across both mainstream and indigenous programs. In line with this, consultations took place and
a decision was made to relocate the indigenous program from leased industrial premises in Medina to Rockingham
campus. The move, which will occur early in 2006, will allow for enhanced alignment of mainstream and indigenous
programs, as well as improved access to College facilities and services by Indigenous Art students.
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10.6 ACCESS AND EQUITY STANDARD
211 092 SCH of the college’s total delivery meets the requirement of the Access and Equity Standard. Identified groups that
received specially designed programs in 2005 included:
• mature aged men and women seeking employment skills and improved skills for participating in the community
• people with a disability seeking employment skills and improved skills for participating in the community
• young people deemed to be at risk of leaving school or being unemployed for lengthy periods
• young people with a disability attained employment-related skills at an achievable pace
• young pregnant teenagers and young mothers continuing their schooling.

10.7 FREMANTLE PEEL EDUCATION DISTRICT YOUTH PROGRAMS
In 2005 three pilot programs were implemented for the Youth Advantage Strategy:
• Fremantle inVENTED program for young people in school
• New Pathways program for transition from school to TAFE and employment for young students with a disability in
Rockingham and Fremantle
• mentoring program for indigenous and other young people in Peel.

10.8 SUPPORTING PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES
Strategies to put in place the accommodation needs of people with disabilities. They include:
• adaptive technology (large key boards, closed-circuit scanners, height adjustable desks) have been purchased to enable
services to be adapted to meet the needs of people with disabilities
• classroom accessibility by ramp or lift and installation of rails, where necessary
• print materials on Disability Services are in large text format and appropriately formatted
• a full-time Disability Services Manager is available to all students;
• students with disabilities play an active role on College committees
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Complaints Handling
Trend Analysis for complaints lodged with Challenger TAFE is located in Chapter 8.15
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11.1 WORK WITH BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY TO REDUCE SKILL SHORTAGES AND ALIGN
OUTCOMES TO MEET FUTURE INDUSTRY NEEDS
Develop and implement programs to expand and increase the flexibility of apprenticeships and traineeships.
Increase Fast Track program enrolments by 20 students by December 2005 -2005/06
Target 33 (an increase of 21 students)
Actual 63 (an increase of 30 students)
Increase market share of apprenticeship training in TAFEWA colleges
Develop and implement programs to meet the needs of high priority industry sectors with special skills needs.
Increase Apprenticeships and Traineeships from a base of 1,817 in the June quarter 2004 to 2 070 by June 2009 with an
emphasis on apprenticeships in traditional trades in the initial years 2005/06
Target 1 844 (1.5% increase on 2004 actual)
Actual 2 117 (16.4% increase on 2004 actual)

11.2 INCREASED NUMBERS OF INDIGENOUS STUDENTS IN EMPLOYMENT-BASED
QUALIFICATIONS
Increase number of Indigenous students enrolled in employment-related qualifications Certificate III and above from a base
of 206 in 2004 to 331 by 2009 2005/06
Target 206
Actual 224 (8.7% increase)

11.3 PROVIDE STRONG LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVE GOVERNANCE
Work with Department of Education and Training to assist in meeting other State Government training commitments.
Provide strong leadership and effective governance by:
• achieving level of expenditure consistent with estimates provided by College under section 42 of the Financial
Administration and Audit Act 1985 -

• meeting Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA) targets for effective delivery of training to students and industry Target 100% of DPA contract delivered
Actual 100% of DPA contract delivered
• leading academic delivery to improve outcomes for students and increase student satisfaction rate by 1% in 2005 Target 83.2% (a one percent increase on the 2004 outcome of 82.2%)
Actual 84% (0.8% above the one percentage point improvement sought)
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Target
Actual
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11.4 ENSURE A CAPABLE AND EQUIPPED WORKFORCE
Ensure a capable and equipped workforce to counter an ageing demographic and meet future challenges of the Department
by:
• developing annual performance management statements for all senior College staff by December 2005 2005/06
Target all Senior staff
Actual all Senior staff
•

identifying lecturers’ skills gaps and developing and implementing programs to up-skill as required by ensuring all new
and existing TAFEWA permanent and contract lecturers, as a minimum, hold a Certificate IV in Training and Assessment
or equivalent 2005/06
Target 21 existing lecturers not holding Certificate IV in Training and Assessment to be up-skilled by December 2006
Actual to be reported in 2006
Improve pathways and choices for students by:
• implementing the Western Australian Certificate of Education requirements through cooperative delivery of VET for
Schools program Target No specific target supplied
This target will be clarified once the policies and processes have been formulated.
Actual The VET for Schools (VETfS) program experienced further increases in 2005 – with more than 40 schools using
Challenger TAFE training and related services.
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•
•
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achieving targets, as set out in the District Education Training Plan for 2005 – Youth Strategy
Outcomes for 2005 are reported at 10.7
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NOTE: Industry Training Centres have reported on Goals relevant to their activities. In some instances particular goals will
therefore not addressed by some Centres in their reporting.

12.1 FREMANTLE HOSPITALITY & TOURISM TRAINING CENTRE
INTRODUCTION
The 2005 academic year for the Fremantle Hospitality and Tourism Training Centre was very successful in terms of delivery
and input from both staff and students. The Centre currently provides training in hospitality operations, supervision in food
and beverage, accommodation services, commercial cookery, hospitality management and tourism, Vocational Education
and Training in Schools (VETiS) and a wide range of short courses.
The Centre delivered over 270,000 Student Curriculum Hours in state contracted and commercial courses. There has been
a significant increase in international students, especially in commercial cookery. The short courses in Bar Service, Coffee
Making and Provide Service of Alcohol have been popular. This year the Centre has also trained over one hundred
Commercial Cookery apprentices – a continuation of the upward trend in the last two years.
The Centre delivered courses at Fremantle and Peel Campuses, as well as the new live work venue of Quinlan’s Bar in
Fremantle.
Hospitality has also achieved the following successes in 2005:
• winner of the WA WorldSkill Commercial Cookery competition – Food & Beverage students showcased their skills at a
Hyatt Regency Perth Gala dinner with the honour of Maitre D going to a Challenger student
• Commercial Cookery students introduced an innovative food menu at Quinlan’s Bar for Term Four, the Bar was
showcased in WA Tourism Awards and an innovative trial program format featured a solo performance by a young
English actor
• successful delivery of the inaugural School Apprentice Link Pilot – “Family of Trades” and conducted a hospitality skills
workshop for 16 VET in Schools teachers to update their knowledge and skills.
Goal 1 – Training to develop a skilled workforce

2005 Outcomes for Hospitality and Tourism for Goal 1
• successful meetings with the new Industry Advisory Committee, to discuss ways to best meet industry needs
• delivered training program for School Apprenticeship Link (SAL) – Commercial Cookery
• improved response time to industry requests for apprenticeships and traineeships
• representation on Curriculum Advisory Group meetings
• continued to promote and support apprenticeship and traineeship opportunities
• joint venture training delivery and marketing across the Division
• expanded ‘live work’ activities and project based learning approaches
• maintained strong communication links with Fremantle/Peel and Kwinana Industries Education Partnership and
Fremantle Peel District Education Office.
Goal 2 – Promoting life-long learning
Key Result Area: Provision of training for individuals to meet changing personal circumstances & career objectives
2005 Outcomes for Hospitality and Tourism for Goal 2:
• strengthened auspicing agreements to facilitate quality VETiS programs and articulation into TAFE courses
• increased the range and delivery of accredited training courses on a fee-for-service basis
• conducted and participated in Hospitality and Tourism industry events, special evenings, student competitions
involving industry
• continued promotion & support for lecturing staff in implementing a flexible learning environment using real workplace
tasks and a more holistic project-based approach.
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Key Result Area: Provision of a broad range of training for labour market entrants & workers seeking to further develop their skills
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Goal 3 – Contributing to the Development of sustainable communities, industries & regions
Key Result Area: Sustainable outcomes for WA by collaborating with community & regional organisations in providing
training & services
2005 Outcomes for Hospitality and Tourism for Goal 3:
• increased off-site delivery at Quinlan’s Bar
• held two functions to thank industry for their assistance with work placement training and assessments
• skills recognition for participants in areas such as Events Management based on recognition of current competencies
Goal 4 – Developing Commercial Products to meet state, national & international demands for training &
related services
Key Result Area: Generation of revenue from commercial training & related services
2005 Outcomes for Hospitality and Tourism for Goal 4:
• promotion of the facilities and the capacity of the Hospitality & Tourism Centre when international agents visit the
College
• expanded marketing of short courses with the development and dissemination of a new brochure for marketing
• increased the quantity of training for international students.
• lodged a Competitive Allocation of Training tender in Certificate III Hospitality for Indigenous.
Goal 5 – Providing high quality training products & services
Key Result Area: Industry, community & individual clients recognise the quality, timeliness & responsiveness of our training
delivery & our related products & services
2005 Outcomes for Hospitality and Tourism for Goal 5:
• continued to build a culture of continuous improvement through Australian Quality Training Framework (AQTF)
implementation
• successful AQTF audit
• increased skills recognition uptake & delivery
• continued to improve the physical learning environment to facilitate positive learning outcomes.
Goal 6 – Developing a culture of excellence in the delivery of support services to our clients
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Key Result Area: Students & staff are given the level of support necessary for them to achieve a positive learning outcome
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2005 Outcomes for Hospitality and Tourism for Goal 6:
• provided student induction programs, including a CD Rom with relevant course information, consistent with the
AQTF standards
• reviewed ‘live work’ machinery & equipment maintenance plans to ensure currency & validity
• applied course evaluation feedback & customer comment forms to monitor how successfully student needs were being met.
Goal 7 – Developing a highly skilled, innovative & motivated workforce
Key Result Area: Staff have the skills they need to deliver a high quality, responsive service
2005 Outcomes for Hospitality and Tourism for Goal 7:
• used the Challenger Development and Performance Management System to ascertain lecturer development
requirements
• the Centre was well represented at relevant Curriculum Advisory Group meetings, - both Chairpersons are from the
Challenger team
• increased attendance of lecturers at professional development courses.
Goal 8 – Developing an operationally innovative & agile working environment to optimise new
opportunities
Key Result Area: The work environment facilitates productivity & promotes the quality & timeliness of our service delivery
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2005 Outcomes for Hospitality and Tourism for Goal 8:
• launched an innovative approach to preparing students to work in this challenging area
• commenced planning for a new application for Competitive Allocation of Training program funds for training in 2006
• started flexible delivery of Hospitality & Tourism courses at the Peel campus, for industry employees.

12.2 COMMUNITY & HEALTH SERVICES TRAINING CENTRE
INTRODUCTION
The Community and Health Services Training Centre once again recorded a high level of achievement in 2005, delivering
over 300,000 Student Curriculum Hours, achieving 104 percent of delivery targets and training over 500 students in a
number of community and health services qualifications. All students were assessed in the workplace, during an industry
placement organised by the Community Services lecturing team.
Highlights for 2005 included:
• the launch of a ‘virtual nursery’ to enhance the training of childcare students
• successful completion of an Australians Working Together tender, providing training in the Certificate II in First Point
of Contact, for people with disabilities
• a very successful first year for the Aged Care/Nursing Career Combo at Peel, with a Combo student gaining the top
marks in the Murdoch University first year clinical nursing unit. The graduates of the Combo course will work in the
aged care industry in the Peel region, while studying for a degree in nursing at the Murdoch University Peel campus
• development of a new Teacher Assistant/Primary Teaching Career Combo, to start at Challenger TAFE Rockingham
Campus in 2006
• Premier's Teacher of the Year Award 2005 finalist lecturer Dr Suzette Thompson Community & Health Services
Training Centre
• WA Fitness Trainer of the Year Margaret Anderson, a Challenger Fitness Lecturer.
Goal 1 – Training to develop a skilled workforce
Key Result Area: Provision of a broad range of training for labour market entrants & workers seeking to further develop their
skills
2005 Outcomes for Community Services & Health Goal 1:
• conducted successful meetings with the new and larger Industry Advisory Committee, to discuss ways to best meet
industry needs
• all Community Services courses were restructured to incorporate a workplace evidence requirement
• participated in the Challenger Rockingham Campus open day for local schools.

Key Result Area: Provision of training for individuals to meet changing personal circumstances & career objectives
2005 Outcomes for Community Services & Health Goal 2:
• developed and delivered a very successful new Aged Care/Nursing Career Combo program in the Peel region
• developed a Teacher Assistant/Primary Teaching Career Combo, to start at Rockingham in 2006
• auspiced two high schools for the Certificate II in Community Services
Goal 3 – Contributing to the Development of sustainable communities, industries & regions
Key Result Area: Sustainable outcomes for WA by collaborating with community & regional organisations in providing
training & services
2005 Outcomes for Community Services & Health Goal 3:
• developed and delivered a Certificate II in First Point of Contact (for people with disabilities) – most students obtained
paid work, either as a trainee or regular employee
• held two functions to thank industry for their assistance with work placement.
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Goal 2 – Promoting life-long learning
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Goal 4 – Developing Commercial Products to meet state, national & international demands for training &
related services
Key Result Area: Generation of revenue from commercial training & related services
2005 Outcomes for Community Services & Health Goal 4:
• promoted the facilities and the capacity of the Industry Training Centre when international agents visited the College
• delivered mentoring training for the Cockburn City Council
• marketed a new training product, Existing Worker Traineeship
• trained international students in Children’s Services, Teacher Assistant, Community Service Work, and Community
Welfare work.
• completed an Australians Working Together (AWT) tender in Certificate II in First Point of Contact.
Goal 5 – Providing high quality training products & services in a responsive & timely manner
Key Result Area: Industry, community & individual clients recognise the quality, timeliness & responsiveness of our training
delivery & our related products & services
2005 Outcomes for Community Services & Health Goal 5:
• continued to build a culture of continuous improvement through Australian Quality Training Framework
implementation
• successful Australian Quality Training Framework audit
• increased skills recognition uptake & delivery
• all Community Services courses were restructured to incorporate a workplace evidence requirement.
Goal 6 – Developing a culture of excellence in the delivery of support services to our clients
Key Result Area: Students & staff are given the level of support necessary for them to achieve a positive learning outcome
2005 Outcomes for Community Services & Health Goal 6:
• all students were allocated a student support lecturer who formed their first point of contact for issues and concerns
• student support lecturers were given responsibility for counselling students intending to withdraw from study
• course evaluation feedback & customer comment forms were used for monitoring how effectively student needs are
being met.
Goal 7 – Developing a highly skilled, innovative & motivated workforce
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Key Result Area: Staff have the skills they need to deliver a high quality, responsive service
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2005 Outcomes for Community Services & Health Goal 7:
• used the Challenger TAFE Development and Performance Management System to ascertain lecturer development
requirements
• the Centre was well represented at relevant Curriculum Advisory Group meetings, - both Chairpersons are from the
Challenger Community Services team
• increased attendance of lecturers at professional development courses, including sessions on ‘instructional
intelligence’
• shared team expertise by providing presentations at the ‘Octoberfest’ professional development sessions for staff in
other areas.
Goal 8 – Developing an operationally innovative & agile working environment to optimise new
opportunities
Key Result Area: The work environment facilitates productivity & promotes the quality & timeliness of our service delivery
2005 Outcomes for Community Services & Health Goal 8:
• launched a ‘virtual nursery’ for training in child care - this proved to be an innovative approach to preparing students
to work in this challenging area
• started planning a new ‘model’ for the aged care equipment suite for training students in aged care off-the-job in 2006
• started flexible delivery of Children’s Services courses at the Peel campus, for industry employees.
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12.3 VISAGE TRAINING CENTRE FOR HAIR FASHION & BEAUTY
INTRODUCTION
The Visage Training Centre for Hair, Fashion and Beauty delivers training in Hairdressing, Fashion and Design and Beauty Therapy.
This year has seen the inclusion of Health and Fitness and Remedial Massage to the Visage Section. Visage staff worked
collaboratively across the five industry areas, with Fremantle Campus as the primary training delivery site. Beauty trainees, however,
are located in Perth, Fremantle, Peel, Kalgoorlie and Esperance. Beauty very successfully continued fee-for-service courses and
increased student to client services through live-work in the Beauty and Massage Clinics. Live work places were completely booked
out due to the extremely successful Cliff Street Beauty and Massage Clinic in central Fremantle.
In Hairdressing, the focus was on apprentice studies with some short courses offered for re-training in men’s hairdressing
and long hair styling. The Centre’s staff are developing the implementation kit for the new Hairdressing training package
and are the project developers for the Hairdressing delivery schedules and Learning and Assessment Strategy for all RTO’s
in WA. The number of apprentices has increased and the Centre currently has 206 from stage 1A through to 3B.
The focus for Fashion Design was on work-ready operatives for the fashion industry and designing uniforms for the Beauty
students and lecturers, Hospitality front of house staff, as well as for Quinlan’s Bar. Beauty Therapy training focused on
work-ready specialists in electrolysis, massage, advanced facial procedures with electrical equipment, makeup, nail
technology and other areas.

The Centre has also achieved the following in 2005:
• increased the scope of delivery in Beauty Therapies
• coordinated student-centred and College fashion shows
• increased the component of client services through live-work in the Beauty Clinics
• worked collaboratively across the five industry areas within Visage
• developed an implementation kit for the new Hairdressing Training Package
• increased the number of fee-for-service courses in Beauty
• Business Attraction funds were used to develop fee-for-service courses in Mandurah commencing in 2006, as well as
the Certificate II in Modelling which will also commence in 2006
• the Beauty staff in co-operation with Kadadjiny Mia- Centre for Aboriginal Learning was successful in winning a
Competitive Allocation of Training tender to deliver Certificate II in Nail Technology for Indigenous students which will
commence in 2006
• the Program Manager, Chair of the Wholesale Retail and Personal Services Curriculum Services and Support Network,
attended the inaugural Service Skills conference in Sydney in September 2005
• Beauty and Hairdressing lecturers attended an International Beauty and Hair Expo in Bologna in Italy in April 2005
• staff member Margaret Anderson won the W.A. Fitness Leader of the Year Award
• staff member Carolyn O’Connor was a first round winner in the Premier’s Teacher of the Year Award.
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The Centre delivered 232 884 Student Curriculum Hours (SCH) in 2005 compared with 134 155 SCHin 2004, an increase of
57%, with ‘over-profile’ target achievements in Beauty and Hairdressing and Health and Fitness. Beauty once again was
involved in a very successful Youth at Risk Program for the South Peel sub-regions and increased delivery in VET for Schools
(VETfS) program in Fremantle and Peel.
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Goal 1 – Training to deliver a skilled workforce
Key Result Area: Provision of a broad range of training for labour market entrants & workers seeking to further develop their
skills
2005 Outcomes for Visage Goal 1:
• delivered over 232,884 student contact hours in Hairdressing, Beauty, Fashion Fitness and remedial massage
qualifications
• training 211 apprentices in hairdressing which is a significant increase from 2004
• training 15 Trainees in Certificate III in Beauty which is a very successful program
• Prospects of employment are excellent for the majority of students, many of whom were offered work on the basis of
their field placement, successfully operating in the Visage Beauty Clinic at Fremantle and were subsequently employed
in beauty salons before they completed their courses
• articulation into university courses is now available for Beauty students who have completed qualifications at
Certificate IV or Diploma levels
• developed fee-for-service training for the Certificate II in Nail Technology, Make-up Artistry and Retail Cosmetic
Assistant. The popularity of the courses exceeded all expectations and the number of courses delivered was doubled to
meet the demand from students.
Goal 2 – Promoting life-long learning
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Key Result Area: Provision of training for individuals to meet changing personal circumstances & career objectives
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2005 Outcomes for Visage Goal 2:
• the Hairdressing staff attended the international Beauty Expo in Sydney in September 2005, where they attended
seminars in the latest techniques and technologies in Hairdressing.
• Beauty and Hairdressing lecturers attended an International Beauty and Hair Expo in Bologna in Italy in April 2005,
where they attended seminars and exhibits on an International level and sourced new products, services and trends
to assist with the future planning for Beauty and Hair
• Massage lecturers attended the Inaugural Conference of the Australian Association of Masseurs in Canberra May 2005
• Beauty staff attended many training seminars conducted by the International Dermal Institute.
• Fashion staff attended the World Fashion Expo in London and Paris in January 2004
• Hairdressing staff attended new product launches and training on new colour techniques in October
• Beauty and Massage staff and students very successfully operated the Visage Health and Beauty Clinic at Cliff Street
in Fremantle in it’s second year of operation
• Massage staff attended an inaugural conference for the Australian Association of Massage Therapists held in Canberra
in May
• short courses offered in Beauty , Swedish Massage and Aromatherapy were very popular
• work placement was further developed as an integral part of the learning in all areas in Visage
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Goal 3 – Contributing to the development of sustainable communities, industries and regions
Key Result Area: Sustainable outcomes for WA by collaborating with community & regional organisations in providing
training & services
2005 Outcomes for Visage Goal 3:
• Beauty Therapy and Massage students provided nail painting and hand care to the participants at the Career Expo
Burswood, enabling them to informally advise potential students on the courses. The demand was extremely high and
the students gained valuable experience in developing their skills
• ‘Try a Trade’ was a popular booth at the Career Expo Burswood, where Fashion and Hairdressing staff and students
encouraged participants to engage in activities relating to Fashion and Hairdressing
• Remedial Massage students participated by performing massage at the following events places:
o Student Clinic run at Cliff St – low cost massage for the community.
o RAC Staff Development Day
o Fremantle Masters Games
o East Fremantle Festival
o Belmont Make a Wish Fundraising Event
o Shenton Park Rehabilitation Centre
o Rocky Bay Disability Centre.
Goal 4 – Developing commercial products to meet state, national and international demands for training and related services
Key Result Area: Generation of revenue from commercial training & related services
2005 Outcomes for Visage Goal 4:
• showcasing of Visage to many international delegates throughout 2005
• Challenger TAFE’s model was chosen for customising the Massage units of competence in the Diploma of Remedial
Massage, to accommodate industry needs.
Goal 5 – Providing high quality training products and services

2005 Outcomes for Visage Goal 5:
• Remedial Massage Workshop November 9th 2005 - students participated in a one day workshop, which aimed to
develop interest in areas outside but related to the massage industry.
• all staff attended many professional development sessions throughout the yea,r especially in relation to Australian
Quality Training Framework compliance
• staff from Beauty, Hairdressing and Fitness were involved in the Australian Quality Training Framework and International
Standards Organisation (ISO) audits with Beauty being given a best-practice award from the auditors for the Cliff Street Clinic
• a high proportion of staff were active in industry and curriculum forums.
Goal 6 – Developing a culture of excellence in the delivery of support services to our clients
Key Result Area: Students & staff are given the level of support necessary for them to achieve a positive learning outcome
2005 Outcomes for Visage Goal 5:
• developed a comprehensive new range of marketing brochures for Visage.
• developed exciting new brochures for short courses in Beauty, Hairdressing and Remedial Massage
• Beauty and Massage staff and students very successfully operated an interactive booth at the Careers Expo at
Burswood
• Beauty staff and students very successfully operated an interactive booth at Kadadjiny Mia,as part of the Kwinana
Industries Education Project Careers Expo
• provided student support service for the Remedial Massage and Fitness students.
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Key Result Area: Industry, community & individual clients recognise the quality, timeliness & responsiveness of our training
delivery & our related products & services
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Goal 7 – Developing a highly skilled and motivated workforce
Key Result Area: Staff have the skills they need to deliver a high quality, responsive service
2005 Outcomes for Visage Goal 7:
• Hairdressing undertook a curriculum network funded project to develop delivery schedules, assessment plans and
tools for the Certificate III of Hairdressing for all TAFE Colleges and Private Registered Training Organisations in W.A.
All of these resources will be uploaded into WebCT.
• Hairdressing undertook a curriculum network funded project, developing a Learning and Assessment Strategy for the
new Hairdressing Training Package, in collaboration with the Great Southern and Central West Colleges of TAFE which
will be made available for all TAFE Colleges and private Registered Training Organisations in W.A.
• Beauty undertook a curriculum network funded project to identify the job outcomes for the Beauty students and liaise
with employers to identify their needs in relation to the skill shortages in Beauty.
• Hairdressing established a Resource Manual to accompany the new Hairdressing Training Package
• Students participated in a one day Remedial Massage Workshop which aimed to develop interest in areas outside but
related to the massage industry.
Goal 8 - Developing the organisational agility to optimise new opportunities
Key Result Area: The work environment facilitates productivity & promotes the quality & timeliness of our service delivery
2005 Outcomes for Visage Goal 8:
• currently developing industry-focused courses for the Certificate III in Fitness for Christmas Island
• currently developing a fee-for-service Diploma of Beauty Therapy to be delivered on the Fremantle Campus as a
replacement for the publicly funded Diploma that has been discontinued
• currently developing Spa and Sauna courses for a hotel group in Hong Kong
• conducted an information session regarding career and articulation opportunities for graduating students in Remedial
Massage.

12.4 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND BUSINESS SKILLS CENTRE
INTRODUCTION
Highlights for the IT and Business Division for 2005 include an 83% increase in non-profile enrolments from 2004 to 2005,
with a 21% increase in VET for Schools enrolments and implementation of a very successful commercial IT and Business
training contract in Mauritius.

C h a l l e n g e r TA F E – A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 0 5

Through this work and a successful grant to research overseas training projects, fee-for-service revenue has increased by
30% for the year, while revenue from government funded training has remained fairly constant.
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For government funded training, the Division faced a highly competitive training market with jobs aplenty and universities
lowering entrance scores to attract a greater proportion of the IT student pool. Despite the competition, the IT and Business
Skills Centre has held its market share of funded training and has followed through on some emerging opportunities. New
products developed include, courses in Website Design and Management at Peel (Mandurah); Financial Services
Traineeships in the workplace;a Fremantle e-Tech flexible delivery in Management and Marketing offered as an evening
course at Fremantle e-Tech; and expansion of workplace-based retail training from the Certificate II through to the Diploma.
The Division has continued to expand its growth in the Peel Region, including the outlying towns. Staff have received an
unprecedented range of professional development, necessary for gaining the new skills required for them to stay at the
forefront of their respective industries. Significant new facilities have been acquired in the areas of wireless technologies
for computer networking and for mobile computing technologies.

CHAPTER 12

Output Reports

Goal 1 – Training to deliver a skilled workforce
Key Result Area: Provision of a broad range of training for labour market entrants & workers seeking to further develop their
skills

FREMANTLE E-TECH CENTRE:
• offered drop-in, flexible delivery classes in both Business and IT with four night and four day sessions per week
• increased fee-for-service activity, such as room hire, internet access, photocopying, and the provision of other office
solutions and business services
• strengthened business arrangements with Maxwell Geo Services, Panduit, Power Business Systems and Formation
Design Systems to enable these organisations to deliver industry specific training for their internal clients
• offered a range of flexible Marketing and Management Certificates and Diplomas on a project basis at night, for those
already in the workforce
• moved part-time Accounting classes from Beaconsfield to e-Tech and offered a broad range of units in flexible mode
• offered new IT industry update courses in Networking and Computer Security.
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2005 outcomes for the IT and Business Division Goal 1:
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND BUSINESS SKILLS CENTRE
• the IT and Business Division met delivery targets for the year which is an excellent result given the downturn in IT
enrolments Australia wide and the strong competition from the University Sector which had unfilled places in both the
IT and Business areas.
• Non-profile or fee-for-service enrolments more than doubled to 252,000 Student Curriculum Hours in 2005
• both VET in Schools auspicing and overseas student enrolments reached record levels in IT and Business
• a specialist retail trainer and workplace assessor was appointed at the beginning of the year and retail traineeship
enrolments have grown as a result of this appointment
• the College’s approved scope of training was expanded to enable delivery of Retail Supervision and Retail Management
to Cert IV and Diploma level in the workplace
• the Certificate IV in Website Design and Administration was run for the first time at Peel with good industry support
and student uptake
• a new Traineeship in Website Design was added to the College scope and offered for the first time
• the Division researched and purchased a range of new technology wireless equipment to expand IT delivery into
wireless networking and supported two staff who are nearing completion of accreditation for delivery of wireless
training.
• negotiations opened with Alphawest to deliver wireless training and to provide skills recognition in a wide range of IT
disciplines
• staff were prepared for implementation of the new ICT Training Package in 2006, including partnering with Central,
West Coast and Swan TAFE Colleges to develop an implementation package for the revised IT Training Package - ICA05
• the Division implemented a new Business Services Training Package and commenced preparations for the new
Financial Services Training Package courses in 2006
• working in collaboration with Kadadjiny Mia, the Division is developing a support program for indigenous business trainees
to be employed with the Department of Justice. Further, working with the Job Network and Kadadjiny Mia, the Division is
developing holistic programs to support workplace based trainees to achieve long term meaningful employment
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Goal 2 – Promoting life-long learning
Key Result Area: Provision of training for individuals to meet changing personal circumstances & career objectives
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2005 outcomes for the IT and Business Division Goal 2:
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND BUSINESS SKILLS CENTRE
• led the planning and implementation of the highly successful KIEP Schools TAFE Days at Rockingham Campus
bringing over 700 students into the Campus
• capitalised on strong relationships with the Financial Services ITC and National Institute of Accountants to develop
and market new Financial Services Traineeships. Presented new Traineeship model to all NAC’s for implementation
across the State
• developed a successful model targeting existing bookkeepers and accountants to have their skills gained though their
work recognised as a qualification
• hosted World Skills Competitions for both Business and IT at the Rockingham Campus
• worked with the the College’s Centre for Adult Education to offer skills recognition to ACE students who have
completed the Introduction to Computing Course
• commenced several dual qualifications in IT to enable graduates to have broader career opportunities. These included
the Cert III in Networking and Software Applications, Cert IV Website Design and Website Administration, Cert IV in
Programming and Multimedia
• both IT and Business participated in the Careers Expo at Burswood and for several displays in shopping centres and
schools
• obtained new industry sponsors for awards nights, including Panduit and the Australian Institute of Office
Professionals.
• new Finance Industry update courses were offered for Tax Agents and BAS Statements
• held briefing for Information Officers to explain new IT and Business courses
• developed a new Careers Combo Program for Business with Murdoch University
• worked with limited success with Curtin University towards new pathways in IT and Business for overseas students
• promoted successful employment and business outcomes for students by working with the College’s Client
Communications Unit to develop press releases for two success stories from Management Flexible Learning courses

83

FREMANTLE E-TECH CENTRE
• re-engineered systems for all incoming enquiries to e-Tech for both IT and Business prospective students to ensure a
consistent and client focussed information processes is provided
• offered eight flexible learning sessions a week in both IT and Business, including four nights to enable greater access
to IT and to Business training
• continued revision and production of marketing materials inline with changes to delivery.
• recruited and inducted a new e-Tech Coordinator from interstate and new Business Services Officer
• developed additional Management Flexible pathways including, Frontline Management and Human Resource
Management, to cater for people in the workforce who wish to upskill and gain promotion or undertake a career
change
• developed a flexible model for Accounting courses that incorporates a skills recognition program and a supported selfmanaged learning program for existing bookkeepers to gain qualifications.

CHAPTER 12

Output Reports

Goal 3 – Contributing to the development of sustainable communities, industries and regions
Key Result Area: Sustainable outcomes for WA by collaborating with community & regional organisations in providing
training & services
2005 outcomes for the IT and Business Division Goal 3:
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND BUSINESS SKILLS CENTRE
• IT and Business constitutes about one third of Challenger TAFE’s delivery at the Peel Campus
• in association with the Industry Advisory Committee, the Division held a Peel Industry Forum in July to inform the
planning and development of new IT and Business training options in the region
• worked with the Peel Learn Local Learnscope Project to develop a model for flexible and on-line learning at regional
Tele-Centres
• developed and enhanced the Peel IT staff and student website resulting in a vastly improved AQTF service to students
and considerable reduction in the amount of photocopying and printing
• delivered IT short courses in Waroona, Pinjarra, Serpentine and Boddington Regional Centres
• provided skills recognition services to Mandurah Senior College’s e-Link Centre to provide students at risk with
opportunities for attaining IT qualifications
FREMANTLE E-TECH CENTRE
• nurtured sponsorship arrangements through involvement of IT industry partners in guest lectures, training sessions
and work placements
• provided additional flexible learning access to all IT and Business students
• increased the support services provided to international and local students to ensure successful outcomes
• development work undertaken towards expansion of Fremantle e-Tech to Rockingham and Peel Campuses to deploy
flexible learning initiatives throughout the region
• revisited provision of on-line IT learning at Rockingham.
Goal 4 – Developing commercial products to meet state, national and international demands for training and related services

2005 outcomes for the IT and Business Division Goal 4:
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND BUSINESS SKILLS CENTRE
• IT & Business has maintained the successful relationship that it has developed with the government funded Swami
Dayanand Institute in Mauritius.
• the Division developed and implemented a new very successful contract with private provider DCDM Business School
in Mauritius. Enrolments have exceeded startup expectations with more than 100 Challenger TAFE overseas students
studying in Mauritius. This project has raised the standards for future overseas projects
• won a new Defence contract for Finance, Procurement and Project Management training, in association with the
Canberra Institute of Technology and the Australian TAFE Consortium (ATCON)
• continued Public Sector Management Training for Department of Defence
• negotiated and delivered new customer service training and financial management training for the City of Mandurah
• maintained a successful relationship with the Department of Conservation and Land Management for the delivery of
in-house training to first line supervisors and to regional managers
• continued servicing IT training contracts for Somaiya Institute Mumbai, India.
• continued constructive negotiations and relationships with YPPSI Indonesia, IITM Vietnam and Qatar Petroleum with
a view to providing further training under existing contracts
• conducted regular marketing activities with overseas agents to expand the international student population and
resulting in an increase in delivery to international students on campus
• the Division’s successful record of overseas delivery has led to winning a research grant from NCVER aimed at
developing a toolkit for the selection and approval of offshore projects that will form part of a quality framework for
the offshore delivery of Australian VET
• the Division has maintained its working relationship with the Australian TAFE Consortium (ATCON) and delivered
training to the Department of Defence as a part of that Consortium. The Division has assisted ATCON with the
submission of several tenders in response to national training opportunities
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Key Result Area: Generation of revenue from commercial training & related services
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•
•
•
•

assisted other Divisions in the College with moves into overseas project work, including Tourism and Hospitality in
Mauritius
the Division has investigated and quoted on a number of overseas projects. Some have been rejected. Some do not
pass financial requirements, add value to existing work or fit into the Division’s overseas project strategies
commenced Financial Services Traineeships as a new fee-for-service opportunity
built on existing articulation agreements with universities to develop research, international and other mutually
beneficial relationships

FREMANTLE E-TECH CENTRE
• researched and purchased wireless networking equipment for the delivery of Wireless Networking and Security
programs.
• updated the IT and Business Intranet and Internet websites.
• undertaken Project Management training for College staff professional development and on a fee-for-service basis for
external clients.
Goal 5 – Providing high quality training products and services in a responsive and timely manner
Key Result Area: Industry, community & individual clients recognise the quality, timeliness & responsiveness of our training
delivery & our related products & services
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2005 outcomes for the IT and Business Division Goal 5:
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND BUSINESS SKILLS CENTRE
• the Division has had increasing success with flexible learning in first line management, marketing, small business
management and MYOB at e-Tech, Rockingham and Peel.
• extensive work is being done on collaboration and sharing of teaching resources between lecturers through the
validation and moderation processes
• the IT area has purchased the latest versions of Studio MX so students have access to the latest web technology in
their learning environment
• IT staff are being supported in the development of PDA programming courses in line with industry demand
• skills recognition services have been offered in partnership with the Mandurah e-Link Centre to provide students at
risk with access to IT qualifications
• a Challenger TAFE auspiced student from Kwinana High School was nominated as winner of the Gold Medal in the
State Worldskills competition
• three new training packages in IT and Business were implemented
• professional development was provided for staff to support these new training packages
• IT and Business staff have provided extensive support and innovations for the work of the Teaching and Learning
Directorate
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FREMANTLE E-TECH CENTRE
• answered demand for flexible learning sessions at Fremantle e-Tech targeting new Finance qualifications recognising
existing bookkeepers and accountants workplace skills
• negotiated training for programming PDAs in conjunction with Power Business Systems
• collaborated with Central TAFE and Alphawest on Sun Microsystems hardware and wireless networks
• new Digital Photography courses at varying levels are being offered in line with client demand
• Panduit has conducted hardware training courses at e-Tech and granted access to IT lecturing staff for training in
network connectivity solutions
• Continued working on strengthening partnerships with e-Tech Sponsors and potential new sponsors, including IBM and
Microsoft.
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Goal 6 – Developing a culture of excellence in the delivery of support services to our clients
Key Result Area: Students & staff are given the level of support necessary for them to achieve a positive learning outcome
2005 outcomes for the IT and Business Division Goal 6:
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND BUSINESS SKILLS CENTRE
• marketing classes are developing survey instruments to improve responsiveness to students and their feedback on
why they came to study at Challenger TAFE
• Principal Lecturers and Advanced Skills lecturers are providing counselling and support to students at risk of
withdrawing
• developed extensive student information and inductions that are consistent with AQTF requirements
• led the College’s participation in the KEIP presentation day at Rockingham campus
• hosted and assisted judging for the IT and the Business Worldskills competitions at Rockingham Campus for the KEIP
schools district. Assisted judging the state Worldskills competition
• lecturers have strengthened the support provided for international and local students, to ensure positive outcomes
FREMANTLE E-TECH CENTRE
• currently working towards development of an e-Tech Centre at Rockingham Campus for delivery of flexible learning in
2006
• participated in the Careers Expo with the assistance of e-Tech sponsors, Apple Computers
• increased commercial activity in areas such as room hire, Internet access, photocopying, and the provision of other
office solutions
• the Division has upgraded conference room facilities at Fremantle e-Tech to provide professional business services to
several sections of the College and the College community.
Goal 7 – Developing a highly skilled, innovative and motivated workforce

2005 outcomes for the IT and Business Division Goal 7:
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND BUSINESS SKILLS CENTRE
• IT and Business staff have $1,000 available for Professional Development per person to keep their skills and
competence current
• several staff have attended industry conferences and seminars to keep up with current trends, these include the CPA,
PDA, Microsoft, Panduit and Cisco Conferences
• most IT and Business Lecturing staff attended the Training Forum conducted by the Department of Education and
Training to keep up with current trends in VET
• examples of training undertaken by IT staff include a Microsoft Conference in Melbourne; Dot.net training; Wireless
Accreditation Courses; the College’s Octoberfest; Cisco training; and an IBM Forum
• Peel staff have mentored other staff in the Lecturer Mentoring Program
• the IT Principal Lecturer gained an innovation scholarship for the development of an IT Traineeship Resource Kit and
has demonstrated this to other staff
• the Division conducted a very successful professional development day for all Divisional staff at the end of 2005
• as members of the state committees of the National Institute of Accountants (NIA) and the Australian Institute of
Office Professionals (AIOP) two of our lecturers represent the VET sector on the Industry Training Council.
FREMANTLE E-TECH CENTRE
• the year saw appointment of two new e-Tech employees - the e-Tech Coordinator and Business Services Officer
• IT staff skills were updated for wireless networking training.

C h a l l e n g e r TA F E – A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 0 5

Key Result Area: Staff have the skills they need to deliver a high quality, responsive service
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Goal 8 – Developing an operationally innovative and agile working environment to optimise new
opportunities
Key Result Area: The work environment facilitates productivity & promotes the quality & timeliness of our service delivery
2005 outcomes for the IT and Business Division Goal 8:
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND BUSINESS SKILLS CENTRE
• provided a number of innovative delivery sites, such as Live Works sites, that enhance learning and development of
employability skills
• arranged IT and Business Industry Forums at Peel, Rockingham and Fremantle to ensure organisational
responsiveness to new opportunities
• purchased Wireless equipment for the delivery of Wireless and Security training in partnership with Alphawest
• development of PDA programming training
• IT lecturer, Paul Dollery completed an NCVER project on Transnational Delivery (2005-2006)
FREMANTLE E-TECH CENTRE
• all Fremantle e-Tech staff trained as Safety Officers during the year
• the division expanded drop-in access to IT and Business programs from Fremantle e-Tech to Rockingham and Peel
• wireless networking installations were purchased
• e-Tech managers undertook preparatory work on the establishment of an e-Tech shop.

12.5 WA APPLIED ENGINEERING AND SHIPBUILDING TRAINING CENTRE
INTRODUCTION
Continuation of the Business Development Manager role in 2005 has enabled the Division to position itself as a preferred
provider of training to the defence shipbuilding industry in Western Australia. Following a detailed analysis of market
conditions during Semester One, the Metal Skills Recognition Centre was established at the Henderson Campus at the
commencement of Semester Two.
The primary activities within the Metal Skills Recognition Centre have been the delivery of a tailored program for junior
Trade Assistant staff from Austal Ships; an up-skilling program for members of the community wishing to enhance their
welding skills; and a Metals ‘Fast Track’ apprenticeship program. The Metal Skills Recognition Centre has already developed
a fine reputation for training delivery with Tenix Defence Pty Ltd and Strategic Marine, two other major shipbuilding
companies within the Australian Marine Complex. Employees are expected to use the Centre for staff training in 2006.

C h a l l e n g e r TA F E – A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 0 5

In the Construction sector, a public-private partnership between the College and the building and construction industry has
led to the provision of industry funds to establish a Wet Trades Training Facility within the Peel Education and TAFE Campus.
This facility,is to be ready for training delivery from Semester One, 2006. As a precursor, in conjunction with the Association
of Wall and Ceiling Industries, a Wall and Ceiling Lining Pre-Apprenticeship Course was established at the Peel Education
and TAFE Campus in Semester Two, with four students graduating at the end of 2005.
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Planning has commenced on a new $10m Automotive Training Centre on the site of the re-developed Kwinana Senior High
School. To raise the profile of Automotive training in the region, a new Automotive School-Based Traineeship has been
established in partnership with the Motor Trade Association and Automotive Training Australia (WA). This program which
will cater for students from Rockingham and Kwinana Senior High Schools, will commence in 2006.
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Goal 1 – Training to deliver a skilled workforce
Key Result Area: Provision of a broad range of training for labour market entrants & workers seeking to further develop their
skills
2005 outcomes for WA Applied Engineering and Shipbuilding Training Centre Goal 1:
• Project 2015: - the identification of future training requirements of the Defence and Electronics industries, has
progressed with a lecturer funded to customise an Electronics Diploma Course specifically to meet the needs of the
Military Systems Integration and Electronics sector
• curriculum and infrastructure development at the Henderson Campus have been completed in order to commence
delivery of apprenticeship training in composites fabrication in 2006
• a ‘Women in Engineering’ initiative was established to attract more female students into engineering para-professional
courses delivered at the Beaconsfield Campus. This initiative is supported by industry and is already achieving results,
with a 50 per cent increase per term in the number of female enrolments
• a collaborative approach with several major metals-based industries is resulting in graduates of the Welding UpSkilling Programs run by the Metal Skills Recognition Centre achieving welding codes, as specified by industry and
students are gaining immediate employment
• an innovative off-site construction program was piloted in three Middle Schools in the Peel Region, which gave 60
students ‘Taste-of-Trade’ competencies in carpentry and bricklaying.
Goal 2 – Promoting life-long learning

2005 outcomes for WA Applied Engineering and Shipbuilding Training Centre Goal 2:
• significant development work has occurred within the Metal Skills Recognition Centre to strengthen the capacity to
service ‘Fast-Track’ apprentices. Market research indicates that this will be a strong area of growth for the College in
2006 which will require a flexible and highly responsive approach to training delivery
• Open Days for Marine, Metals and Automotive have been conducted during 2005,hosted by industry. This costeffective form of marketing will continue in 2006
• Welding up-skilling courses delivered by the Metal Skills Recognition Centre have been highly successful, with demand
for the courses requiring the commissioning of the Beaconsfield workshops for both day and night courses, in addition
to the day and night courses offered at the Henderson Campus.
• a new initiative is being developed for the Metal Skills Recognition Centre to be recognised as a centre of excellence
in the design, fabrication and maintenance of piping to support the defence shipbuilding and resource industries in
WA. Industry consultations have commenced with a proposal for a ‘WA Piping School’ to be established in 2006
• industry consultation has commenced for a Supervisors’ Course at the Certificate IV level. The course will be offered in
modular form, supported by industry-based project work and be designed to assist Leading Hands to make the
transition into Supervisor roles.
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Key Result Area: Provision of training for individuals to meet changing personal circumstances & career objectives
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Goal 3 – Contributing to the development of sustainable communities, industries and regions
Key Result Area: Sustainable outcomes for WA by collaborating with community & regional organisations in providing
training & services
2005 outcomes for WA Applied Engineering and Shipbuilding Training Centre Goal 3:
• after a focused marketing campaign, a Metals ‘Family of Trades’ Pre-Apprentice Course was conducted in the Peel Region
in the second semester. For the previous five semesters, it had not been possible to attract sufficient students to run the
course
• development work has progressed, in consultation with the Peel Development Commission, leading to delivery of an
Automotive Pre-Apprenticeship Course in the Peel Region at Fairbridge Farm in 2006. This course will be focused on
improving learning outcomes for indigenous youth in the Peel Region and is anticipated to receive strong industry
endorsement
• strong growth occurred in Carpentry apprenticeship training in the Peel Region in 2005, exceeding targeted delivery by
60 per cent
• several industry forums were conducted during 2005 with key stakeholders from the Building and Construction
industry, including Dale Alcock Homes, to discuss the development of the Wet Trades Training Facility at the Peel
Education and TAFE Campus. This consultative process has led to the extension of the capability of the facility to
include a covered work area for bricklaying training
• the profile of Environmental Engineering as a study discipline at the para-professional level continued to increase
during 2005 with lecturer Ms Cindy Egan leading the implementation of the ‘Women in Engineering’ initiative.
Goal 4 – Developing commercial products to meet state, national and international demands for training
and related services
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Key Result Area: Generation of revenue from commercial training & related services
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2005 outcomes for WA Applied Engineering and Shipbuilding Training Centre Goal 4:
• Divisional staff continued to contribute to the auspicing contract with Qatar Petroleum, with Principal Lecturer Ian
McDonald and Advanced Skills Lecturer Trevor Mills undertaking secondments to Qatar in September. In addition, Ian
McDonald provided training in the Certificate IV Assessment and Workplace Training, to lecturing staff contracted by
Qatar Petroleum
• the ‘Junior TA’ Program, established in conjunction with Austal ships, has been a significant source of commercial
revenue in the latter half of 2005. The program, currently focused on metalwork skills, is set to expand in 2006 to
encompass the Electrical/Instrumentation and Mechanical Fitting disciplines. Other major shipbuilding companies
are anticipated to introduce similar programs in 2006
• enquiries from Strategic Marine have led to the ‘Junior TA’ Program being replicated in Vietnam during 2006, to
accommodate a requirement for a pool of skilled welders for several major shipbuilding projects
• project management training, with a focus on the defence and resource industry sectors, has commenced in second
semester. This foreshadows the extension of the College’s approved scope of training to include project management
training at the Certificate IV, Diploma and Advanced Diploma levels. Prime contractors working for the Defence
Capability Plan are required to demonstrate competency in project management.
• several formative meetings have occurred with staff from the Kellogg Joint Venture Gorgon Project which are likely to
lead to the establishment in early 2006 of a Statement of Intent between Challenger TAFE and the Gorgon Project
Partners, to deliver training services on a commercial basis.
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Goal 5 – Providing high quality training products and services in a responsive and timely manner
Key Result Area: Industry, community & individual clients recognise the quality, timeliness & responsiveness of our training
delivery and our related products & services
2005 outcomes for WA Applied Engineering and Shipbuilding Training Centre Goal 5:
• ceiling-mounted data projectors were installed in classrooms in the Electronic/Electrical Engineering Section, to
support electronically delivered training materials
• Principal Lecturer Ian McDonald is progressing towards the completion of a Diploma in Training and Assessment
(TAA), to provide the Division with the capability to deliver the Certificate IV in Training and Assessment to students
in Qatar.
• the Metal Skills Recognition Centre has been established on the Henderson Campus in the heart of the shipbuilding
precinct to respond in a highly flexible manner to industry demand for training. This objective has been assisted by
recruiting new staff with appropriate skills and experience to the Centre.
• Divisional staff continue to be involved in professional development programs that focus on the implementation of
innovative technologies in training delivery. Lecturer Allan Voyce has been examining the ‘E-Luminate’ software for
distributed, synchronous training
• resource and project material development has occurred throughout 2005 to support project-based delivery in the
Construction trades.
Goal 6 – Developing a culture of excellence in the delivery of support services to our clients
Key Result Area: Students & staff are given the level of support necessary for them to achieve a positive learning outcome
2005 outcomes for WA Applied Engineering and Shipbuilding Training Centre Goal 6:
• student information nights were conducted at the Beaconsfield Campus prior to the commencement of Semesters
One and Two
• a mentoring program, involving volunteers from the community, was initiated to support the Metals School
Apprenticeship Link program
• agreement has been reached with Kwinana Senior High School to establish a ‘Board of Studies’ in 2006 to regularly
review student progress in VET for Schools programs in the Metals and Automotive disciplines.
Goal 7 – Developing a highly skilled, innovative and motivated workforce

2005 outcomes for WA Applied Engineering and Shipbuilding Training Centre Goal 7:
• a whole-of-Division consultative workshop was conducted at the end of Semester One to provide the opportunity for
staff input to the future direction of the Division over the next 18 months
• lecturer Stuart Graves undertook a prestigious International Specialised Skills Scholarship for overseas study. Stuart
attended specialised welding courses in the United States and the United Kingdom
• two staff members, Trevor Mills and Brian Jenkins, were nominated for the Arrix Trainer of the Year Awards, as part of
the annual WA Training Excellence Awards.
Goal 8 – Developing an operationally innovative and agile working environment to optimise new
opportunities
Key Result Area: The work environment facilitates productivity & promotes the quality & timeliness of our service delivery
2005 outcomes for WA Applied Engineering and Shipbuilding Training Centre Goal 8:
• a proposal has been developed to convert office space within J Block, on the Fremantle Campus to establish an
Engineering Design Studio, so that ‘live works’ may be undertaken within the Engineering study disciplines
• the Metal Skills Recognition Centre has, through the enlistment of additional casual staff, developed a capacity to
rapidly respond to changing market conditions. The Centre has further developed its relationship with Austal Ships
whereby it is now integrated with the Austal workforce
• the Henderson Campus will incorporate ‘live works’ with training delivery. In 2005 a large pontoon was built specifically for
members of the disabled community and the production of sub-assembly work for Austal Ships will commence in 2006.
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Key Result Area: Staff have the skills they need to deliver a high quality, responsive service
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12.6 WA MARITIME TRAINING CENTRE – FREMANTLE
INTRODUCTION
As part of the India Strategy, 40 maritime students enrolled in 2005 with 41 projected for 2006. Thirty-five deck cadets
commenced training in 2005 and are due at the College in 2008, and 100 are expected in 2009. A similar program for
Marine Engineering cadets, with similar projected numbers is under development. A $60,000 contract for the Australian
Navy aligned marine engineering with the Navy’s marine engineering training program.
A total of $1.6m was secured to progress the Semi Intensive Floating Tank System for growing fish as a collaborative project
with the Aquaculture Development Unit, McRobert Aquaculture Systems and CY O’Connor College. The project was a
finalist in the ABC New Inventors program. The 4-year project with Murdoch University for restocking the Blackwood River
with black bream concluded and successfully demonstrated restoration of the depleted black bream population.
Funds were won to conduct workshops to introduce new food handling standards to fishermen and seafood operators at
coastal venues from Broome to Esperance. Five programs for Youth at Risk were conducted as 5-week introductions to the
fishing industry with competitively won and community-based funding.
The Australian Marine Pilots Association proposed a degree level program for new pilots and revalidation of existing pilots, with
the Centre being a strong contender to deliver a major part of the program and expansion of the simulation capability.
The new $9.2m building at the Centre houses the ship simulation suite, student amenities and extra classrooms, and a
$0.25m facility was completed at Fishing Boat Harbour to provide a teaching facility where the college vessels are moored.
OUTCOMES FOR 2005
Goal 1 – Training to deliver a skilled workforce
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Key Result Area: Provision of a broad range of training for labour market entrants & workers seeking to further develop their skills
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2005 Outcomes for WA Maritime Training Centre-Fremantle Goal 1:
• discussions with the Australian Marine Pilots Association that began in 2003, have proposed establishing at Fremantle,
one of two Industry Skills Centres in Australia, installing a full mission marine simulator. A new degree level program
has been proposed, half to be operationally-oriented and delivered by Challenger TAFE and half by a university, possibly
Curtin, in association with the Australian Maritime College. A 2007 commencement is planned
• a Competitively Allocated Tender enabled the Centre’s training workshops to introduce new food handling standards to
fishermen and seafood operators at coastal venues from Broome to Esperance. A program was jointly developed and
delivered by representatives from the Department of Health, the Western Australian Fishing Industry Council,
Department of Fisheries and Challenger TAFE
• following the early success of the Deck Cadet program, Australian and India/Sri Lanka shipping companies requested
development of a similar program for Marine Engineering cadets, with similar projected numbers and building to 120
per year. In-principle approval was secured from the Australian Maritime Safety Authority(AMSA) that requires on-site
audits by AMSA in India and Sri Lanka. Funding is being sought for course development and initial audits. Costs of
subsequent audits will be recoverable, as the program is implemented
• the Marine Engineering Certificate IV has experienced rising interest so that increased numbers are expected for 2006. The
China Classification Society (Australian Office) provided $3,000 annually as scholarships for students in this program
• the first three students completed a niche market qualification in Royal Yachting Association accreditation, enabling them to
compete successfully in the overseas commercial yachting market. Engagement of a specialised Royal Yachting Association
assessor through an immigration sponsorship provided essential support for the commencement of this initiative
• the Transport and Distribution Traineeship was maintained at about 35 participants, mainly for existing employees and
the Diploma in Logistics continued with a part-time training group of about 20. The Certificate IV in Warehousing was
introduced with part time classes at the Carlisle premises of the Transport Forum of Western Australia. This program
will be reviewed in 2006
• the Remotely Operated Vehicles (ROV) Program was reviewed and the partnership with the UK company, SubServ (now
owned by Global Marine Systems) terminated without a revised agreement being put in place. Australian accreditation of
the course was arranged and a new lecturer identified for an increased level of activity above the two courses run in 2005.
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Goal 2 – Promoting life-long learning
Key Result Area: Provision of training for individuals to meet changing personal circumstances & career objectives
2005 outcomes for WA Maritime Training Centre-Fremantle Goal 2:
• five Competitively Allocated Tender programs for youth at risk were conducted with additional funding from Fremantle
Community Policing – Crime Prevention, Cockburn City Council Street Net and the Mandurah Offshore Fishing Club.
Each program included five weeks Fishing and Marine Operations program conducted at Fremantle and Mandurah.
Twenty-four programs have run successfully since the course’s inception in 1998, but no further funding has been
gained and an alternative funding source will need to be identified for the programs to continue
• the number of VET for Schools programs increased, as did the number of participating schools, from six to ten and a
new program in aquaculture was introduced. A professional development program in aquaculture for school teachers
was continued
• specialist aquaculture programs were offered to two different groups. A one-week Hatchery Management Program for
practising aquaculturists was run with funding support from FarmBiz; and another one-week program was run for
biological science undergraduate students at Murdoch University which formed a formal part of their degree courses.
Both programs utilised the specialist facilities and staff expertise from the Aquaculture Development Unit.
Goal 3 – Contributing to the development of sustainable communities, industries and regions

2005 outcomes for WA Maritime Training Centre-Fremantle Goal 3:
• Mr Greg Jenkins continued his role as Project Manager of the Aquaculture Development Unit and under his
leadership, the Unit continued to enhance its national reputation as a leader in applied research for the production of
marine finfish
• the Semi Intensive Floating Tank System for the aquaculture industry utilises technology to remove faeces and waste
food from aquaculture systems. After successful initial work at Northam in 2004, a total of $1.6m over three years was
secured from the Fisheries Research and Development Corporation, the WA Government’s Wheatbelt Development
Corporation, and private investors, to progress the initial work to a commercial scale, on Mr Stan Melanowski’s
property. Mr Gavin Partridge from the Aquaculture Development Unit is the principal investigator and Dr Gavin Sarre
from CY O’Connor College of TAFE manages on-site aspects of the project at Northam
• a $60,000 consultancy was negotiated with InterAqua Pty Ltd to develop a barrumundi hatchery in Western Australia
that will be used to supply fingerlings for grow-out and export
• the Unit secured some $25,000 for other consultancies. As part of the agreement for development of the Semi
Intensive Floating Tank System, consultancies are required to assist with installation of units that clients’ purchase,
and one was signed for a company in the Cook Islands. Another consultancy was for the abalone fishery in Tasmania
• the project for restocking of the Blackwood River with black bream, using a grant form the Fisheries Research and
Development Corporation, was completed. It successfully demonstrated that restoration of depleted black bream
populations in rivers and estuaries can be achieved with restocking techniques. This project was undertaken in
collaboration with Murdoch University and operated over a four year period
• the number of online students studying aquaculture increased from 24 to just over 100, with more than 150
competency enrolments from regional and outer metropolitan areas; up from three in 2003 and 24 in 2004. The
program includes a weekend workshop at the Centre to provide a range of skills associated with the on-line work
• following the Fisheries Co-management workshop that was conducted at the end of 2004, efforts to secure funds from
various sources for the development of a suitable pilot training program were unsuccessful. Advice form the Western
Australian Fishing Industry Council was that a program of the type identified at the workshop was unnecessary in view of
the Management Advisory Committee system that was currently in place, so the decision was made to terminate efforts
• the WA Planning Commission commenced long term redevelopment of the Victoria Quay precinct in 2003, extending
from the Passenger Terminal to the Fishing Boat Harbour. As the Centre will be affected by this redevelopment, it has
participated regularly as a member of the Fremantle Slipways Group that was formed in 2004 to provide local stakeholder
input for the area between the Maritime Museum and the South Mole. There is potential for a development that will
enable mooring of vessels at the Boom Defence Jetty and launching of smaller vessels from the beach at Dago Bay

C h a l l e n g e r TA F E – A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 0 5

Key Result Area: Sustainable outcomes for WA by collaborating with community & regional organisations in providing
training & services
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the Centre participated in the Linking Fremantle Project that was established to link the Fremantle Fishing Boat Harbour
and Victoria Quay–Maritime Museum. The project is to run over 2005-6 and is managed by the Fremantle City Council.
A series of heritage trails has been proposed, some of which have potential to include the WA Maritime Training Centre
– Fremantle. A steering group of local stakeholders was formed to establish priorities and provide input to the design
of the trails and associated infrastructure.

Goal 4 – Developing commercial products to meet state, national and international demands for training and related services
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Key Result Area: Generation of revenue from commercial training & related services
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2005 outcomes for WA Maritime Training Centre-Fremantle Goal 4:
• the Centre is a participant in the India Strategy, which is a TAFEWA project managed by Education and Training
International and which incorporates the maritime initiatives that have operated with India and Sri Lanka since 1998.
Overseas students enrolled at the Centre were mainly from India and Sri Lanka, principally for courses leading to ships’
masters and second mates certification. Numbers in the three years 2003-2005 were 20, 40 and 41 and the projection
for 2006 is 41. The figures for 2005 and 2006 were slightly disappointing, partly due to the loss of focus by some of the
agents in those countries and partly to the more competitive arrangements other countries had for issuing visas,
especially the UK. Activities of the India Strategy group helped in addressing these issues and improvement is expected
in 2006
• two visits to India and Sri Lanka were made in 2005, both funded through the India Strategy. One was specifically to discuss
proposals by shipping companies for the development and implementation of a Marine Engineering cadetship; the other
was to promote maritime programs and followed an earlier 2005 visit by Education and Training International personnel
• the Deck Cadet Program that provides the early stages of courses that lead to the ship masters qualification was further
developed in 2005. The program has generated very strong interest in India and Sri Lanka and it will attract a greater
number of enrolments compared with the longer running ships master programs. The first eight enrolments of deck
cadets were from India and Sri Lanka in 2004 and in 2005 they were completing the first sea phase (18 months) and they
are expected at Challenger TAFE in 2007 to complete their studies. Thirty-five commenced initial training in 2005 and
were due at the College in 2008 and 100 are expected to commence in 2006, with Challenger TAFE attendance in 2009
• a contract for the Australian Navy was undertaken to identify and align marine engineering competencies from the
Maritime Training Package with the marine engineering training program that was traditionally used by the navy. This
project had transferability for future work expected at the Centre and generated $60,000
• the WA Government introduced legislation that requires Western Australia’s 60,000 recreational boat owners to gain a
Recreational Skipper’s Ticket within three years, commencing January 2006. To gain a Ticket, boat owners will need to
either complete a recognition of prior learning process, or complete a one day training program. The Centre has
prepared to be a significant provider of this training including the purchase of two additional (used) seven metre
vessels, identification of casual staff and training venues; preparation of promotional material and development of
administrative processes and partnerships with small private training providers.
Goal 5 – Quality in teaching and learning
Key Result Area: Industry, community & individual clients recognise the quality, timeliness and responsiveness of our
training delivery and our related products & services
2005 outcomes for WA Maritime Training Centre-Fremantle Goal 5:
• the new $9.2m building at the Centre was officially opened in November function. The building is well designed and
finished and houses the Challenger TAFE executive, as well as a ship simulation suite, student amenities and extra
classrooms. The theme of naming buildings at the Centre after vessels of significance to the area was continued and a
new name “Cygnet” added, after the vessel CY O’Connor used to supervise construction of Fremantle Harbour. Mr Ross
Shardlow prepared an original sketch of each of the six vessels used as building names and presented these to the College
• as part of the remodelling of the Department of Planning and Infrastructure (Marine Safety) and the Department of
Fisheries premises at Cappo D’Orlando Drive, a new $0.25m facility was constructed for the Centre. It includes a
classroom, some student facilities and storage for vessel equipment which be used for briefing students prior to vessel
activities and as a delivery site for the Recreational Skippers’ Tickets
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Ms Sue Waters presented a paper at the Teens, Teachers and Training Forum that was conducted by the Department
of Education and Training. She showcased the aquaculture program and the VET for Schools partnership between
Challenger TAFE and Mandurah Senior College, in collaboration with Ms Kim Davies
a revision of the training record books that are required for the sea phase of the Integrated Ratings Course was
undertaken in consultation with Transport and Distribution Training Australia and shared with the Australian Maritime
College. Completion of the AMC component will enable the material to be utilised.

Goal 6 –Developing a culture of excellence in the delivery of support services to our clients
Key Result Area: Students & staff are given the level of support necessary for them to achieve a positive learning outcome
2005 outcomes for WA Maritime Training Centre-Fremantle Goal 6:
• Program Managers Robin Gray and Jean Menzies maintained the Centre’s strong participation in the review of the
Maritime Training Package and its alignment with the National Standards for Commercial Vessels and the regulatory
requirements of the Australian Maritime Safety Authority and the WA Department of Planning and Infrastructure . Mr
Gray was formally appointed as a member of the national working party for this Training Package
• a room, adjacent to the Examination Officer’s room, was modified to enable supervision of individual candidates at
times convenient for them, to sit examinations for the Australian Maritime Safety Authority, Department of Planning
and Infrastructure and the Australian Communications Authority
• appointments of support staff members have contributed to an effective and harmonious group that will be further
enhanced when these two acting positions are incorporated into the organisation structure. The position of
Administration Coordinator continues to have a high potential turnover.
Goal 7 – Developing a highly skilled, innovative and motivated workforce

2005 outcomes for WA Maritime Training Centre-Fremantle Goal 7:
• several staff members commenced higher education studies
• as part of the Semi Intensive Floating Tank System project, Mr Gavin Partridge commenced a Doctor of Philosophy
project with Murdoch University in which he will examine some effects on physiology of fish from a Semi Intensive
Floating Tank System unit and Mr Gavin Kay started an Honours project with the University of Notre Dame to
investigate the establishment of a salt tolerant grass on land associated with a SIFTS unit
• a number of maritime lecturers are undertaking degree courses in education
• a Learnscope Project was undertaken to develop an online and CD-based teaching program suitable for participating
students to undertake while they are working off-shore on-board their vessels. The project will be continued and
completed early in 2006 with a big group teaching staff
• as well as the simulation suite, electronic teaching facilities were included in the new Challenger TAFE building for each
teaching room and a professional development program was conducted to assist staff in utilising the new simulation
equipment, tablet PCs and data projectors
• the Centre performed well in 2005 and along with the College award for Large Training Provider of the Year, achieved
the following awards:
o ABC New Inventors’ Finals: Finalist (one of 5)
o Premiers Awards for the Environment category: Finalist for the Semi Intensive Floating Tank System project
o Australian Seafood Industry Awards for the Safety and Training category: Finalist
o Western Australian Tourism Council Awards for Education and Training: Finalist
o Challenger TAFE Trainee of the Year- Mr David Edmunds from the Certificate II in Seafood Processing course
o WA Department of Education and Training for Teacher of the Year: Finalist: Mr Ralph Minervini, lecturer
o Combined Logistics Association of Australia and Chartered Institute of Logistics and Transport, for Young
Professional of the Year Award: Finalist: Mr Tim Brent, part-time lecturer and past student.
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Key Result Area: Staff have the skills they need to deliver a high quality, responsive service
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Goal 8 – Developing the organisational agility to optimise new opportunities
Key Result Area: The work environment facilitates productivity & promotes the quality & timeliness of our service delivery
2005 outcomes for WA Maritime Training Centre-Fremantle Goal 8:
• difficulties were experienced in responding to the increasing number of project opportunities for the Centre, because
the availability of lecturers for appointment to the Centre has always been limited. As the Centre has no Principal
Lecturer and only one Advanced Skills Lecturer, Program Managers have undertaken this work, in addition to their
normal duties. The supply of lecturers has improved and efforts were made to secure funds to enable lecturers to
undertake these new projects. Negotiations have begun to reduce the response time for funding applications so that
these opportunities can be taken up promptly
• in response to an invitation from Specialist Training Australia to partner in preparing a tender submission for
development of teaching programs for a proposed maritime college in Kuwait, preliminary work was completed to
enable a rapid response, should the lead tenderer’s proposed project outline be successful.

12.7 THE WA HORTICULTURE AND ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE SKILLS CENTRE
INTRODUCTION
The Centre has continued to increase its capacity in purchaser-provider programs for international students, police
forensics, industry and community educational programs, expanded its activities in the Peel region with Science, Floristry,
Animal Care and Pest Management, Horticulture, Vocational Education for Schools in Boddington and in prisons.
The Centre has also successfully been involved in the delivery of Water Industry Operations fee-for-service training with the
State’s water providers for delivery in 2005-2015. It has increased horticultural science/natural resource management
research activities; completed grants for two sustainable water use programs for a total of $280 000; as well as, undertaking
research with lecturers individually, or with classes. The Centre manages a number of individual flexible delivery students
in the many industry areas within the portfolio and has been involved in writing four new Associate Degrees in Sustainable
Water and Land Use.
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The Centre has entered into training partnerships with the National Centre for Sustainability, Central TAFE (Water Industry
Operations), the Irrigation Association of Australia, with CALM (in terms of its status as a Registered Training
Organisation), with Australian Wool Innovations and the West Australian Farmers Federation. In partnerships with the
Challenger TAFE Centre for Leadership and Community Development and other agencies, the Centre increased its training
delivery to men and women within prisons and attracted Reframing the Future, Curriculum Services Support Network and
other grants for the development of professional expertise, training resource materials and academic networking.
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The Centre worked with other agencies in defining plant bio-security and natural resource management issues, as well as
running short courses for relevant industries and land systems. The Centre has replaced old training packages with renewed
packages and conducted many up-skilling and re-skilling short courses, based on the new training packages, including
some first time delivery for WA businesses.
Training delivery for 2005 has exceeded planned targets in both Enterprise Based Training and Institution Based Training,
where excess demand required the introduction of wait-listing for prospective students, particularly for courses in Natural
Resource Management, Irrigation and Primary Industries.
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Goal 1 – Training to deliver a skilled workforce
Key Result Area: Provision of a broad range of training for labour market entrants & workers seeking to further develop their
skills
2005 outcomes for the WA Horticulture and Environmental Science Skills Centre Goal 1:
• reviewed Challenger TAFE’s approved scope of training for the Centre to ensure its continued relevance through
introduction of new/replacement qualifications and/or training packages in Irrigation Certificate IV, Diploma and
Advanced Diploma; Animal Care, Laboratory Operations, Floristry and Environmental Science (Management)
• developed expertise aligned with existing, emerging and niche areas by developing Associate Degrees in land and
water sustainable use and horticulture, with short courses in sustainable water use and bushland management, and
short courses in pest management and chemical use
• increased responsiveness in ways that best meet the differing needs of client groups, especially in an environment of
skill shortages, by assessing experiential skills as RPL activity, now a major part of the Centre’s output in all areas of
delivery, with more flexible learning and assessment tools for on-the-job training and assessment in institution based
training and enterprise based Training
• continued on-line delivery and increased enterprise-based training, delivery by project based learning and assessment,
and delivery of just-in-time and advanced skills programs in tandem/partnership with industry groups and peak bodies
• strengthening the relationships with enterprises, industry and other education and training providers through joint
delivery with CY O Connor and Central TAFE, the Irrigation Association of Australia, WA Farmers Federation, Water
Corporation, CALM and Australian Wool Innovations, community catchment and friends groups, and schools, through
VET for Schools and auspicing programs.
• broadened the delivery focus from narrow competencies to include training in generic work skills and developed
students’ positive attributes and practices through training delivery and business skills provided at Certificate III trade
levels
• provided opportunities for students to form, or work in and with, expert teams through project based learning and
assessment opportunities provided at Certificate III level upwards through industry placement/other activity and
college-based research projects
• communicated the benefits of the Centre’s training and services to learners and stakeholders
• undertook extensive promotion and marketing, providing skills expositions, Big TAFE Checkouts, peak body expositions
and partnerships, working with Group Training Organisations, conducting seminars and workshops relating to research
by staff and students.

Goal 2 – Promoting life-long learning
Key Result Area: Provision of training for individuals to meet changing personal circumstances & career objectives
2005 Outcomes for the WA Horticulture and Environmental Science Skills Centre Goal 2:
• developed training pathway articulation with two universities in WA and worked towards articulation with two others
• gained membership of the National Centre for Sustainability which provides affiliation with two eastern states
universities and three eastern states TAFE colleges and their courses
• developed learning solutions relevant for identified groups and to particular work environments, including training
customised to facilitate the acquisition of better employability skills and access to training
• fostered positive attitudes to lifelong learning and assisted people to respond to new skill demands in the workplace,
community and family life by applying skills gap analyses, recognition of prior learning, and workplace and project
based delivery
• improved the image of TAFE studies by recognising and promoting the achievements of the Centre’s students,
providing graduation events for Floristry, Landscape and Turf students to showcase their skills
• identified fast-track solutions that did not compromise the quality of skill and knowledge outcomes, by using whole
enterprise and individual skills gap analyses and fast-track block training for people already employed in industry.
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NOTE: The Division increased its delivery above its original planned targets by 31,000 Student Curriculum Hours (SCH) in
Institution Based Training and at least 7 000SCH in Enterprise Based Training. There will be a need to maintain the current
levels of Institution Based Training if demand is to be met. - some 67 000SCH less hours are currently available for 2006.
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Goal 3 – Contributing to the development of sustainable communities, industries and regions
Key Result Area: Sustainable outcomes for WA by collaborating with community & regional organisations in providing
training & services
2005 Outcomes for the WA Horticulture and Environmental Science Skills Centre for Goal 3:
• implemented the College’s Sustainability Action Plan 2005-2007 through learning and work practices, by incorporating
sustainability topics into training programs
• delivered learning outcomes that helped build sustainable communities, industries and regions
• integrated training outcomes into community, industry and environmental project activities
• integrated training for sustainability into the programs offered for regional and community organisations and industry.
Goal 4 – Developing commercial products to meet state, national and international demands for training and related
services
Key Result Area: Generation of revenue from commercial training & related services
2005 Outcomes for the WA Horticulture and Environmental Science Skills Centre Goal 4:
• doubled international student participation in the last two years.
Goal 6 – Developing a culture of excellence in the delivery of support services to our clients
Key Result Area: Students & staff are given the level of support necessary for them to achieve a positive learning outcome
2005 Outcomes for the WA Horticulture and Environmental Science Skills Centre Goal 6:
• supported training delivery, using innovative information and communication technologies and strategies through online delivery.
Goal 7 – Developing a highly skilled and motivated workforce
Key Result Area: Staff have the skills they need to deliver a high quality, responsive service
2005 Outcomes for the WA Horticulture and Environmental Science Skills Centre Goal 7:
• staff were provided with opportunities to work in fee-for-service activities allowing them high levels of industry contact,
as well as the opportunity to observe and address emergent industry needs.
Goal 8 - Developing the organisational agility to optimise new opportunities
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Key Result Area: The work environment facilitates productivity & promotes the quality & timeliness of our service delivery
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2005 Outcomes for the WA Horticulture and Environmental Science Skills Centre Goal 8:
The Centre successfully trained and assessed in the workplace • provided fast-track traineeship solutions and delivered part-time training
• provided extensive skills recognition services
• blended recognition of prior learning and project based on-site retraining, to upskill workers
• provided short courses to up-skill and re-skill existing industry workers
• conducted environmental compliance training for specific industry groups, as well as general courses, in response to
identified demand.
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12.8 WA CENTRE FOR LEADERSHIP & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
INTRODUCTION
In 2005 the Centre expanded its Indigenous Governance programs to communities at Yandeyarra pastoral station. An added
dimension to this program was the inclusion of a skills transfer strategy for training staff at Pundelmurra College with
existing resources customised for delivery at Yandeyarra.
Social Housing qualifications were delivered to the three sectors of the industry, public housing, community housing and
indigenous housing. This was a landmark achievement, as resources and delivery / assessment strategies were two and a
half years in development. Fifty five participants were enrolled, 33 completed in 2005, the remainder will complete by May
2006. Partnering with the industry was a key to its success. The model will provide a solution to up-skilling workers in any
industry where attendance at TAFE campus is not a viable option.
Delivery of Leadership training to school students increased to include students from seven government schools and a
further seven private schools. Successful completions for these students are high, 85%. Two students were winners of
National VET in Schools awards.
The Centre facilitated a South West Community Leadership conference at Bunbury, in collaboration with the South West and
Peel Development Commissions. The event attracted 150 participants and the conference outcomes were forwarded to the
Minister for Community Development to form the basis for subsequent forums.
Bennett Brook Village, a residential facility for people with profound intellectual disabilities, was awarded competitive funds
to apply the program within the Peel Region. This initiative is a partnership with the Disability Services Commission and
Disability in the Arts – Disadvantage in the Arts Australia (WA). This program has won the support of the Minister who will
become the program’s Patron.
Commercial delivery of Assessment and Workplace Training concluded with 18 courses conducted and revenue of $185,000.
The Centre’s total revenue from commercial activities was $287,000.
Goal 1 – Training to deliver a skilled workforce

2005 Outcomes for the WA Centre for Leadership & Community Development for Goal 1:
• currently seeking accreditation for a new course, Certificate III in Mentoring
• extended Challenger TAFE’s approved scope on the Certificates II and III in Governance for review and moderation
early in 2006 with other Registered Training Organisations
• established Existing Worker Traineeships in Social Housing
• currently developing Existing Worker Traineeships in Community Development through the Industry Training
Accreditation Board processes
• established Existing Worker Traineeships in Frontline Management and Project Management for commencement as a
pilot in 2006
• currently updating qualifications in line with the new Local Government Training Package
• developing expertise aligned with existing, emerging and niche areas by providing a whole of qualification (upfront)
assessment tool for Social Housing, a Certificate III in Mentoring, in response to identified client needs; a Social
Sustainability program based on the competencies in the Certificate IV in Business (Governance) for delivering
training in response to needs identified through the State Sustainability Strategy and in the National Sustainability
Council’s Training Programs
• commenced development of the Vocational Graduate Certificate/Diploma in Leadership Development
• strengthened relationships with enterprises, industry and other education and training providers, including a
Memorandum of Understanding with the City of Cockburn to deliver Leadership training programs for Cockburn
youth-at-risk
• extended the relationship with inVENTED Fremantle with additional schools enrolling for VET for Schools delivery in 2006
• delivered programs in conjunction with employment and job network agencies, including CentreLink, South
Metropolitan Youth Link, Dylan Whitelaw, inVented, Bridging the Gap and Profit from Experience
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Key Result Area: Provision of a broad range of training for labour market entrants & workers seeking to further develop their
skills
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established an auspicing agreement with the Water Corporation for delivery of Assessment and Workplace Training
and will expand this to Leadership training in 2006
established a relationship with Central West TAFE to deliver Governance and Leadership programs to Indigenous
groups in the North West Cape
created a new relationship with Corpus Christi College for delivery of Leadership programs
extended the relationship with CareerLink for delivery of Leadership programs in the northern suburbs
strengthened the working relationship with Millennium Kids by both organisations jointly applying to deliver a
Leadership/Environmental Sustainability program in accordance with a Memorandum of Understanding between
Millennium Kids and Challenger TAFE
extended Governance training for Indigenous people to include Yandeyarra, Busselton and North West Cape
developed a skills transfer program with Pilbara TAFE, for the delivery of Governance training
maintained a continuing relationship with Disability in the Arts. Disadvantage in the Arts Australia (WA) DADAA,
including representation on the Steering Committee of the Bennett Brooke Group
provided opportunities within training programs for the participants to form, or work in and with, expert teams by
incorporating work experience into Leadership and Community Development programs; establishing Existing Worker
Traineeships in Social Housing, in Frontline Management and in Project Management
communicated the benefits of the Centre’s training and services to learners and stakeholders through: continuous
development of the Centre’s website; conducting forums for stakeholders in local areas; the formation of Industry
Reference Groups for major delivery areas

Goal 2 – Promoting life-long learning
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Key Result Area: Provision of training for individuals to meet changing personal circumstances & career objectives
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2005 Outcomes for the WA Centre for Leadership & Community Development for Goal 2:
• provided training for individuals to meet changing personal circumstances and career objectives through Juvenile
Justice Programs in Leadership training for young offenders as part of the strategy to arrest recidivism
• provided training for individuals and identified groups to meet changing personal circumstances and career
objectives, for example, the ‘Excelerate’ program for youth; Leadership programs for women of diverse ages, cultures
and backgrounds and training programs for the disabled
• learning solutions were customised to the needs of the learners, for example, on-line delivery designed to cater for
distance learning and the needs of existing workers
• improved the image of TAFE studies by recognising and promoting the achievements of its students by:
o conducting graduation events to celebrate the success of the students
o customising program design and outcomes to the needs of specific groups for example, people with disabilities
o actively fostering public relations through community newspapers
• partnered with community agencies, eg South Metropolitan Youth Link, to allow promotion of the Centre’s programs
through their websites and newsletters
• identified fast-track solutions that did not compromise the quality of skill and knowledge outcomes by promoting,
where appropriate, skills recognition as an alternative to training and assessment
• provided support structures that assist students to develop their career aspirations by advising students of Challenger
TAFE’s support services, including Career Connect; establishing a mentoring network of past students and lecturers to
assist current students and identifying career pathways and further study opportunities.
Goal 3 – Contributing to the development of sustainable communities, industries and regions
Key Result Area: Sustainable outcomes for WA by collaborating with community & regional organisations in providing
training & services
2005 Outcomes for the WA Centre for Leadership & Community Development for Goal 3
• implemented the College’s Sustainability Action Plan 2005-2007 by collaborating with community, industry and
regional organisations in providing training and services; encouraging energy efficient practices in all aspects of
training delivery and in the provision of support services and ensuring all staff and students were aware of, and
implemented energy saving practices
• delivered learning outcomes that help build sustainable communities, industries and regions
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•
•
•

•

included a regional delivery proposal for Leadership and Governance training programs as a fee-for-service program for an
indigenous enterprise activity at Gingin, in collaboration with the Indigenous Land Corporation and Department of Agriculture
commenced a Busselton Community Governance Program;
assisted in designing and coordinating the South West Community Leadership Forum in conjunction with the South
West Development Commission, Peel Development Commission, and Department of Local Government and
Regional Development
liaised with Swinburne University of Technology with regard to governance training to develop skills for the bottom line
components for sustainability within the WA Sustainability Strategy.

Goal 4 – Developing commercial products to meet state, national and international demands for training and related
services
Key Result Area: Generation of revenue from commercial training and related services
2005 Outcomes for the WA Centre for Leadership & Community Development for Goal 4:
• increased substantially commercial revenue from 2004 to a total revenue in 2005 of $296 500
• developed collaborative relationships with the Disabilities Services Commission, Department of Community
Development, Department of Indigenous Affairs, Family And Children’s Services, Chamber of Minerals and Energy,
Department of Agriculture, Australian Submarine Corporation, Water Corporation, West Australian Local Government
Association, Volunteering WA, Rio Tinto, Department of Housing and Works, Community Housing
• the Centre had increased demand from private schools for VET programs
Goal 5 – Providing high quality training products and services
Key Result Area: Industry, community and individual clients recognise the quality, timeliness and responsiveness of our
training delivery and our related products and services
2005 Outcomes for the WA Centre for Leadership & Community Development for Goal 5:
• structured training programs to suit organisational and individual needs by conducting regular staff meetings where
strategies were reviewed and evaluated to indicate where changes in delivery methods, resources and assessment
methods were required
• internal moderation conducted to ensure Australian Quality Training Framework conformance
• staff were encouraged to attend the relevant Industry Training Accreditation Boards, Curriculum Advisory Group meetings
and moderation with lecturers from both metropolitan and regional areas, allowing valuable networking to occur
• the Centre’s staff opportunities to network with colleagues were enhanced through their attendance at the College’s
professional development program, Octoberfest.
Goal 6 – Developing a culture of excellence in the delivery of support services to our clients

2005 Outcomes for the WA Centre for Leadership & Community Development for Goal 6:
• staff were informed of training programs and projects enabling them to provide support to internal clients and ensure
that the Centre operates with a functional team
• information was disseminated at regular staff meetings and via email to ensure staff are kept well informed
• administrative staff were involved in the design and implementation of delivery strategies to ensure participants needs
are addressed from all perspectives
• students and staff were provided with the level of support necessary for them to achieve a positive learning outcome
• staff participated in an Indigenous cultural awareness excursion with elders at Willunga National Park to raise their
understanding of Noongar history, myths and spirituality
• areas for improvement were noted and discussed with relevant staff members and processes for change implemented
• information was disseminated to ensure support staff are able to provide accurate information to existing and
potential clients
• students’ needs were addressed in the planning of courses, delivery and assessment methods and resources chosen
to suit their needs
• Leadership courses have been adapted to enable people with disabilities to have the opportunity to successfully
complete their training
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Key Result Area: Students and staff are given the level of support necessary for them to achieve a positive learning outcome
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•
•

feedback from past and current students was actively sought to continually improve delivery, retention rates and
successful outcomes for our students
retention and successful completion for the Centre’s students is given primary importance and lecturers encourage
students to continue or consider further studies as part of a career plan.

Goal 7 – Developing a highly skilled, innovative & motivated workforce
Key Result Area: Staff have the skills they need to deliver a high quality, responsive service
2005 Outcomes for the WA Centre for Leadership & Community Development for Goal 7:
• all staff participated in internal and external training programs of their choice and as recommended by senior staff
• two support staff are undertaking accredited training programs
• professional staff attended seminars, workshops and the WA Training Forum Conference
• three staff are completing professional training qualifications
• recognition for staff is achieved through the Challenger TAFE staff awards system and staff are actively encouraged and
praised for their efforts.
Goal 8 – Developing an operationally innovative & agile working environment to optimise new
opportunities
Key Result Area: The work environment facilitates productivity & promotes the quality & timeliness of our service delivery
2005 Outcomes for the WA Centre for Leadership & Community Development for Goal 8:
• staff undertake volunteer roles and the accompanying training eg fire warden and first aid officers training
• safety of staff is addressed through special equipment installed in the workplace eg document holders and footrests
are provided for staff and students
• resources and equipment are continually updated to ensure currency eg laptop computers, data projector, pull down
screens, digital video camera and updated software
• risk awareness is incorporated into OH&S units delivered and also included in staff induction.
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12.9 WA WOOL TECHNOLOGY TRAINING CENTRE
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INTRODUCTION
Challenger TAFE continued its partnership in wool training with CY O’Connor College of TAFE (CYOC) and tendered jointly
for new training opportunities. In 2005, the Centre with CYOC, delivered the highest ever level of collaborative training in
wool technology training, including a very substantial amount of Vocational Education and Training for Schools (VETfS).
The Centre is now the largest wool training unit in WA, at a time when eastern states’ colleges are withdrawing input from
the post harvest areas of the industry. Challenger TAFE also delivered training in Esperance to Certificate IV level, utilising
the mobile classroom. Training materials for the updated wool training qualifications were revised and further development
undertaken for the flexible training tools required for remote delivery. The Centre enrolled its first students in this new mode
in 2005. Agreements were established with the West Australian Farmers Federation and Australian Wool Innovations to
deliver additional training, using funding from a national levy system, with training delivery to start in December 2005 and
to continue through 2006.
Goal 1 – Training to deliver a skilled workforce
Key Result Area: Provision of a broad range of training for labour market entrants & workers seeking to further develop their
skills
2005 Outcomes for the WA Wool Technology Training Centre for Goal 1:
• delivery of a full Certificate IV Woolclassing Program in Esperance, based upon industry demand, made possible
through the use of the mobile wool laboratory and the use of donated industry resources
• Wool Technology training delivered by Challenger TAFE doubled in 2005, catering to the very high demand for rural
workforce training in response to the impact of retirement of older workers
• delivered the highest ever level of collaborative training in wool technology training, including a very substantial amount
of Vocational Education and Training for Schools (VETfS), in conjunction with CY O’Connor College of TAFE (CYOC).
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Goal 2 – Promoting life-long learning
Key Result Area: Provision of training for individuals to meet changing personal circumstances & career objectives
2005 Outcomes for the WA Wool Technology Training Centre for Goal 2:
• Wool lecturers worked with Mission Australia IT and Work-for- the-Dole participants on a number of projects designed
to update flexible teaching and assessment resources, over six month period.
Goal 3 – Contributing to the development of sustainable communities, industries and regions
Key Result Area: Sustainable outcomes for WA by collaborating with community & regional organisations in providing
training & services
2005 Outcomes for the WA Wool Technology Training Centre for Goal 3:
• delivered training in Esperance to Certificate IV level, utilising the mobile classroom
• worked in redeveloping training materials for revised wool training qualifications and undertook further development
of flexible training tools required for remote delivery.
Goal 7 – Developing a highly skilled and motivated workforce
Key Result Area: Staff have the skills they need to deliver a high quality, responsive service
2005 Outcomes for the WA Wool Technology Training Centre for Goal 7:
• as part of the Australian Wool Innovation federal funding, Wool lecturers took part in a national training moderation
project and were funded to attend interstate workshops.

12.10 AUSTRALIAN CENTRE FOR ENERGY AND PROCESS TRAINING

Goal 1 – Training to deliver a skilled workforce
Key Result Area: Provision of a broad range of training for labour market entrants and workers seeking to further develop
their skills
2005 Outcomes for ACEPT Goal 1:
• a total of approximately 250 people participated in training through the Centre based at Subiaco across a range of
delivery strategies
• Work commenced on a content development strategy that will provide industry with an enhanced training delivery
response from ACEPT
• establishment of an reinvigorated industry board to provide strategic guidance to ACEPT partner Colleges
• an additional $6 million in State sourced funds was secured to provide further support for the facility’s establishment
• provided support to the Oil and Gas Skills Formation Taskforce Group that has been developing proposals for
alternative pathways into the industry.
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INTRODUCTION
On 1 July 2004, Challenger TAFE assumed management responsibility for the (then) Australian Oil and Gas Industry
Training Centre infrastructure based at Subiaco. On 15 October 2004, the AOGITC Industry Board agreed to a proposal to
rename the facility to the Australian Centre for Energy and Process Training (ACEPT). Working with its ACEPT partners
(Swan TAFE, Central TAFE, Pilbara TAFE, South West Regional College of TAFE and Central West College of TAFE), the
College commenced work on developing a new set of business arrangements. During 2004, in partnership with the Industry
Board and Department of Education and Training, a business case was developed to establish a new energy and related
industries training facility at Henderson. On 30 November, the Premier announced that the WA Government would commit
to the project and it has subsequently allocated $13 million from Commonwealth sourced capital funds to the project. To
be known as the Australian Centre for Energy and Process Training (ACEPT), the project will establish world-class training
infrastructure that will meet the energy and chemical production industries’ requirements for skilled labour. During 2005,
a case was established that saw an additional $6 million in State-sourced funding dedicated to the project. It is anticipated
that the Centre will be operational for the first student intake in 2007.
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Goal 2 – Promoting life-long learning
Key Result Area: Provision of training for individuals to meet changing personal circumstances & career objectives
2005 Outcomes for ACEPT Goal 2:
• Associate Degree pathways were negotiated with a number of Western Australian universities
• ACEPT became a site visit for the Petroleum Club’s Schools Information Program, promoting career opportunities in
the energy and allied industries
• ACEPT staff participated in delivery of Introduction to the Petroleum Industry sessions by the Petroleum Club.
Goal 3 – Contributing to the Development of sustainable communities, industries & regions
Key Result Area: Sustainable outcomes for WA by collaborating with community & regional organisations in providing
training & services
2005 Outcomes for ACEPT Goal 3:
• continued working with the Pilbara College of TAFE to maximise opportunities for that College to win business from
industry developments on the Burrup Peninsula
• entered into discussions with major operating oil and gas companies to develop programs to maximise indigenous
participation in the oil and gas industry.
Goal 4 – Developing Commercial Products to meet state, national & international demands for training &
related services
Key Result Area: Generation of revenue from commercial training & related services
2005 Outcomes for ACEPT Goal 4:
• successfully re-negotiated a contract to supply an auspicing service to Qatar Petroleum through IDP Canberra
• established a memorandum of understanding with the Chamber of Commerce and Industry of Western Australia and
the Australian Petroleum Production and Exploration Association (APPEA) to provide a group employment and training
service to the oil and gas and chemical production industries, including delivery in PMA02 qualifications.
Goal 5 – Providing high quality training products & services in a responsive & timely manner
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Key Result Area: Industry, community & individual clients recognise the quality, timeliness & responsiveness of our training
delivery & our related products & services
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2005 Outcomes for ACEPT Goal 5:
• successfully negotiated secondment with Woodside Energy Ltd for one of their Karratha based training staff to take up
a teaching and learning role within ACEPT
• continued development of additional teaching and learning resources to support delivery from the PMA02 training
package
• expanded teaching and learning capability through recruitment of additional staff with industry expertise.
THE CENTRE IN 2006
The focus of activities in 2006 will be on the establishment of the new Henderson ACEPT facility and on providing world
class training and skills recognition services to oil and gas and chemical production industry clients. Development of a suite
of electronic content to support delivery of qualifications from the Chemical, Hydrocarbons and Oil Refining training
package (PMA02) will also be a key area of activity in 2006. Negotiations will continue with a range of potential partners
consistent with development of a ‘single gateway for the industries through the proposed Henderson facility. Working in
collaboration with WorleyParsons, plans also exist to establish an Induction Centres Australia facility at the ACEPT
Henderson site. Work will also continue in 2006 to establish nodes of ACEPT outside the Perth Metropolitan Area and in
other jurisdictions to support the country’s rapidly expanding energy and chemical production industries. The Northern
Territory and Victoria will be other key focal points for ACEPT activities.
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12.11 KADADJINY MIA – CENTRE FOR ABORIGINAL LEARNING
INTRODUCTION
Kadadjiny Mia continues to provide a support service which caters specifically for Indigenous students in every area of the
College. It is there to offer help and advice regarding enrolment procedures, career advice and gaining access to external
support networks such as Abstudy. In addition, the dedicated team at Kadadjiny Mia works closely with lecturers, managers
and community and industry members to:
•
•
•

ensure the effective promotion and delivery of Aboriginal Programs
facilitate the appropriate recognition of achievements by Indigenous students
provide cultural awareness training to college staff.

Goal 2 – Promoting life-long learning
Key Result Area: Provision of training for individuals to meet changing personal circumstances & career objectives
2005 Outcomes for Kadadjiny MiaGoal 2:
• reclassified one Aboriginal Student Support Officer position to a Level 4 to include career advice and assistance for
training pathways, as part of a more comprehensive support role for students
• coordinated Indigenous art exhibitions – at Murdoch University, Quinlan’s Bar and Winjan Aboriginal Corporation
• promoted Indigenous student outcomes via Recognition Day, Alcoa Scholarships, student awards and special events.
Goal 3 – Contributing to the development of sustainable communities, industries and regions
Key Result Area: Sustainable outcomes for WA by collaborating with community & regional organisations in providing
training & services
2005 Outcomes for Kadadjiny MiaGoal 3:
• continued the partnership with the Winjan Aboriginal Corporation, Peel Region, Nyoongar Patrol partnership with
Fremantle City Council and Department of Indigenous Affairs
• fostered the active involvement of the Aboriginal Advisory Body, Challenger TAFE Aboriginal Employment and Education
Advisory Committee (AEETC).
Goal 4 – Developing commercial products to meet state, national and international demands for training and related
services

2005 Outcomes for Kadadjiny MiaGoal 4:
• attracted Competitively Allocated Tendering funding to provide additional delivery in response to community and
industry needs
• undertook research to identify models of training and delivery and student support to achieve successful outcomes for
Indigenous students into higher levels of VET (Certificate III and above).
Goal 6 – Developing a culture of excellence in the delivery of support services to our clients
Key Result Area: Students & staff are given the level of support necessary for them to achieve a positive learning outcome
2005 Outcomes for Kadadjiny MiaGoal 6
•
•
•
•

Implement findings of indigenous project looking at retention of indigenous learning’s into higher levels of VET across
a range of Aboriginal Programs
Provides students with literacy/numeracy support via the “Successmaker” program which was trialled on a pilot basis
Created a new Level 4 Co-ordinator of Student Support position to provide a more comprehensive career support
service
Provided high-level support to a student with special needs in cooperation with Industry Training Centres
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Key Result Area: Generation of revenue from commercial training & related services
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12.12 PEEL EDUCATION AND TAFE CAMPUS
INTRODUCTION
Since the opening of the Peel Education and Training Campus in 2000, Challenger TAFE has increased its delivery at the
Campus by 100%. Programs are delivered in the following areas: Aboriginal, Access and Bridging, Accounting and Financial
Services, Animal Studies, Art and Design, Automotive, Building and Construction, Business, Management and Office
Administration, Community Services, Conservation and Land Management, Education and Children’s Services,
Horticulture, Information Technology, Maritime, Metals and Engineering and Hospitality and Tourism. The Director of
Training Services for the Peel Region, Centre of Specialisation Directors, Program Managers and delivery staff continue to
work closely with local businesses, community groups and government agencies to ensure that a high level of successful
student outcomes is achieved. In 2005 strong growth in the number of successful students gaining employment outcomes
was experienced across most program areas delivered in the Peel Region.
An outcome of the ‘Learn Local’, Challenger TAFE 2005 special initiative, is that residents of the smaller centres in the Peel
Region are now able to access training and support services in their own towns. During 2005, agreements were established
between Challenger TAFE and four local learning centres to establish Challenger TAFE Access Centres. These have now been
established at the Waroona Community Centre, Boddington Old School, Serpentine Jarrahdale Telecentre in Mundijong and
Murray House in Pinjarra. Regional people are able to; find out what courses are on offer in their local town, discover the
training options available through flexible learning or e-training, complete an enrolment, ask questions about TAFE in general
and register interest in a course that they would like to study at a Challenger TAFE Access Centre. During semester 2005
scheduled classes were conducted in Horticulture, Access Programs and Information Technology in the regional centres.
To support the number of programs that are accessible for regional learners, lecturers involved in the delivery of programs
from Automotive, Children’s Services, Accounting and Financial Services, Conservation and Land Management,
Horticulture and Animal Studies and the Co-ordinators of the Regional Access Centres have participated in two projects
funded by the Australian Flexible Learning Framework. The first project was a LearnScope project where lecturers
experimented with a range of online learning technologies aimed at developing more accessible and flexible delivery and
assessment strategies. The second project, one of the six national “e-learning Creative Communities” projects, focused on
working with the Centre’s regional partners and local business and community groups to implement more accessible and
flexible delivery and assessment strategies within the smaller regional centres of the Peel Region. The outcomes from these
projects will be an increased number of training programs available for regional learners in 2006.
During 2005 Challenger TAFE staff worked collaboratively with the Peel Education and TAFE Campus partners to implement
a range of strategies focused on increasing the retention and participation in education and training in the Peel Region.
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Goal 1 – Training to deliver a skilled workforce
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Key Result Area: Provision of a broad range of training for labour market entrants and workers seeking to further develop
their skills
2005 Outcomes for the Peel Education and TAFE Campus for Goal 1:
• supported the Mandurah Senior College Year 10 Middle School Transition Program, contributing to the development
of career pathway information for the Mandurah Senior College Handbook, participating in the Year 10 Campus open
days and conducting Information Evenings for students and parents
• offered an extensive range of VET for Schools programs, achieving over 900 enrolments in 2005
• programs offered included a Metals and Engineering School Apprenticeship Link program, School Based Traineeships
and a very successful Aboriginal School-Based Traineeship program
• the successful Maritime programs for young people at education risk continued in partnership with the Mandurah
Offshore Fishing and Sailing Club with many of the graduates continuing to further training in the Maritime Industry,
or engaging in other education pathways
• fuelled by the continuing critical shortage of skilled construction workers in the Peel region, the demand for Building
and Construction apprentice training increased by 165% during 2005
• over 120 apprentices accessed off-the-job training at the Peel Campus
• commencement of a Peel Career Combo Program, a regional initiative, providing successful students with the opportunity
to gain a national VET qualification and to commence university studies at Murdoch University at the same time
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•

seventeen students completed a Nursing Combo Program, enabling them to seek employment in the Aged Care
industry and be guaranteed a place to continue their study towards a Bachelor of Nursing Degree from Murdoch
University on the Peel Education and TAFE Campus

Goal 2 – Promoting life-long learning
Key Result Area: Provision of training for individuals to meet changing personal circumstances and career objectives
2005 Outcomes for the Peel Education and TAFE Campus for Goal 2
• organised and participated in the Peel Careers Showcase, with partnering agencies: the Peel Development
Commission, Murdoch University and the Mandurah Youth Commitment
• the Peel Careers Showcase provided information to over 100 Year 11 and 12 students in the Peel Region with visits to
eight workplaces to increase the students’ awareness of the careers and training pathways available in the Peel Region
• Peel Mentoring Project, funded by the Funded by Department of Education and Training Youth Advantage Strategy was
initiated in 2005, training mentors to support young people who are at risk of disengaging from school or TAFE
• suitable young tradespeople, supported by their employers, and indigenous community members, have completed a
mentor training program and their mentor services are now being promoted to local high schools, TAFE, and local
youth services for young people to access
• the Peel Youth Community Based Learning project, a 2005 Innovation project funded by the Department of Education
and Training, provided opportunities for collaboration with six community groups, working with young people in the
Peel Region to develop a skills recognition process customised to meet the needs of young people working in a
community setting and working to address critical skills shortages in the Peel Region.
Goal 3 – Contributing to the development of sustainable communities, industries and regions
Key Result Area: Sustainable outcomes for WA by collaborating with community and regional organisations in providing
training and services
2005 Outcomes for the Peel Education and TAFE Campus for Goal 3:
• established alliances with Peel hospitality and accommodation services’ operators and local government agencies to
increase the number of local skilled workers in this industry
• Hospitality and Tourism programs were developed in collaboration with the local operators and included workplace
experience and guaranteed employment outcomes.
Goal 4 – Developing commercial products to meet state, national and international demands for training and related services

2005 Outcomes for the Peel Education and TAFE Campus for Goal 4:
• the Building and Construction delivery team formed a range of alliances with local builders, continuing to develop
innovative project-based training and assessment strategies to ensure that the number of skilled construction workers
continues to grow in the Peel Region
• construction of a “Wet Trades Training Facility” commenced at the Peel Education and TAFE Campus, funded by the
members of the Peel Building and Construction Industry Taskforce, supporting Wet Trades Pre-Apprenticeship and
VET for Schools Programs being delivered at the Campus in 2006
• an innovative VET for Schools Construction Program was delivered in partnership with middle schools in the Peel
Region and Pinjarra Senior High School with over 50 Year 10 students completing a Certificate 1 in Construction,
through a variety of construction projects within their school environments.
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Key Result Area: Generation of revenue from commercial training & related services
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12.13 APPRENTICESHIPS AND TRAINEESHIPS
INTRODUCTION
The Apprenticeship and Traineeship Unit provides an essential link between the College, the Department of Education and
Training, industry and community groups, schools, group trainers, New Apprentice Centres (NACs), apprentices and
trainees. During 2005, the Apprentice and Traineeship Centre performed a pivotal role in administering and managing some
2,531 apprentice and traineeship records, identifying students at risk and working closely with key stakeholders to achieve
quality outcomes.
Goal 1 – Training to deliver a skilled workforce
Key Result Area: Provision of a broad range of training for labour market entrants and workers seeking to further develop
their skills
2005 Outcomes for Apprenticeships and Traineeships for Goal 1:
• facilitated the introduction of the new Assessment Results Interface (ASRI) system with respect to apprentice and
trainee management across the College.
• managed areas of non-compliance in apprenticeship and traineeship matters and implemented alternative workable
processes to minimise or eliminate future risks
• conducted staff induction programs for College personnel to outline the Apprentice and Traineeship System, policy
guidelines and the Registered Training Organisation Standards’ Framework
• identified potential opportunities for increasing apprenticeship and traineeship delivery and providing assistance to
various Divisions on ‘fee-for-service’ options for existing workers
• responded to feedback from employers or trainees/apprentices with respect to Challenger TAFE’s assessment or
delivery standards and provided assistance with dispute resolution.
• initiated a ‘pilot program’ for the Defence and Resources Industry to centralise the TPO (Training Program Outline)
administrative processes.
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STATISTICS
Western Australia has continued to defy the national trend with a record number of people participating in apprenticeship
and traineeship programs. Challenger TAFE reflected the State average of 11% growth for traditional apprenticeships,
compared with only 4% nationally. Traineeships have surged ahead to reflect a 22% increase on the figures recorded for 2004.
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Data gathered indicates that there was again significant growth in the Building and Construction Industry, fuelled by
interstate and overseas migration and diminished existing housing stocks. This pattern was replicated in new
apprenticeship signups for 2005 – up approximately 22% from 2004. Demand for Horticulture apprentices is declining, in
line with government strategies aimed at eliminating dual qualification levels for traineeships and apprenticeships.
Consequently this year there has been an upward swing of 25% in traineeship placements for this industry.
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Table 12.1 Apprenticeship and Traineeship Registrations (Data collected from Department of Training, Training Records System).
2004
Information Technology, Retail,
Business & Office Administration
Engineering, Automotive
Building and Construction

&

2005
63

49

66

1251

64

1512

Horticulture & Science

104

226

157

202

Hospitality, Hairdressing, Beauty,
Fashion & Human Services

27

406

43

399

Maritime

31

48

Workplace Readiness

37

41

Union Recruiting

10

0

Total

324

416

1883

2115

Note: 2004 figure have been updated to reflect actual current registrations, rather than college enrolments.
Table 12.2 Indigenous apprentices and trainees (Certificate III level and above)
2005
Trainees

Apprentices

Information Technology, Retail, Business & Office
Administration

1

Engineering, Automotive & Construction

1

20

3

6

Horticulture & Science
Hospitality, Hairdressing, Beauty, Fashion
& Human Services
Maritime, Transport & Distribution

7
2

Workplace Readiness

Total

7

33

APPRENTICESHIPS AND TRAINEESHIPS IN 2006
The growth in apprenticeships and traineeships numbers looks very positive, with the Premier of WA recently announcing
an extra $31 million training package to create an additional 14,000 training places over the next four years. Future business
opportunities for Challenger TAFE are expected to be driven by key government strategies designed to address the skills
shortages in sectors such as Building and Construction, Metals and Engineering and Hospitality.
The Metals and Engineering ‘Fast-Track’ program will continue to provide opportunities for existing workers to up-skill to
tradesperson status. The expansion of this program into the Hospitality sector will generate additional apprenticeship
placements for 2006.
Existing worker traineeship ‘fee-for-service’ options are being explored in the Social Housing, Business, Irrigation and
Animal Care areas to cater for industry demand to re-skill workers. These opportunities will provide the impetus for
generating some supplementary revenue for the College in the near future.
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12.14 CENTRE FOR ADULT EDUCATION
INTRODUCTION
The College’s Community Education Program was launched as a Centre of Specialisation in 2005 with the new name ‘Centre
for Adult Education’. The Centre continued to offer a broad range of diverse courses to meet the needs of the local
community, delivering in 24 venues across the region. The introduction of successful online training programs in
computing, management and employment training skills has provided additional training opportunities to members of the
community who are unable to attend face-to-face classes. However, changes to advertising policy have impacted on
performance, resulting in a 35% decrease in enrolments and 30% decrease in revenue, compared to 2004.
Goal 2 – Promoting life-long learning
Key Result Area: Provision of training for individuals to meet changing personal circumstances and career objectives
2005 Outcomes for the Centre for Adult Education for Goal 2:
• has taken a leadership role in managing the State ACE to VET Project funded by the Department of Education and
Training, developing a model for articulation between non-accredited and accredited training.
Goal 3 – Contributing to the development of sustainable communities, industries and regions
Key Result Area: Sustainable outcomes for WA by collaborating with community and regional organisations in providing
training and services
2005 Outcomes for the Centre for Adult Education for Goal 3:
• the Centre received an award from the Department of Education and Training for ‘Outstanding Partnership’ for their
provision of professional development training to staff working for the Disability Services Commission.
Goal 4 – Developing commercial products to meet state, national and international demands for training
and related services
Key Result Area: Generation of revenue from commercial training and related services
2005 Outcomes for the Centre for Adult Education for Goal 4:
• continued providing professional development to high schools and small business in the region
• plans are in place to extend provision of commercial short courses for targeted professional development for other
agencies in 2006.
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Goal 5 – Providing high quality training products and services
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Key Result Area: Industry, community & individual clients recognise the quality, timeliness and responsiveness of our
training delivery and our related products & services
2005 Outcomes for the Centre for Adult Education for Goal 5:
• in recognition of the high quality of its adult education products and services, the Centre was awarded ‘Australian Adult
Education Provider of the Year 2005’ by the national peak body, Adult Learning Australia.
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The College’s Human Resource Management and Development Directorate responds to four Challenger TAFE strategic goals:
• providing industry driven training and related services to skill the workforce
• building and maintaining a viable training organisation in a competitive global training market
• being and employer of choice
• continuously improving its business processes
During 2005, the Directorate started to position itself and the College for the transfer of staff and processes into the
Education and Training Shared Service Centre (ETSSC). The Centre will provide a number of corporate service functions for
State Government agencies in the education sector, including TAFEWA Colleges.
The College provided funds to enable a project officer to be appointed to implement the Employee Self-Service (ESS)
system. ESS is an automated process where staff can submit electronic submission for;
•
•
•
•
•

all leave requests
casual pay and overtime claims
updating personal details
updating bank details
viewing their staff history on line.

Initial training of all College staff commenced in May 2005 and the system was activated in July 2005. Implementation of
the ESS system is mandatory before transition can occur to the ETSSC.

13.1 STAFF AWARDS
Promotion and coordination of the Challenger TAFE Staff Awards Program continued during 2005. A total of 57 staff were
nominated for the 2005. Achievement Awards in the categories of Outstanding Customer Service and Outstanding
Achievement, either as an individual or team member. Five (5) staff members were awarded a 2005 Study Scholarship
Recipients of staff awards have been listed in the Appendix.

13.2 STAFF PROFILE
The Table below shows both the number of Full Time Equivalent (FTE) and individual persons (head count) paid for the pay
period ending 2 December 2005.

Group

Head Count

FTE

Lecturing staff

229

216.99

Academic Support

80

70.51

Academic Management

26

26

Support Staff

167

151.44

Split

7

6

Other

12

12

Casuals (Lecturing/Non Lecturing

248

80.38

Grand Total

769

563.32
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Table 13.1 FTE and Head Count As at 1 December 2005
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13.3 WORKFORCE PLANNING
Recruitment, Selection and Appointment Review
Investigation and formulation of proposed policies, procedures and guidelines for implementation were completed in 2005.
Existing recruitment documentation has been revised and a review of job description formats across a range of government
agencies was conducted during the year.
The anticipated move to a Shared Services configuration in mid-2006 is not expected to impact greatly on progression of
the major recommendations of the review, with many recruitment activities and responsibilities expected to be retained by
the College.

13.4 WORKFORCE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
Introduction
All organisations face challenges now and in the foreseeable future, with respect to attracting, and retaining staff with the
necessary competencies to achieve corporate goals and organisation sustainability. New technologies, government policy,
new market and commercial opportunities, re-skilling, increased competition, just-in-time training, retaining current and
attracting new staff, together with the ageing population and the decline in the available labour market, are all issues that
the College will need to address with appropriate strategies. At both national and state levels workforce development is
addressed as a strategic component of managing the workforce to ensure organisational success. Challenger TAFE is
responding to three imperatives:
•
•
•

a ministerially endorsed national strategy for vocational education and training to respond to emerging skill needs of
the mature aged workforce
the development and implementation of a workforce development strategic plan
activities undertaken to promote the fundamental philosophy that employees are the College’s greatest asset and that
proactive, coherent and consistent management of the workforce is pivotal to achieving outcomes.

This latter aspiration correlates with the ‘Results through People’ theme within the current Challenger TAFE strategic
planning framework.

13.5 OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH
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During 2005, the Human Resource Management and Development Directorate continued to implement its Occupational
Safety and Health (OSH) Business Plan that incorporates Challenger TAFE’s approach to OSH to ensure that safe
management practices applies to staff, students, visitors and contractors of the College. The Business Plan addresses five
key objectives:
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•
•
•
•
•

commitment to achieving high standards of occupational safety and health through effective safety management
planning to establish and maintain a safety management system
effective employee consultation mechanisms are established and maintained
an effective hazard identification system is established, including provision for the identification, assessment and
control of risks
training is arranged to reduce work-related risks and evaluated to ensure effectiveness.

In addition, the OSH policy and associated procedures were updated and made available to all staff via the Intranet. This
initiative complimented the role of the College’s OSH Coordinator in meeting the College’s legislative and statutory
requirements.
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Workers Compensation
There were seven new workers compensation claims submitted during 2005, six of which did not lead to absence from the
workplace and one that incurred lost time). Of these new claims, three have since been finalised. During 2005 there were
19 on-going active claims of which 12 were claims from previous years. Of these 19, 11 have since been settled or closed
over the past 12 months.
Over recent years there has been a reduction in the following OSH performance indicators:
• 2% reduction in workers Compensation premiums between 03/04 and 04/05
• 64% reduction in workers compensation claims between 02/03 and 04/05
• 22% reduction in total workers compensation claims between 01/02 and 04/05
Table 13.2 Workers Compensation and Injury Management Outcomes 2001-2005
2001/02

2002/03

2003/04

2004/05

Premium/contribution rate*

0.77

0.73

.79

0.70

Cost of claims incurred per $100
wage roll

0.75

.051

0.50

0.67

4.23

1.57

0.78

4.20

100

50

100

50

Frequency rate (Lost-time injuries
per million hours worked)
Rehabilitation success rate (%)
(Index of successful
rehabilitation cases)

* The rate at which an agency pays its RiskCover insurance premium is calculated on the level of risk the agency has
incurred in a previous year; the lower the risk level achieved in a year, the lower the premium required to be paid in a
subsequent year.
WorkSafe Plan Certificate of Achievement
Challenger TAFE was recently awarded a WorkSafe Plan Silver Certificate of Achievement making it only the 4th government
agency in this State to receive such an award.

Appointment of a full-time Occupational Safety & Health Coordinator has facilitated a raised awareness and profile of OSH
across the organisation and led to:
• improvement in the College’s overall safety performance.
• a review of its training requirements
• a reviewing its existing hazard management systems and processes.
Widespread changes to work practices have been effective and resulted in a reduction in the overall rate of work-related
injuries. Receipt of the Silver Certificate provides recognition for the extensive effort put into improving safety by managers,
safety representatives and staff.
Raising Awareness
To acquaint employees with their responsibilities and associated obligations in regard to OSH, an Information Handbook
was produced and distributed to all staff. The handbook provided information on safety rules, procedures and precautions
and enabled employees to understand more fully the OSH management system and the affect and implications of OSH
legislation on individuals.
This Information Handbook proved to be a catalyst in improving safety and health standards across the College.
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This Award recognises the achievement of the College to implement safety and health management systems and practices
to ensure that employees and students are not exposed to hazards. In achieving this recognition the following key
recommendations where implemented:

112

CHAPTER 13

Human Resources

Safety Programs
During 2005 the College undertook a variety of workplace health assessments for staff that were considered to be in high
risk areas. These included ergonomic, audiometric, senior first aid, manual handling and eye screening programs.
Approximately 110 staff attended a safety training course and a further 130 participated in a safety management program.

13.6 WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT
The Workforce Development Unit’s strategic priorities for 2005, aligned with the College theme of Results Through People
in the Strategic Planning Framework for 2005–2010 and the Workforce Management Strategy. The vision in the Workforce
Management Strategy is Challenger TAFE – An Employer of Choice including two priority actions, right people and right
skills.
As well as developing strategies and programs that demonstrate the College’s commitment to supporting and recognising
staff in their professional duties, activities were undertaken to progress the priority actions.
During 2005 these activities included two projects in the areas of change management for the Teaching & Learning
Directorate and succession planning for the Workforce Development Unit. These projects will continue in 2006, along with
other projects such as refining the College’s recruitment & selection process, promoting a ‘family friendly’ environment and
encouraging youth employment in the College.
•

•
•
•
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•
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The major individual training priorities for 2005 were identified in the Career Development & Performance
Enhancement System as teaching, learning and assessment, leadership and management skills and personal
effectiveness skills. In addition, the Workforce Development Unit coordinated specific whole-of-college programs.
Examples included: .
a series of marketing sessions for TRD Directors and Program Managers
continuation of the Navigator Program instigated in 2004 to provide access to formal qualifications for Level 1 and 2
staff to undertake a skills recognition program to attain the Certificate III in Government
the introduction of a Navigator Plus Program offered to GOSAC Level 3 and 4 staff and the graduates of the 2004
Navigator Program, enabling them to undertake a Certificate IV in Government
Workforce Development, HRM&D and other support services units coordinated a number of programs during the year
which also covered all College staff, including management and other staff from lecturing and non- lecturing units.
This participation is not reflected in the training and development data given below, as TRD staff professional
development is included in the Teaching & Learning Directorate figures. The courses included:
•
management development and information forums
•
employee self-serve training
•
site manager computer training
•
TRD marketing sessions
•
OSH
•
CMIS training

Up to November 2005 a total of 5 484 training and development hours were recorded by non-lecturing staff with 700
training occurrences recorded in the following areas:
• diversity cross-cultural awareness
• indigenous cultural awareness
• strategic planning
• management development & information forums
• employee self-service
• site manager training
• CMIS training
• occupational safety and health
• vocational and technical skills
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In 2005 a system was implemented to enable management staff to access details of their staff’s professional development
activities through the Executive Information System.
OTHER REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
Public Sector Standards, Ethics and EEO Survey
The most recent staff survey conducted by the Office of the Public Sector Standards Commissioner revealed that Challenger
TAFE was well above the aggregate Public Sector percentage for employees who were aware of the Public Sector Standards
and how to lodge a breach claim, as well as awareness of the College’s ethical behaviour policies.
Staff Equity and Diversity
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The development and endorsement of the Staff Equity and Diversity Plan occurred in 2002. The College has an active and
ongoing commitment to greater representation of Indigenous Australians, people with disabilities, people with culturally
and linguistically diverse backgrounds and youth within the College. Similarly, recent enhancements to recruitment policies,
practices and procedures concurrent with workforce development strategies, are anticipated to lead to a greater distribution
of women across the College workforce including, a stronger representation of women in the top three management tiers
and an increasingly equitable and diverse workforce profile.
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As a college within TAFEWA, Challenger TAFE is an autonomous government agency created under the Vocational
Education and Training Act 1996. Its purpose is to research, develop and deliver training and related services that support
the development of individuals from a range of backgrounds, industry, our communities and the State within a sustainable
environment, and focusing particularly on industry areas currently experiencing skills shortages.
Challenger TAFE is listed as a government department for the purpose of meeting the requirements of the Public Sector
Management Act 1994, Superannuation and Family Benefits Act 1938, Government Employees Superannuation Act 1987
and the Government Employees Housing Act 1964.

14.1 COMPLIANCE WITH WRITTEN LAW
Challenger TAFE has exercised controls, which provide reasonable assurance that it has complied with all relevant
requirements of the written law, including those for the receipt and expenditure of monies, the acquisition and disposal of
public properties and the incurring of liabilities.
Challenger TAFE complies with the following legislation in carrying out its functions and activities:
• Equal Employment Act 1984
• Education Act 1928
• Electoral Act 1907
• Financial Administration & Audit Act 1985
• Freedom of Information Act 1992
• Government Employees Superannuation Act 1987
• Industrial Relations Act 1979; 1990 Commonwealth
• Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Act 1984
• Public Sector Management Act 1994
• Vocational Education and Training Act 1996
• Workers’ Compensation and Assistance Act 1981
• Workplace Agreement Act 1994

14.2 ACCESS AND EQUITY
Challenger TAFE has complied with the requirement to:
• report on cultural diversity and language services outcomes (information is provided in Chapter 11.9 of this report);
• develop, implement and report on its Disability Service Plan -Disability Services Act 1993 (refer to Chapter 11.8);
• report on youth outcomes(refer to Chapter 10).
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14.3 ADVERTISING AND SPONSORSHIP (ELECTORAL ACT 1907 S175ZE)
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Challenger TAFE paid $59,272 to Media Decisons, a division of Marketforce Advertising and paid $392,536 to Marketforce
Advertising for advertising purposes during 2005. This amount included $12,867 for advertising for recruitment purposes.

14.4 ENERGY SMART GOVERNMENT POLICY
The College has initiated an Energy Management Strategy in an alliance with the Sustainable Energy Development Office
(SEDO) to reduce energy consumption through the organisation.
During 2005 the College made substantial advancements towards generating energy savings in 2006 and beyond. In
accordance with the Energy Smart Government Policy, Challenger TAFE is committed to achieving a 12% reduction in nontransport related energy use by 2006-2007. (Refer to Chapter 10.)
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14.5 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES
Under the Equal Opportunity Ad 1984, Challenger TAFE has complied with the requirement to develop and implement an
Equal Employment Opportunity Management Plan. The development and endorsement of the Staff Equity and Diversity
Plan occurred in 2002. The College has an active and ongoing commitment to greater representation of Indigenous
Australians, people with disabilities, people with culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds and youth within the
College. Similarly, recent enhancements to recruitment policies, practices and procedures, concurrent with workforce
development strategies, are anticipated to lead to a greater distribution of women across the College workforce, a stronger
representation of women within the top three management tiers and an increasingly equitable and diverse workforce profile.
(Refer to Chapter 13.)

14.6 EVALUATIONS
In accordance with the Circular to Ministers No. 37/94, summaries of evaluations undertaken by Challenger TAFE are
published in this Annual Report. Evaluations of organisational performance are reported in Chapter 8 under the Key
Performance Indicators for TAFEWA colleges and the College’s internal performance indicators in the same chapter. (Refer
to Chapter 8).
In addition, this Annual Report includes a comprehensive response to the Priorities set by the Minister. (Refer to Chapter 5.)

14.7 DISABILITY SERVICES PLAN OUTCOMES (DISABILITY SERVICES ACT S29)
Vis. ‘Working with the following outcomes for the Disability Services Plan:
Existing services meet with the specific client needs under the Australian Quality Training Framework and are adapted to
ensure they comply with:
• Commonwealth Disability Discrimination Act 1992
• Disability Standards for Education 2005
• Disability Services Act (1993) Amended 1999 and 2004
Thus meeting the needs of people with medical conditions/disabilities, seeking further education and training’.
Information about the College’s services is provided in formats which meet the communication requirements of people with
disabilities.
Advice and services are delivered by staff trained in the awareness and understanding of the needs of people with
disabilities.

Challenger TAFE has addressed outcomes to their Disability Services Plan in the following ways:
•
•

Ensuring all policies and procedures that govern the operation of functions, facilities, programs and services are
consistent with its policy on accesses and equity for people with disabilities.
Installed height adjustable service counters, improved accessibility of toilets and parking areas, installed accessible
drinking fountains, improved gradients on ramps, handrails to stairs, installed automatic opening doors to major areas
and improved classroom accessibility.

Information about services and programs (printed material) is provided in formats that enhance the communication needs
of people with disabilities, using electronic formats, scanners and adaptive technology.
Students with disabilities play an active role on College committees and in the provision of feedback on procedures.
A full-time Disability Services Manager is available to students across all campuses and centres.
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Opportunities are provided for people with disabilities to participate in public consultations, grievance mechanisms and
decision-making processes.
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14.8 INFORMATION STATEMENT
Challenger TAFE has complied with the requirement to report on the management of requests under the Freedom of
Information Act 1992. Challenger TAFE meets the requirements of the FOI Act to provide for the public right of access to
the information, which it holds. Details of its organisational structure, mission, values, goals and policies are incorporated
in a range of documents, including its Quality Manual and Annual Report.
Sources of information available to clients and customers without them having to use the FOI instrumentation include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

course information (College web-site)
enrolment dates,
Handbook,
advertisements, flyers
Course Information Officers and Prospective Student Advisers (available at all delivery sites)
Challenger TAFE Customer Service Charter
student support services brochures and student diary
Policy and Procedures Manual – available at the Learning Resource Centres (LRC’s)
“Seven Waves” magazine produced by Challenger TAFE (distributed to industry, staff and graduates)
“Quest” magazine produced by Challenger TAFE (distributed to industry, staff and graduates)

Freedom of Information
The College received one application during the year and this matter is not expected to be concluded until 2006.

14.9 PUBLIC INTERESTS DISCLOSURES
In accordance with the Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003 policy, procedures and guidelines for staff and informants have
been developed and approved. During the calendar year 2005 Challenger TAFE did not receive any Public Interest
Disclosures.

14.10 PUBLIC SECTOR STANDARDS AND ETHICAL CODES
In accordance with the Public Sector Management Act 1994 S 31 (1), Challenger TAFE has policy, guidelines and processes
in place which support compliance with the Public Sector Standards in Human Resource Management, the Public Sector
Code of Ethics and Challenger TAFE's Code of Conduct.
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The most recent staff survey conducted by the Office of the Public Sector Standards Commissioner revealed that Challenger
TAFE was well above the aggregate Public Sector percentage for employees who were aware of the Public Sector Standards
and knowledge of how to lodge a breach claim, as well as having an awareness of the College’s ethical policies.
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14.11 REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT POLICY
Challenger TAFE is responsive to the needs of its region in researching, developing and delivering training and related
services, which support the development of individuals, industry, and communities. In 2004-2005, the College’s planning,
program and service delivery were guided by specific strategies listed in the Government's Regional Development Policy.
Conformance with Regional Development Policy requirements is reported under Chapter 16 Financial Statements.
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14.12 REPORTING AND RECORDKEEPING PLANS
Challenger TAFE's Record Keeping Plan has been completed and submitted to the State Records Office on 31 December
2005. The full approval of the State Records Office will be obtained on the finalisation of the Retention and Disposal
Schedule. The development of the Schedule is in progress.
State Records Commission Standard 2: Principle 6
The efficiency and effectiveness of the organisation’s
recordkeeping system is evaluated not less than once
every five years.

In compliance with this review cycle, an evaluation of the
College’s recordkeeping system and capture of baseline
data will be undertaken in 2006.

The organisation conducts a recordkeeping training program.

On demand training is provided as necessary.

The efficiency and effectiveness of the recordkeeping
training program is reviewed from time to time.

A formal review of the recordkeeping training program is
planned in 2006.

The organisation’s induction program addresses
employees roles and responsibilities with regard to their
compliance with the organisation’s recordkeeping plan.

An information booklet is provided to each person
inducted which covers the basic recordkeeping
requirements. Staff are also made aware of the College
procedures that are available on the intranet.

14.13 SUSTAINABILITY ACTION PLAN
Challenger TAFE has met the 2005 outcomes of Challenger TAFE’s Sustainability Action Plan.
Sustainability Action Plan 2005-2007
Challenger TAFE is committed to ensuring that the College embraces the principles of sustainability in all its activities, in
particular its core business ‘delivery of training’ and also in educating its staff on the importance of contributing to
sustainability on an ongoing basis.
In 2005 Challenger TAFE has worked in applying the three key elements of sustainability:
1. Social sustainability – contribution to developing social capital and capacity building.
2. Economic Sustainability – elements of organisational and financial sustainability.
3. Environmental sustainability – responsiveness to energy efficiency, water conservation and waste minimisation.

The College’s Sustainability Action Plan, which details actions to be addressed in achieving successful sustainability
outcomes, was reviewed in 2005 and updated, taking into account available resources, new areas of activity and also the
enhancement of existing actions.
Challenger TAFE aims to excel in developing and managing sustainability principles and encourages its staff and key
stakeholders to actively participate in achieving best practice.
A particular saving initiative in 2005 was the installation of multi-function devices (MFDs) as a replacement for
photocopiers, fax machines and stand-alone printers. This initiative has brought about substantial savings and increased
efficiency and effectiveness in the management of document transfer and production.
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In fulfilling the objectives of the Government’s Sustainability Framework, management and staff, in conjunction with key
stakeholders, ensure that all elements of sustainability are considered and where appropriate, form part of the planning and
decision-making processes within the College.
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14.14 WASTE PAPER RECYCLING
Challenger TAFE is committed to the conservation and preservation of physical resources. As required by the Cabinet
Minute 2.7 of October 1991, a report on Waste Paper Recycling is included in this Annual Report. (Refer to Chapter 10.)

14.15 COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC SECTOR STANDARDS AND ETHICAL CODES
Challenger TAFE has complied with public sector standards, and its staff and instrumentalities adhere to the College’s
published code of ethics and conduct.

14.16 CORRUPTION PREVENTION
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Challenger TAFE has developed risk management strategies to minimise the risk of corruption and misconduct. (Refer to
Chapter 10.)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CHALLENGER TAFE

The accompanying financial statements of Challenger TAFE
have been prepared in conmpliance with the provisions of
the Financial Administration annd Audit Act 1985 from proper accoounnts and
reords to present fairly the financial transactions for the year ending
31 December 2005 and the financial position as at 31 December 2005.

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which
would render any particulars included in the financial statements
misleading or inaccurate.

14/3/06
Dated

13/3/06
Managing Director
(Member of Governing Council)

Dated

10/3/06
Principal Accounting Officer

Dated
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Chairperson of Governing Council

120

C h a l l e n g e r TA F E – A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 0 5

CHAPTER 15

Financial Statements

121

CHAPTER 15

Financial Statements

Challenger TAFE
INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005
Notes

2005

2004

$

$

COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits expense

7

37,406,696

35,323,396

Supplies and services

8

13,191,261

12,108,077
3,053,745

Depreciation and amortisation expense

9

4,043,012

Finance costs

10

324

62,179

Grants and subsidies

11

168,418

148,119

Capital user charge

12

6,386,313

5,521,090

Cost of sales

17

522,099

687,221

Loss on disposal of non-current assets

21

43,050

96,520

Other expenses

13

3,181,306

4,091,933

64,942,479

61,092,280

Total cost of services
Income
Revenue
Fee for service

14

6,273,544

6,059,885

Student fees and charges

15

5,383,778

5,275,733

Ancillary trading

16

433,679

498,843

Sales

17

765,677

736,058

Commonwealth grants and contributions

18

50,295.00

11,730

Interest revenue

19

486,685

457,719

Other revenue

20

1,364,628

1,780,403

Total revenue

14,758,286

14,820,371

NET COST OF SERVICES

(50,184,193)

(46,271,909)

44,863,327

42,106,346

245,376

137,062

22

State funds
Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer
Assets assumed/(transferred)

-

50,773

Resources received free of charge

1,279,020

1,464,612

Total income from State Government

46,387,723

43,758,793

SURPLUS/DEFICIT FOR PERIOD

(3,796,470)

(2,513,116)

The Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT

122

CHAPTER 15

Financial Statements

Challenger TAFE
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005
Notes

2005

2004

$

$

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

23

6,959,759

7,219,975

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

24

569,068

635,898

Inventories

25

196,759

181,284

Receivables

26

1,799,572

1,861,942

Other current assets

27

Total Current Assets

-

535,742

9,525,158

10,434,841

94,055,030

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant & equipment

28

113,307,982

Intangible assets

29

27,163

83,856

113,335,145

94,138,886

122,860,303

104,573,727

Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables

30

718,387

499,207

Provisions

31

7,463,570

6,993,395

Other current liabilities

32

1,465,800

1,419,703

9,647,757

8,912,305

Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities

1,108,964

1,043,252

Total Non-Current Liabilities

1,108,964

1,043,252

Total Liabilities

10,756,721

9,955,557

112,103,582

94,618,170

Provisions

31

NET ASSETS
Equity

11,354,124

3,360,443

Reserves

45,261,871

31,973,670

Accumulated surplus/(deficit)

55,487,587

59,284,057

112,103,582

94,618,170
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TOTAL EQUITY
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33

Contributed equity

The Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
Items such as derivative financial instruments that may be recognised for the first time under AASB 139 will have a value of 'NIL'
until their recognintion on 1 July 2005.

CHAPTER 15

Financial Statements

Challenger TAFE
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005
Notes
Balance of equity at start of period

46

CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

33

2005

2004

$

$
94,618,170

Balance at start of period

3,360,443

Capital contributions

8,622,081
-

Other contributions by owners

(628,400)

Distributions to owners
Balance at end of period

RESERVES

84,576,580

3,360,443
-

11,354,124

3,360,443

31,973,670

22,714,312

33

Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance at start of period

-

Changes in accounting policy or correction of prior period errors

-

Restated balance at start of period

31,973,670

Gains/(losses) from asset revaluation

13,288,201

9,259,358

Balance at end of period

45,261,871

31,973,670

59,284,057

61,862,268

33

Balance at start of period
Net adjustment on transition to AIFRS

46

-

(65,095)

Restated balance at start of period

59,284,057

Surplus/(deficit) for the period

(3,796,470)

Balance at end of period

55,487,587

59,284,057

112,103,582

94,618,170

Balance of equity at the end of period

61,797,173
(2,513,116)
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ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (RETAINED EARNINGS)

22,714,312
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Challenger TAFE
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005
Notes

2005

2004

$

$

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
42,270,495

Recurrent state funding - Department of Education and Training

(628,400)

Distribution to Owner - Department of Education and Training
Net cash provided by State Government

41,206,053
-

41,642,095

41,206,053

Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
(33,666,640)

(31,927,753)

Supplies and services

(11,383,487)

(9,735,753)

Grants and subsidies

(168,418)

(194,927)

Employee benefits

(62,503)

Finance costs

-

Capital User Charge

(6,386,313)

(7,062,041)

GST payments on purchases

(1,454,426)

(1,261,651)

GST payments to taxation authority
Other payments

(717,932)

(444,694)

(3,167,282)

(4,021,200)

Receipts
6,441,429

6,101,215

5,358,118

5,160,999

Ancillary trading

433,679

498,843

Interest received

494,749

457,718

Fee for service
Student fees and charges

Commonwealth grants and contributions
GST receipts from on sales

50,295

11,730

723,917

1,007,015

GST receipts from taxation authority

1,440,672

464,112

Other receipts

1,608,206

1,879,866

(40,455,936)

(39,066,521)

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

34

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
158,536
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Proceeds from the sale of non-current physical assets
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226,032

Purchase of non-current physical assets

(1,671,741)

(1,467,237)

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities

(1,513,205)

(1,241,205)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(327,046)

898,327

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period

7,855,873

6,957,546

7,528,827

7,855,873

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF PERIOD

34

The Cash Flow Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

CHALLENGER TAFE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

1 First time adoption of Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards
This is the College’s first published financial statements prepared under Australian equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards (AIFRS).
‘Accounting Standard AASB1 First time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards’
has been applied in preparing these financial statements. Until 31 December 2004 the financial statements of the College
had been prepared under the previous Australian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (AGAAP).
The Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) adopted the Standards of the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) for application to reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005 by issuing AIFRS which comprise a
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements, Accounting Standards and the Urgent Issue
Group (UIG) Interpretations.
In accordance with the option provided by AASB 1 paragraph 36A and exercised by Treasurer’s Instruction 1106 ‘Transition
to Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards’, financial instrument information prepared under
AASB 132 and AASB 139 will apply from 1 January 2005 and consequently comparative information for financial instruments
is presented on the previous AGAAP basis. All other comparative information is prepared under the AIFRS basis.
Reconciliations explaining the transition to AIFRS as at 1 January 2004 and 31 December 2004 are provided at note 46.
2 Significant accounting policies
(a) General Statement
The financial statements constitute a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with the
Australian Accounting Standards. The Treasurer’s Instructions may modify or clarify their application, disclosure,
format and wording to provide certainty and to ensure consistency and appropriate reporting across the public sector.
The Financial Administration and Audit Act and the Treasurer’s Instructions are legislative provisions governing the
preparation of financial statements and take precedence over the Accounting Standards, UIG Interpretations and other
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board.
Where modification is required and has a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details of
that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
(b) Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost convention,
modified by the revaluation of land, buildings, plant and equipment which have been measured at fair value.
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently applied
throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars rounded to the nearest dollar.

The key assumptions made concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are disclosed at note 5 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’.
(c) Reporting Entity
The reporting entity comprises the College and entities listed at note 42 ‘Related bodies’
(d) Contributed Equity
UIG Interpretation 1038 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities’ requires transfers in
the nature of equity contributions to be designated by the Government (the owner) as contributions by owners (at the
time of, or prior to transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions. Capital contributions
(appropriations) are designated as contributions by owners and have been credited directly to Contributed Equity.
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The judgements that have been made in the process of applying the College’s accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are disclosed at note 4 ‘Judgements made by
management in applying accounting policies’.
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(e) Income
Revenue
The funds received from the Department of Education and Training in respect of the delivery of services forming part of
the Delivery Performance Agreement have been disclosed as State Funds under 'Revenues from State Government'.
This revenue is recognised in the period in which the College meets the terms of the Agreement.
The majority of operating revenue of the College represents revenue earned from student fees and charges, fee for
service, ancillary services, trading activities and Commonwealth grants and subsidies, as well as revenue received from
the Department of Education and Training as a result of training successfully tendered for under competitive tendering
arrangements. Revenue from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets, and the rendering of services is
recognised when the College has passed control of the goods or other assets, or delivery of the service to the customer.
Grants and Other Contributions Revenue
Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions are recognised as revenue when the College obtains
control over the assets comprising the contributions. Control is normally obtained upon their receipt.
Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at their fair value.
Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would be
purchased if not donated.
Where contributions recognised as revenues during the period were obtained on the condition that they be expensed in
a particular manner or used over a particular period, and these conditions were undischarged at the reporting date, the
nature of, and amounts pertaining to, those undischarged conditions are disclosed in the notes.
Gains
Gains may be realised or unrealised and are usually recognised on a net basis. These include gains arising on the
disposal of non current assets and some revaluations of non current assets.
(f ) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs for qualifying assets are capitalised net of any investment income earned on the unexpended portion
of the borrowings. Other borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.
(g) Property, Vehicles, Plant and Equipment
Initial recognition and measurement
All items of property, vehicles plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost.
For items of property, vehicles, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, the cost is their
fair value at the date of acquisition.
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Items of property, vehicles, plant and equipment costing less than $1,000 are expensed in the year of acquisition (other
than where they form part of a group of similar items which are significant in total).
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Subsequent measurement
After recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used for the measurement of land and buildings and the cost
model for all other property, plant and equipment. Land and buildings, property, vehicles and plant and equipment are
carried at fair value less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Artworks are stated at
historical cost.
Where market evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of current market
buying values determined by reference to recent market transactions.
Where market evidence is not available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of existing use.
This normally applies where buildings are specialised or where land use is restricted. Fair value for existing use assets
is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e.
the depreciated replacement cost. The revaluation of land and buildings is provided independently on an annual basis
by the Department of Land Information (Valuation Services).
When buildings are revalued, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount.
The most significant assumptions in estimating fair value are made in assessing whether to apply the existing use
basis to assets. Professional judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does not provide a clear
distinction between market type assets and existing use assets.
Refer to note 28 ‘Property, plant and equipment’ for further information on revaluations.
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Depreciation
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their useful lives in a manner
which reflects the consumption of their future economic benefits.
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which
are reviewed annually. Expected useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are:
Buildings
Motor Vehicles, Caravans and Trailers
Plant, Furniture and General Equipment
Computing, Communications and Software
Marine Craft

40 to 96 years
5 to23 years
4 to 28 years
1 to 15 years
8 to 19 years

Works of art controlled by the College are classified as plant, property and equipment which is anticipated to have a
very long and indefinite useful lives. Their service potential has not, in any material sense, been consumed during the
reporting period and so no amount for depreciation has been recognised.
(h) Intangible Assets
All acquired and internally developed intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or
for nominal consideration, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses
All acquired and internally developed intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost for
nominal consideration, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the assets to be carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
The carrying amount of intangible assets is reviewed annually for impairment when the asset is not yet in use, or more
frequently when an indicator of impairment arises during the reporting year indicating that the carrying value may not
be recoverable.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the period of the expected benefit (estimated
useful life) on the straight line basis using rates which are reviewed annually. The useful life of software is 2.5 years. All
intangible assets controlled by the College have a finite useful life and zero residual value.
Licences
Licences have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.
Computer Software
Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is treated as property, plant and equipment. Software that is
not an integral part of the related hardware is treated as an intangible asset. Software costing less than $1,000 is
expensed in the year of acquisition.
Impairment of Assets
Property, plant and equipment, infrastructure and intangible assets are tested for any indication of impairment at each
reporting date. Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. Where the
recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is written down to the recoverable amount and an
impairment loss is recognised. As the College is a not for profit entity, unless an asset has been identified as a surplus
asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost.
The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is materially understated or
where the replacement cost is falling. Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated
depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration of asset’s future economic benefits and to
evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement costs.
The college has adopted a revaluation policy that requires the restatement of the fair value of plant and equipment
every three years.
Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
at each reporting date irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment.
The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the
present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no
risk of material impairment. Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of impairments at each reporting date.
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(i)
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(j)

Non current Assets (or Disposal Groups) Classified as Held for Sale
Non current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale are recognised at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell and are presented separately from other assets in the Balance Sheet. Assets classified as held for sale are
not depreciated or amortised.

(l)

Financial Instruments
The College has two categories of financial instrument:
• Loans and receivables (includes cash and term deposits); and
• Non trading financial liabilities.
Initial recognition and measurement is at fair value. Usually the transaction cost or face value is equivalent to fair value
and subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rate are measured at transaction cost/face value if the
effect of discounting is immaterial.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalent (and restricted cash and cash equivalent) assets
comprise cash on hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank
overdrafts.
(l)

Accrued Salaries
Accrued salaries (see note 'Other Liabilities') represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial
year, as the end of the last pay period for that financial year does not coincide with the end of the financial year.
Accrued salaries are settled within a few days of the financial year end. The College considers the carrying amount to be
equivalent net fair value.

(m) Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and the net realisable value. Costs are assigned by the method most
appropriate to each particular class of inventory, with the majority being valued on a first in first out basis.
Inventories not held for resale are valued at cost unless they are no longer required, in which case they are valued at
net realisable value.
(n) Receivables
Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less any provision for uncollectible amounts
(impairment). The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as
uncollectible are written off. The provision for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when collectability is
no longer probable. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days. See note
2(l) ‘Financial Instruments’ and note 26 ‘Receivables’.
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(o) Payables
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Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the College becomes obliged to make future payments as a
result of a purchase of assets or services. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as they are generally settled
within 30 days. See note 2(l) ‘Financial Instruments’ and note 30 ‘Payables’.
(p) Provisions
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and amount and are recognised where there is a present legal, equitable or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow of economic benefits is probable and can be
measured reliably. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet reporting date. See note 31 ‘Provisions’
(i) Provisions – Employee benefits
Annual Leave and Long Service Leave
The liability for annual and long service leave expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the reporting
date is recognised and measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
Annual and long service leave expected to be settled more than 12 months after the end of the reporting date is
measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Leave liabilities are in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.
When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels including
non salary components such as employer superannuation contributions. In addition, the long service leave liability
also considers the experience of employee departures and periods of service.
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The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national government bonds
with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.
All annual leave and unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the College does
not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
A liability for long service leave is recognised after an employee has completed four years of service. An actuarial
assessment of long service leave undertaken by Price Waterhouse Coopers Actuaries in 2005 determined that the
liability measured using the short hand method was not materially different from the liability measured using the
present value of expected future payments.
Superannuation
The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) administers the following superannuation schemes.
Employees may contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme now closed to new members or
the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme also closed to new members.
The College has no liabilities under the Pension or the GSS Schemes. The liabilities for the unfunded Pension Scheme
and the unfunded GSS Scheme transfer benefits due to members who transferred from the Pension Scheme, are
assumed by the Treasurer. All other GSS Scheme obligations are funded by concurrent contributions made by the
College to the GESB Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer. All other GSS Scheme obligations are funded by
concurrent contributions made by the College to the GESB.
Employees who are not members of either the Pension or the GSS Schemes become non contributory members of the
West State Superannuation (WSS) Scheme, an accumulation scheme. The College makes concurrent contributions to
GESB on behalf of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation Guarantee
(Administration) Act 1992. These contributions extinguish all liabilities in respect of the WSS Scheme.
The GESB makes all benefit payments and is recouped by the Treasurer for the employer share in respect of the
Pension and GSS Scheme transfer benefits.
See also note 2(q) ‘Superannuation expense’.
(ii) Provisions - Other
Employment On Costs
Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and are recognised as
separate liabilities and expenses when the employment to which they relate has occurred. Employment on-costs are
not included as part of the College’s ‘Employee benefits expense’ and the related liability is included in Employment
on-costs provision. (See note 13 ‘Other expenses’ and note 36 ‘Provisions’).
(q) Superannuation Expense
The following elements are included in calculating a superannuation expense:

(b)Defined contribution plans – Employer contributions paid to the GSS and the West State Superannuation Scheme
(WSS).
Defined benefit plans – in order to reflect the true cost of services, the movements in the liabilities in respect of the
Pension Scheme and the GSS transfer benefits are recognised as expenses. As these liabilities are assumed by the
Treasurer (refer note 2(u)(i)), a revenue titled ‘Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer’ equivalent to the expense is
recognised under Income from State Government in the Income Statement (See note 22 ‘Income from State
Government’).
The superannuation expense does not include payment of pensions to retirees, as this does not constitute part of the
cost of services provided in the current year.
The Gold State superannuation scheme is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole of
government reporting. However, apart from the transfer benefit, it is a defined contribution plan for agency purposes
because the concurrent contributions (defined contributions) made by the agency extinguish all agency liabilities.
(r)

Resources Received Free of Charge or for Nominal Value
Resources received free of charge or for nominal value which can be reliably measured are recognised as revenues and
as assets or expenses, as appropriate at fair value.

(s) Comparative Figures
Comparative figures have been restated on the AIFRS basis except for financial instruments which have been prepared
under the previous AGAAP Australian Accounting Standard AAS 33. The transition date to AIFRS for financial
instruments will be 1 January 2005 in accordance with AASB 1 paragraph 36A and Treasurer’s Instruction 1106.
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(a) Defined benefit plans - Change in the unfunded employer’s liability assumed by the Treasurer in respect of current
employees who are members of the Pension Scheme and current employees who accrued a benefit on transfer from
that Scheme to the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS); and
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2005

2004

$

$

3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
For 2004 reporting, financial instruments data will continue to be prepared on the existing AGAAP basis of accounting.
guidance will be provided. Primary disclosures required under AIFRS are noted below.
Approximately 70% of the college funding is under an arrangement with the state government for delivery of training with
an additional 40% of either revenue from students associated with this delivery . The college therefore has a high
dependence on government for the continued delivery of training services. The level of service is negotiated annually with
modification to growth forming part of the overall strategic plan of the college.
Investments of cash and cash equivalents are held in accordance with Treasury approval to operate bank accounts. Interest
is generated through bank term deposits and interest bearing cheque account.
Receivables are unsecured requiring prompt follow up with reminder letters and subsequent referral to a debt collection
agency. Refer note 2 (o) for further details.
Payables are held at fair value and are normally cleared within 30 days.
4 Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies
No significant judgements have been made that would materially alter the current financial results of the college.
5 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions made concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year include:
Student receivables under 60 days due are considered collectable and a provision made for the full value of those which are
greater.
General receivables from other government agencies are considered risk free, no provision, and all others are by individual
assessment, with a provision to the full value if required.
College revalues its Land and Buildings every year and Plant and Equipment every three years during which the time
estimates of useful life are provided to give guidance on depreciation rates used in intervening years.
6 Disclosure of changes in Accounting Policy and Estimates
No change has occurred in accounting policies or estimates.
7 Employee benefits expense
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Wages and salaries
Superannuation - defined contribution plans (West State) (a)
Superannuation - defined benefit plans (Gold State) (a)
Long service leave (b)
Annual leave (b)
Other
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30,766,212
2,108,787
1,213,790
803,784
2,126,374
387,749
37,406,696

28,584,737
1,979,812
1,403,151
863,307
2,134,712
357,677
35,323,396

3,234,365
751,004
1,109,982
3,987,234
981,348
222,209
1,080,255
264,248
841,957
718,659
13,191,261

2,582,728
718,652
1,063,596
4,288,309
612,194
178,242
1,173,921
230,877
689,400
570,158
12,108,077

1,628,098

1,361,743

(a) An equivalent notional income is also recognised (see note 22)
(b) Includes a superannuation contribution component.
Employment on-costs such as workers' compensation insurance are included at note
"Other expenses'. The employment on-costs liability is included at note 'Provisions'
8 Supplies and services
Consumables and minor equipment
Communication expenses
Utilities expenses
Consultancies and contracted services
Minor works
Repairs and maintenance
Operating lease and hire charges
Travel and passenger transport
Advertising and public relations
Supplies and services - other
9 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation
Buildings
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2005

2004

$

$

Leasehold improvements - buildings
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers
Plant, furniture and general equipment
Computers and communication network
Marine craft
Total depreciation
Amortisation
Software
Total amortisation

350,051
174,190
625,396
1,088,169
120,416
3,986,320

15,776
120,801
542,822
815,396
139,163
2,995,701

56,692
56,692

58,044
58,044

Total depreciation and amortisation

4,043,012

3,053,745

324
324

62,179
62,179

10,891
157,527
168,418

16,624
131,495
148,119

6,386,313

5,521,090

10 Finance costs
Other interest expense
11 Grants and subsidies
Adult and community education organisations
Payments to non TAFE Providers for VET service delivery
Other
12 Capital user charge
Capital user charge expense
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The Government applies a levy for the use of its capital for the delivery of services. It is
applied at 8% per annum on the net assets of the College, excluding exempt assets, and is
paid to the Department of Treasury and Finance quarterly. (2004 rate 8%)
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13 Other expenses
Building Maintenance
Doubtful debts expense
Employment on-costs (a)
Donations
Student prizes and awards
Miscellaneous
Losses and write-offs

790,941
(2,383)
2,182,586
1,900
34,040
157,815
16,407
3,181,306

1,497,777
76,442
2,356,236
1,080
32,210
128,188
4,091,933

4,295,585
676,934
107,731
589,850
603,444
6,273,544

2,647,684
688,939
1,008,081
762,502
712,249
240,430
6,059,885

2,676,845
318,073
2,275,508
113,352
5,383,778

2,580,564
315,376
2,317,420
62,373
5,275,733

427,855
4,742
1,082
433,679

375,372
55,955
67,516
498,843

765,677

736,058

(181,284)
(537,574)
(718,858)
196,759
(522,099)

(229,296)
(639,209)
(868,505)
181,284
(687,221)

243,578

48,837

50,295
50,295

11,730
11,730

486,685

457,719

(a) Includes workers' compensation insurance and other employment on-cost. The on-costs
liability associated with the recognition of annual and long service leave liability is included
at note Provisions Superannuation contributions accrued as part of the provision for leave
are employee benefits and are not included in employment on-costs.
14 Fee for service
Fee for service -general
Fee for service -Department of Education and Training
Fee for service - government (other than Department of Education and Training)
Adult Community Education fees
International Division fees
Fee for service - other
15 Student fees and charges
Tuition fees
Enrolment fees
Resource fees
Other college fees
16 Ancillary trading
Live works (not a trading activity)
Contracting and consulting
Other ancillary revenue
17 Trading Profit/(Loss)
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Bookshop:
Sales
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Cost of sales:
Opening inventory
Purchases
Closing inventory
Cost of goods sold
Trading Profit (Loss) - Bookshop
18 Commonwealth grants and contributions
Commonwealth specific purpose grants and contributions (I)
These grants relate to the development of training packages.
19 Interest Revenue
Interest Revenue
Interest is derived from an interest bearing cheque account and a term deposit.
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20 Other revenue
Rental and facilities fees
Other direct grants and subsidy revenue
Sponsorship and donations revenue
Miscellaneous revenue

195,534
25,775
102,690
1,040,629
1,364,628

175,466
2,977
27,076
1,574,884
1,780,403

(138,825)
(18,572)
(880)
(158,277)

(293,057)
(15,432)
(68,629)
(377,118)

115,227
115,227

249,775
17
30,806
280,598

(43,050)

(96,520)

34,144,172
3,077,201
1,255,640
6,386,314
44,863,327

32,777,848
2,992,631
2,098,014
5,521,090
(1,283,237)
42,106,346

245,376
245,376

137,062
137,062

-

49,772
1,001
50,773

21 Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets
Costs of disposal of Non-Current Assets
Land
Buildings
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers
Plant, furniture and general equipment
Computers and communication network
Proceeds from Disposal of Non-Current Assets
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers
Plant, furniture and general equipment
Computers and communication network
Net gain/(loss)
See also note 2(j) 'non-current assets classified as held for sale' and note
'non-current assets held for sale' and note 'property, plant and equipment

State funds (received from Department of Education and Training)
Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA)
Superannuation
Other recurrent funds
Capital User Charge funding
Capital works transferred
Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer
The following liabilities have been assumed by the Treasurer during the financial year.
Superannuation (a)
Total Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer
(a) The assumption of the superannuation liability by the Treasurer is a nominal income
to match the notional superannuation expense reported in respect of current
employees who are members of the Pension Scheme and current employees who have
a transfer benefit entitlement under the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (Refer to
note 'Employee Benefits Expense'.)
(b) Where the Treasurer or other entity has assumed a liability, the College recognises
revenues equivalent to the amount of the liability assumed and an expense relating to
the nature of the event or events that initially gave rise to the liability. From July 1 2002
non-discretionary non-reciprocal transfers of net assets (i.e. Restructuring of
administrative arrangements) have been classified as Contributions by Owners under
TI 955 and are taken directly into equity. Discretionary transfers between State
Government agencies are reported as assets assumed/transferred under income from
State Government.
Assets assumed/(transferred)
The following assets have been assumed from/(transferred to) other state government
agencies during the financial year:
Computers
Plant and Furniture
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Resources received free of charge
Resources received free of charge determined on the basis of the following estimates provided by agencies
Department of Education and Training
* Corporate systems support
589,882
* Marketing and publications
142,323
* Human resources, industrial relations support
100,371
* Other
446,444
1,279,020

863,802
76,627
90,446
433,737
1,464,612

23 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Cash advances
Cash at bank
Short term deposits (Bank term deposit 5.33% at 31 days expiring 30/1/06)

13,930
1,200
2,463,397
4,481,232
6,959,759

15,566
1,068,751
6,135,658
7,219,975

569,068
569,068

635,898
635,898

196,759
196,759
196,759

181,284
181,284
181,284

1,387,483
272,442
(365,420)
217,353
1,511,858
287,714
1,799,572

1,558,238
307,073
(460,872)
203,600
1,608,039
253,903
1,861,942

-

535,742
535,742

24 Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Specific capital equipment and minor works (a)
Represents cash resources the uses of which are restricted, wholly or partially, by
regulations or other externally imposed requirements.
a) Capital equipment funding received from the Department of Education and Training can only
be spent for the nominated purpose. If the funds are not spent on the nominated purpose they
must be returned.
25 Inventories
Inventories held for resale:
Bookshop (at cost)
Less: Provision for obsolete stock
26 Receivables
Current
Receivables - trade
Receivables - students
Provision for impairment of receivables
GST receivable
Prepayments
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Land
At fair value
Accumulated impairment losses
Buildings
At fair value
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment losses
Leasehold improvements
At cost
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment losses
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers
At fair value
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment losses
Plant, furniture and general equipment
At fair value
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment losses
Computer equipment, communication network
At fair value
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment losses
Marine craft
At fair value
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment losses
Works of art
At cost
Accumulated impairment losses

33,242,500
33,242,500

31,795,500
31,795,500

64,949,200
(1,628,099)
63,321,101

54,469,742
(1,361,744)
53,107,998

8,728,997
(461,051)
8,267,946

275,513
(111,000)
164,513

1,272,408
(287,732)
984,676

1,176,021
(160,072)
1,015,949

6,287,959
(1,687,187)
4,600,772

5,830,766
(1,071,857)
4,758,909

5,031,759
(2,488,174)
2,543,585

4,246,680
(1,462,373)
2,784,307

718,997
(374,995)
344,002

679,033
(254,579)
424,454

3,400
3,400
113,307,982

3,400
0
3,400
94,055,030

(a) The valuation of land was performed on 1/7/04) in accordance with an independent valuation by the Valuer General's
Office. Fair value has been determined on the basis of current market buying powers.
(b) The valuation of buildings was performed on 1/7/04 in accordance with an independent valuation by the Valuer
General's Office. Fair value has been determined on the basis of current depreciated replacement value.
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-

-

Classified as held for sale

Depreciation expense

-

-

Classified as held for sale

Depreciation expense

33,242,500

-

-

63,321,101

-

-

11,841,201

(1,628,098)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Buildings Under
Construction

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Buildings Under
Construction

8,267,946

-

-

(350,051)

-

8,453,484

164,513

Leasehold
Improvements

164,513

-

-

(15,776)

-

-

180,289

Leasehold
Improvements

279,197

984,676

-

-

(174,190)

-

(136,280)

2,543,585

(7,373)

-

(1,088,169)

-

(881)

855,701

2,784,307

Computer
equipment,
communication
network

2,784,307

(25,248)

-

(815,396)

-

(43,383)

719,239

2,949,095

Computer
equipment,
communication
network

(a) Recognised in Income statement. Where an asset at cost is written down to recoverable amount, an impairment loss is
recognised in the Income statement. Where an asset at fair value is written-down to recoverable amount, the loss is
accounted for as a revaluation decrement.

in the Income statement. Where an asset at fair value is written-down to recoverable amount, the loss is accounted for as a revaluation decrement.

4,600,772

(10,055)

-

(625,396)

-

(18,165)

495,479

4,758,909

Plant, furniture
and general
equipment

Motor vehicles,
caravans and
trailers
1,015,949

4,758,909

(15,080)

-

(542,822)

-

(350)

701,430

4,615,731

1,015,949

(1,901)

-

-

(120,801)

-

(285,446)

441,963

982,134

Plant, furniture
and general
equipment

(a) Recognised in Income statement. Where an asset at cost is written down to recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised

Carrying amount at end of year

Other (b)

Write-off of Assets

Impairment losses reversed (a)

Impairment losses

1,447,000

-

Revaluation Increments

-

53,107,998

31,795,500

Disposals

Buildings

Land

2005
Carrying amount at start of year

Additions

53,107,998

-

-

3,093,858

31,795,500

-

-

(1,361,743)

-

-

-

Carrying amount at end of year

Other (b)

Write-off of Assets

Impairment losses reversed (a)

Impairment losses

6,165,500

-

Revaluation Increments

-

51375883

25,630,000

Disposals

Buildings

Land

Additions

2004
Carrying amount at start of year

Motor vehicles,
caravans and
trailers

344,002

-

-

-

(120,416)

-

-

39,964

424,454

Marine craft

424,454

-

-

-

(139,163)

-

-

8,162

555,455

Marine craft

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant, equipment and vehicles at the beginning and end of the reporting period are set out below
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3,400

-

-

3,400

Works of art

3,400

-

-

2,200

1,200

Works of art
Total

113,307,982

-

(17,428)

-

-

13,288,201

(3,986,320)

-

(155,326)

10,123,825

94,055,030

Total

94,055,030

-

(42,229)

-

-

9,259,358

(2,995,701)

-

(329,179)

1,872,994

86,289,786
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29 Intangible assets
Computer software
At cost
Accumulated amortisation
Accumulated impairment losses
Reconciliation
Computer Software
Carrying amount at start of year
Amortisation Expense
Carrying Amount at end of year

144,909
(117,746)
27,163

144,909
(61,053)
83,856

83,856
(56,693)
27,163

141,900
(58,044)
83,856

Impairment of Assets
There were no indications of impairment of property plant, equipment and intangibles as at 31 December 2005.
The College held no goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite useful life during the
reporting period and at reporting date there were no intangible assets not yet available for use.
All surplus assets as at 31 December 2005 have been classified as assets held for sale or written off.
30 Payables
Current
Trade payables
GST payable

627,005
91,382
718,387

413,810
85,397
499,207

3,557,306
3,362,989
133,190
7,053,485

3,065,725
3,351,998
156,734
6,574,457

410,085
410,085

418,938
418,938

7,463,570

6,993,395

907,878
145,843
1,053,721

831,430
165,895
997,325

55,243
55,243

45,927
45,927

1,108,964

1,043,252

696,302
3,574,564
4,270,866

663,145
3,520,283
4,183,428

Current
Employee benefits provision
Annual leave
Long service leave (a)
Salary deferment
Other provisions
Employment on-costs (b)

Non-current
Employee benefits provision
Long service leave (a)
Salary deferment
Other provisions
Employment on-costs (b)

(a) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after reporting date.
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities will occur as follows:
With in 12 months of reports date
More than 12 months of reporting date
(b) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of
employment on-costs including payroll tax and workers compensation premiums. The
provision is the present value of expected of expected future payments. The associated
expense, apart from the unwinding of the discount (finance cost), is included at note
'Other expenses'.
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Movements in Other Provisions
Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, other than employee benefits, are set out below.
Employment on-cost provision
Carrying amount at start of year
Additional provisions recognised
Payments/other sacrifices of economic benefits
Carrying amount at end of year

464,865
463
465,328

280,867
183,998
464,865

59,473
1,065,261
135,849
87,992
117,225
1,465,800

29,037
996,179
115,922
92,168
186,397
1,419,703

32 Other liabilities
Current
Income received in advance (a)
Accrued expenses
Accrued salaries and related costs
Money/deposits held in trust
Other

(a) Income received in advance comprises of Student Fees and Charges
33 Equity
Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the College. The Government holds the equity interest in the
College on behalf of the community. The asset revaluation reserve represents that portion of equity resulting from the
revaluation of non-current assets.
33.1 Contributed equity
Balance at start of year
Contributions by owners
Capital contribution (a)
Total contributions by owners
Distributions to owners
Transfer of net assets to other agencies (b)
Transfer to Department of Education and Training, relating to the construction of the
new Maritime Training Facility, at Fleet Street Fremantle.
Net assets transferred to Government (c)
Total distributions to owners
Balance at end of year

11,982,524
11,982,524

3,360,443
3,360,443

(628,400)

-

-

-

(628,400)
11,354,124

3,360,443

31,973,670

22,714,312

1,447,000
11,841,201
45,261,871

6,165,500
3,093,858
31,973,670

59,284,057
(3,796,470)
55,487,587

61,862,268
(2,513,116)
(65,095)
59,284,057
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(a) Capital Contributions (appropriations) and non-discretionary transfers of net assets
from other State government agencies have been designated as contributions by
owners in Treasurer's Instruction TI 955 and are credited directly to equity
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(b) UIG 1038 requires that where the transferee accounts for a transfer as a contribution by
owner, the transferor must account for the transaction as a distribution to owners.
Consequently non-discretionary (non-reciprocal) transfers of net assets to other State
government agencies are distribution to owners and are debited directly to equity
(c) TI 955 requires non-reciprocal transfers of assets to Government to be accounted for as
Distribution to owners.
33.2 Reserves
Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance at start of year
Net revaluation increments/(decrements)
Land
Buildings
Balance at end of year
33.3 Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Balance at start of year
Result for the period
Income and expense recognised directly to equity
Balance at end of year
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34 Notes to the Cash Flow Statement
Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year, as shown in the Cash Flow Statement is reconciled to
the related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (refer to note 'Restricted cash and cash equivalents')

6,959,759
569,068
7,528,827

7,219,975
635,898
7,855,873

Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by / (used in) operating activities
Net Cost of Services

(50,184,193)

(46,271,909)

4,043,012
(2,383)
3,322,577
1,279,020
174,155

3,053,745
76,442
3,382,963
2,307,097
(8,119)

(Increase)/decrease in assets:
Current receivables (c)
Current inventories
Other current assets

112,318
(15,474)
24,671

(12,798)
48,012
35,269

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities
Current payables (c)
Current provisions
Other current liabilities
Non-current Provisions

213,195
548,147
46,097
(12,260)

(80,553)
(123,331)
(1,536,765)
298,645

(741,961)
734,192

(254,637)
19,418

(40,458,887)

(39,066,521)

Non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation expense (note 9 )
Doubtful debts expense (note 13)
Superannuation expense (note 7)
Resources received free of charge (note 22)
Net (gain) / loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

Net GST receipts/(payments) (a)
Change in GST in receivables/payables (b)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities
(a) This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions
(b) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables

35 Commitments for expenditure
Capital expenditure commitments
Capital expenditure commitments, being contracted capital expenditure additional to the amounts reported in the financial
statements, are payable as follows:
Within 1 year
258,215
411,252
258,215
411,252
Total lease commitments
Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities, are payable:
Within 1 year
488,671
666,031
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
1,588,741
2,326,422
Later than 5 years
3,116,865
2,778,635
5,194,277
5,771,088
Representing:
Non-cancellable operating leases

5,194,277
5,194,277

5,771,088
5,771,088

Other expenditure commitments contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities:
Within 1 year
778,273
778,273

658,934
658,934
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(c) Note that the ATO receivable /payable in respect of GST receivable/payable
of the sale/purchase of non-current assets are not included in these items
as they are not reconciling items

These commitments are all inclusive of GST
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36 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
No contingent liabilities and contingent assets existed as at year end.
37 Events occurring after balance date
No events occurred after balance date that would have a significant impact on the College's
financial position as at 31 December 2005.
38 Explanatory Statement
Significant variations between estimates and actual results for income and expense are shown below.
Significant variations are considered to be those greater than $300,000.
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2005
Estimate
$

2005
Actual
$

Variation
$

Expense
1. Employee benefit expenses
2. Supplies and services
3. Cost of Goods Sold
4. Other Expenses

38,866,742
14,670,062
417,311

37,406,696
13,191,261
522,099
3,181,306

1,460,046
1,478,801
(522,099)
(2,763,995)

Income
5. Student fees and charges
6. Trading profit
7. Other income
8. State Funds
9. Resources received free of charge

5,018,468
235,000
621,245
43,859,007
1,800,000

5,383,778
765,677
1,364,628
44,863,327
1,279,020

(365,310)
(530,677)
(743,383)
(1,004,320)
520,980

1.

Employee benefit expenses - 2005 Estimates (Pre IFRS) did not provide
for salary oncosts being transferred to Other Costs.
Balance due to increased training delivery in 2005.

2.

Supplies and services - 2005 Estimates (Pre IFRS) did not provide for a transfer of
building maintenance to Other Expenses

3.

Cost of Goods Sold - 2005 Estimates (Pre IFRS) included trading profit on a net basis;
now shown on a gross basis.

4.

Other Expenses - 2005 Estimates (Pre IFRS) did not include employment oncosts and
building maintenance in Other Costs

5.

Student fees and charges - Increased due to expanded training delivery loads and
increased debt collection rate

6.

Trading profit - 2005 Estimates (Pre IFRS) included trading profit on a net basis under
IFRS, data shown on a gross basis

7.

Other income - Salaries recoups including those from external organisations and
workers compensation were higher than anticipated

8.

State Funds - Increased DPA funding due to increased training delivery levels

9.

Resources received free of charge - 2005 Estimate based on an extrapolaion of January
to June 2004 figure as full year data not available
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Significant Variances between actual results for 2005 and 2004
2005
$

2004
$

Variance
$

Expense
1. Employee benefit expenses
2. Depreciation and amortisation expense
3. Supplies and services
4. Cost of Goods Sold
4. Capital User Charge
5. Other Expenses

37,406,696
4,043,012
13,191,261
522,099
6,386,313
3,181,306

35,323,396
3,053,745
12,061,269
687,221
5,521,090
4,081,933

(2,083,300)
(989,267)
(1,129,992)
165,122
(865,223)
900,627

Income
6.Other income
7.State Funds

1,364,628
44,863,327

1,780,403
42,106,346

415,775
(2,756,981)

2.

3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Employee benefit expenses - Increased expenditure on salaries resulted from increases
in both salary and delivery loads
Depreciation and amortisation expense - Reflects increase in building valuations and
additional $8M in leasehold improvements and increased depreciation on computing
and communications equipment
Supplies and services - Variance results from increased expenditure on equipment and
minor works and consumables due to increase in training delivery
Capital User Charge - CUC increased to meet requirements subsequent to revaluation
of land and buildings
Other Expenses - Building maintenance was lower in 2005
Other income - Salary recoups for Workers Compensation and external organisations
was lower in 2005
State Funds - Increased DPA funding to provide for additional delivery and an increase
in CUC Funding requirements
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2005

4.49%

Payables

Financial Liabilities

Receivables

4.49%

Cash assets

%

Restricted cash assets

Financial Assets

2004

Payables

Financial Liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,135,658

6,135,658

$

-

1,704,649

-

635,898

$

2-3 Years

$

Fixed Interest Rate Maturity
Within 1 year
1-2 Years
2-3 Years

-

1,068,751

$

-

-

$

1-2 Years

-

4,481,232

4,481,232

$

Within 1 year

-

3,601,533

-

569,068

3,032,465

$

Weighted
Variable Interest
Average Effective
Rate
Interest Rate

5.09%

Receivables

5.09%

Cash assets

%

Restricted cash assets

Financial Assets

Weighted
Variable Interest
Average Effective
Rate
Interest Rate
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-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3-4 Years

$

-

-

-

-

-

-

$

-

-

-

-

-

-

4-5 Years

$

Fixed Interest Rate Maturity
3-4 Years
4-5 Years

-

-

-

-

-

-

$

-

-

-

-

-

-

More than 5
years

$

More than 5
years

-

1,200

-

15,566

413,811

413,811

1,623,606

1,608,040

$

Non-Interest
Bearing

627,005

627,005

1,513,058

1,511,858

$

Non-Interest
Bearing

413,811

413,811

9,463,913

1,608,040

635,898

7,219,975

$

Total

627,005

627,005

9,595,823

1,511,858

569,068

7,514,897

$

Total
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39 Financial Instruments

Interest Risk Exposure
The following table details the College’s exposure to interest rate risk at reporting date.
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Credit Risk Exposure
All financial assets are unsecured.
Except as detailed in the following table, the carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of
any provisions for losses, represents the College's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of
any collateral or other security obtained.
Financial Assets

Maximum Credit Risk

Recognised Financial Assets
Receivables

1,511,858
1,511,858

1,608,040
1,608,040

Net Fair Values
The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
financial statements are not materially different from their net fair values.
40 Remuneration of Members of the Accountable Authority and Senior Officers
Remuneration of members of the Accountable Authority
The number of members of the Accountable Authority whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation and other benefits for
the financial year, fall within the following bands are:
$
$0 - $10,000
$150,001 -$160,000
The total remuneration of the members of the Accountable Authority is:

10
1

10
1

155,797

156,759

The superannuation included here represents the superannuation expense incurred by the College in respect of members of
the Accountable Authority.
No members of the Accountable Authority are members of the Pension Scheme.
Remuneration of Senior Officers
The number of Senior Officers other than senior officers reported as members of the Accountable Authority, whose total of
fees, salaries, superannuation and other benefits receivable for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:
$
$80,001 - $90,000
$100,001 - $110,000
$110,001 -$120,000
$130,001 - $140,000
The total remuneration of senior officers is:

1
3
1

1
1
3
-

578,861

525,411
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The superannuation included here represents the superannuation expense incurred by the College in respect of senior
officers other than senior officers reported as members of the Accountable Authority.
No Senior Officers are members of the Pension Scheme.
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41 Remuneration of auditor
Remuneration to the Auditor General for the financial year is as follows

64,500

60,000

49,249
99,883

48,525
108,674

1,468

-

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and performance indicators
Expense is included in note 'Other expenses'
42 Related Bodies
The College has no related bodies.
43 Affiliated Bodies
The College has no affiliated bodies.
44 Supplementary Financial Information
Write-Offs
Public property
Bad Debts
Loses Through Theft, Defaults and Other Causes
Losses of public and other moneys and public and other property through theft,
default or otherwise
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Total Assets

Non-Current Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Inventories
Receivables
Property, plant, equipment and Vehicles
Intangible assets
(4) Other non-current assets
Total Non-Current Assets

ASSETS
Current Assets
(1) Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Inventories
Receivables
(2) Other current assets
(3) Non-current assets classified as held for sale
Total Current Assets

Note

96,731,174

-

-

86,496,783

-

(206,995)
206,995

$

86,496,783

10,234,391

6,738,006
219,540
229,296
1,412,111
1,635,438

$

-

(65,095)

(65,095)

(65,095)

$

$

-

-

-

$

-

-

-

RECONCILIATION OF EQUITY AT THE DATE OF TRANSITION TO AIFRS: 1 JANUARY 2004 (AASB 1.39(a)(i))
Previous GAAP
01 January 2004
Adjustments
Reclassification,
Depreciation
Write-down
Restoration costs
AASB 5
AASB 5
AASB 116
AASB 138
52.1a
52.1a
52.2a
52.3a

46 Reconciliations explaining the transition to Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS)

$

AASB 119
52.4a

The college provides only on service (as defined by Treasurer's Instruction 1101 (2) (viii) and that is Vocational Education and Training Delivery.

45 Schedule of Income and Expenditure by Service
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-

-

-

-

(65,095)

(206,995)
141,900
(65,095)

$

Total
Adjustments

96,666,079

86,289,788
141,900
86,431,688

6,738,006
219,540
229,296
1,412,111
1,635,438
10,234,391

$

AIFRS
01 January 2004
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Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Cash Assets’ (AIFRS ‘Cash and Cash Equivalents’)
Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Other Assets’ (AIFRS ‘Other Current assets’)
New AIFRS category
Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Other Assets’ (AIFRS ‘Other non-current assets’)
Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Interest-bearing liabilities’ (AIFRS ‘Borrowings’)
Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Other liabilities’ (AIFRS ‘Other current liabilities’)
Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Other liabilities’ (AIFRS ‘Other non-current liabilities’)

C h a l l e n g e r TA F E – A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 0 5

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)

(65,095)

84,576,580

(65,095)

-

-

(65,095)

-

-

-

-

22,714,312
61,862,268

84,576,580

3,627,427

3,627,427

Net Assets

Equity
Contributed equity
Reserves
Accumulated surplus/(deficiency)
Amounts recognised directly in equity relating to non current
(3) assets classified as held for sale
Total Equity

-

-

$

-

$

AASB 119
52.4a

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(1,781,700)
47,506
(1,734,194)

1,734,194

-

$

AASB 138
52.3a

8,527,167

$

Restoration costs
AASB 116
52.2a

1,500,833
233,361

494,363

$

Write-down
AASB 5
52.1a

5,202,186
2,830,618

12,154,594

$

Total Liablities

Non-Current Liabilities
Payables
(5) Borrowings
Provisions
(7) Other non-current liabilities
Total Non-Current Liabilities

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
(5) Borrowings
Provisions
(6) Other current liabilities
Liabilities directly associated with non-current assets classified
(3) as held for sale
Total Current Liabilities

Note

Reclassification,
Depreciation
AASB 5
52.1a

RECONCILIATION OF EQUITY AT THE DATE OF TRANSITION TO AIFRS: 1 JANUARY 2004 (AASB 1.39(a)(i)) CONTD
Previous GAAP
01 January 2004
Adjustments

22,714,312
61,797,173
84,511,485

(65,095)

84,511,485

12,154,594

(65,095)

(65,095)

-

1,845,727
47,506
1,893,233

10,261,361

1,734,194

(1,781,700)
47,506
(1,734,194)

494,363
6,703,019
3,063,979

$

AIFRS
01 January 2004

1,500,833
233,361

$

Total
Adjustments
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94,165,444

104,514,889

TOTAL ASSETS
85,396

-

110,414

(110,414)

85,396

10,349,445

94,165,444

339,299
(253,903)

7,219,975
635,898
181,284
1,522,643
789,645

Non-Current Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Inventories
Receivables
Property, plant and equipment
Infrastructure
Intangible assets
Other non-current assets
Total Non-Current Assets

ASSETS
Current Assets
(1) Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Inventories
Receivables
(2) Other current assets
(3) Non-current assets classified as held for sale
Total Current Assets

Note

(26,558)

(26,558)

(26,558)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

RECONCILIATION OF EQUITY AT THE END OF THE LAST REPORTING PERIOD UNDER PREVIOUS AGAAP: 31 DECEMBER 2004 (AASB 1.39(a)(ii))
Previous GAAP
31 December 2004
Adjustments
Reclassification,
Depreciation
Write-down
Restoration costs
AASB 5
AASB 5
AASB 116
AASB 138
AASB 119
52.1a
52.1a
52.2a
52.3a
52.4a
$
$
$
$
$
$

C h a l l e n g e r TA F E – A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 0 5

58,838

(110,414)
83,856
(26,558)

339,299
(253,903)
85,396

$

Total
Adjustments

104,573,727

94,055,030
83,856
94,138,886

7,219,975
635,898
181,284
1,861,942
535,742
10,434,841

$

AIFRS
31 December 2004
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-

-

-

-

-

-

-

The transition to AIFRS includes adjustments for the transition AIFRS as at 1 January 2004 plus adjustments for the period 1January 2004 to 31 December 2004.
Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Cash Assets’ (AIFRS ‘Cash and Cash Equivalents’)
Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Other Assets’ (AIFRS ‘Other current assets’)
New AIFRS category
Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Other Assets’ (AIFRS ‘Other non-current assets’)
Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Interest-bearing liabilities’ (AIFRS ‘Borrowings’)
Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Other liabilities’ (AIFRS ‘Other current liabilities’)
Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Other liabilities’ (AIFRS ‘Other non-current liabilities’)

(26,558)

94,644,728

(26,558)

-

-

(26,558)

-

-

85,396

-

3,360,444
31,973,670
59,310,614

94,644,728

9,870,161

2,957,792

2,957,792

-

-

-

-

-

1

(1)

(0)

0

(1,914,540)
(1,914,540)

1,914,540

85,396

6,912,369

85,396
1914541.00
(1)

413,811
5,078,854
1,419,704

C h a l l e n g e r TA F E – A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 0 5

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)

Equity
Contributed equity
Reserves
Accumulated surplus/(deficiency)
Amounts recognised directly in equity relating to non current
assets
classified as held for sale
(3)
Total Equity

Net Assets

Total Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
(7) Other non-current liabilities
Total Non-Current Liabilities

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
(6) Other current liabilities
Liabilities directly associated with non-current assets classified
(3) as held for sale
Total Current Liabilities

Note

3,360,443
31,973,670
59,284,057
94,618,170

(26,558)

94,618,170

9,955,557

(1)
(26,557)

(26,558)

85,396

1,043,252
1,043,252

8,912,305

1,999,936

(1,914,540)
(1,914,540)

499,207
6,993,395
1,419,703

$

AIFRS
31 December 2004

85,396
1,914,541
(1)

RECONCILIATION OF EQUITY AT THE END OF THE LAST REPORTING PERIOD UNDER PREVIOUS AGAAP: 31 DECEMBER 2005 (AASB 1.39(a)(ii)) CONTD
Previous GAAP
Total
31 December 2004
Adjustments
Adjustments
Reclassification,
Depreciation
Write-down
Restoration costs
AASB 5
AASB 5
AASB 116
AASB 138
AASB 119
52.1a
52.1a
52.2a
52.3a
52.4a
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
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COST OF SERVICES
Expenses

NET COST OF SERVICES

Gains
(4) Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets
(4) Gain on disposal of non current assets
(5) Gain on disposal of other assets
Other gains
Total income other than income from State Government

Income
Revenue
Fee for service
Student fees and charges
Ancillary trading
Sales
Commonwealth grants and contributions
Interest revenue
(7) Other revenue

(1) Employee benefits expense
(2) Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
(3) Finance costs
Grants and subsidies
Capital user charge
Cost of goods sold
(4) Carrying amount of non-current assets disposed of
(4) Loss on disposal of non current assets
(5) Loss on disposal of other assets
(6) Other expenses
Total cost of services

Note

(46,310,447)

-

8,120

-

30,418

(48,837)
687,220

-

(280,597)

48,837

14,413,748

(1)

736,058

1,497,776
656,802

(280,597)

-

-

687,221

201,042
(1,698,818)
(30,419)

280,597

11,730
457,719
1,780,404

6,059,885
5,275,733
498,843

(288,717)

237,921
60,724,195
-

(385,237)
96,520

385,237

37,478,590
13,760,087
3,084,164
62,179
194,927
5,521,090

-

-

2,356,236
-

(2,356,236)

RECONCILIATION OF INCOME STATEMENT (PROFIT OR LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ENDED:31 DECEMBER 2004 (AASB 1.39(b))
Previous GAAP
31 December 2004
Adjustments
Net gains on
disposal
Restoration costs
AASB 5
AASB 116
AASB 116
AASB 138
AASB 119
AASB 137
52.1c
53
52.2c
52.3c
52.4c
52.6
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
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-

-

-

AASB 101
52.7
$

-

-

-

38,538

406,623

736,058
(1)
(280,597)
(48,837)

(2,155,194)
(1,698,818)
(30,419)
687,221
(385,237)
96,520
3,854,012
368,085

$

Total
Adjustments

(46,271,909)

14,820,371

6,059,885
5,275,733
498,843
736,058
11,730
457,719
1,780,403
-

35,323,396
12,061,269
3,053,745
62,179
194,927
5,521,090
687,221
96,520
4,091,933
61,092,280

$

AIFRS
31 December 2004
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Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Employee expenses’ (AIFRS ‘Employee benefits expense’)
Supplies and services (AGAAP $59,920 at 30 June 2005) now includes Administration expenses (AGAAP $23,720 at 30 June 2005)
Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Borrowing costs expense’ (AIFRS ‘Finance costs’)
Disposals are treated on the net basis under AIFRS
New AIFRS category
Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Other expenses from ordinary activities’ (AIFRS ‘Other expenses’)
Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Other revenues from ordinary activities’ (AIFRS ‘Other revenue’)
Extraordinary items are not separately disclosed under AIFRS
Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Change in net assets’ (AIFRS ‘Surplus/(deficit)’)

C h a l l e n g e r TA F E – A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 0 5

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)

See Statement of Changes in Equity

8,120

-

-

-

30,418

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

38,538

(2,551,654)

42,106,346
137,062
50,773
1,464,612
43,758,793

$

(9) Surplus/(deficit) for the period

State Funds
Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer
Assets assumed/(transferred)
Resources received free of charge
Total income from State Government

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT

AASB 101
52.7
$

Total
Adjustments

(8) Loss from extraordinary item.

Note

RECONCILIATION OF INCOME STATEMENT (PROFIT OR LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004 (AASB 1.39(b) CONTD
Previous GAAP
31 December 2004
Adjustments
Net gains on
disposal
Restoration costs
AASB 5
AASB 116
AASB 116
AASB 138
AASB 119
AASB 137
52.1c
53
52.2c
52.3c
52.4c
52.6
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

(2,513,116)

-

42,106,346
137,062
50,773
1,464,612
43,758,793

$

AIFRS
31 December 2004
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RECONCILIATION OF CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004 (AASB 1.40)
Previous GAAP
Total
31 December 2004
Adjustments
AASB 119
Note
52.4d
$
$
$
CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Recurrent state funding - Department of Education and Training
41,206,053
Capital state funding - Department of Education and Training
Net Cash Inflows/(Outflows) in Respect of Restructuring Activities
Net Cash Inflows/(Outflows) in Respect of Extraordinary Activities
Net cash provided by State Government
41,206,053
Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
(1) Employee benefits
Supplies and services
(2) Finance costs
Grants and Subsidies
Capital User Charge
GST payments on purchases
GST payments to taxation authority
Other payments

(194,927)
(7,062,041)
(1,261,651)
(444,694)
(167,188)

(3,854,012)

11,730
457,718
1,007,015
464,112
1,879,866
(39,066,521)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets
Purchase of non-current physical assets
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities

226,032
(1,467,237)
(1,241,205)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

C h a l l e n g e r TA F E – A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 0 5

2,155,194
1,698,818

Receipts
Fee for service
Student fees and charges
Ancillary trading
Sale of goods and services
Commonwealth grants and contributions
Interest received
GST receipts on sales
GST receipts from taxation authority
Other receipts
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Other proceeds
Other repayments
Finance lease repayment of principal
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities
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(34,082,947)
(11,434,571)

6,101,215
5,160,999
498,843

898,327

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

6,957,546

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD

7,855,873

(1) Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Employee costs’ (IFRS ‘Employee benefits’
(2) Equivalent AGAAP line item ‘Borrowing costs expense’ (IFRS ‘Finance costs’)

AIFRS
31 December 2004

$
-

2,155,194
1,698,818
(3,854,012)

41,206,053
41,206,053

(31,927,753)
(9,735,753)
(194,927)
(7,062,041)
(1,261,651)
(444,694)
(4,021,200)

-

-

6,101,215
5,160,999
498,843
11,730
457,718
1,007,015
464,112
1,879,866
(39,066,521)

-

-

226,032
(1,467,237)
(1,241,205)

-

-

-

-

898,327

-

6,957,546

-

7,855,873

-

-

CHAPTER 15

Financial Statements

Notes to the reconciliations
Note 46.1 Intangible assets (AASB 138)
AASB 138 requires that software not integral to the operation of a computer must be disclosed as intangible assets.
Intangible assets must be disclosed on the balance sheet. All software has previously been classified as property, plant and
equipment (office equipment).
46.1a Adjustment to Opening Balance Sheet 1 January 2004
The Authority has transferred $206,995 in software from property, plant and equipment to intangible assets.
Previously capitalised software of $65,095 were expensed with a coresponding decrease in accumulated surplus .
46.1b Adjustment to 31 December 2004 Balance Sheet
The Authority has transferred $110,414 in software from property, plant and equipment to intangible assets.
Previously capitalised software of $26,557 were expensed with a coresponding decrease in accumulated surplus .
46.1c Adjustment to 31 December 2004 Balance Sheet
Previously capitalised software of $65,095 were expensed with a coresponding decrease in accumulated surplus as at
1 January 2004. The depreciation and amortisation expense reduce by $30,419 for the year ending 31 December 2004.
Note 46.2 Employee benefits (AASB 119 and AASB 101)
AASB 101 requires that a liability must be classified as current where the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months beyond the reporting date. Consequently, all annual leave and long
service leave entitlements (unconditional long service leave) must now be classified as current. Non-vested long service
leave liability will be non-current to the extent that it does not become unconditional within 12 months from reporting date.
Employment on-costs are not included in employee benefits under AGAAP or AIFRS. However, under AGAAP employee and
on-costs are disclosed together on the face of the Income Statement as Employee costs. Under AIFRS employee benefits
will be the equivalent item disclosed on the face. On-costs are transferred to other expenses.
46.2a Adjustment to Opening Balance Sheet 1 January 2004
All unconditional long service leave previously reported as non-current liability has been reclassified to current liability
($1,500,833).
46.2b Adjustment to Closing Balance Sheet 31 December 2004
All unconditional long service leave previously reported as non-current liability has been reclassified to current liability
($1,914,540).
46.2c Adjustment to the Income Statement for the period ended 31 December 2004
Employment on-costs expense has been reclassified from employee benefits expense to other expense ($2,356,236).
46.2c Adjustment to the Cashflow Statement for the period ended 31 December 2004

Note 46.3 Net gain on disposal of non-current assets (AASB 116)
Under AGAAP the disposal of non-current assets is disclosed on the gross basis. That is, the proceeds of disposal are
revenue and the carrying amounts of assets disposed of are expense. The disposal of non-current assets is disclosed on the
net basis (gains or losses) under AIFRS.
Adjustments to the Income Statement for the period ended 31 December 2004
The carrying amounts of assets disposed of was previously recognised as expense. This has been derecognised ($385,237).
The proceeds of disposal of non-current assets was previously recognised as income. This has been derecognised
($280,597).
A loss on the disposal of non-current assets of $96,520 has been recognised as income.
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Employment on-costs payments have been reclassified from employee benefits payments to other payments ($2,155,194).
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Section 42 Estimates for 2006
In accordance with Treasurer's Instructions 953 the annual estimates for the current financial
year (i.e.2006) are hereby included in the annual report. These estimates do not form part
of the financial statement and are not subject to audit.

INCOME STATEMENT

$

COST OF SERVICES

C h a l l e n g e r TA F E – A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 0 5

Expenses
Employee benefits expense
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Supplies and services
Grants and subsidies
Cost of Goods Sold
Capital User Charge
Other Expenses
Payments to Non TAFE Providers for VET Delivery
Total Cost of Services
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39,400,497
4,150,000
14,549,661
170,000
600,000
8,301,899
2,713,753
30,000
69,915,810

Income
Fee for service
Student fees and charges
Ancillary trading
Commonwealth grants and contributions
Trading profit
Interest income
Other income

6,689,607
5,674,587
795,000
100,000
835,000
450,000
796,000

Total income other than from State Government

15,340,194

NET COST OF SERVICES

(54,575,616)

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT

Resources received free of charge
Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer

46,955,253
1,300,000
250,000

Total income from State Government

48,505,253

(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD

(6,070,363)

State Funds

CHALLENGER TAFE
FORWARD ESTIMATES FOR 2006

BALANCE SHEET

$

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Inventories
Receivables
Total Current Assets

5,289,446
500,000
200,000
1,600,000
7,589,446

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant, equipment and vehicles

121,211,329

Intangible assets
Total Non-Current Assets

18,052
121,229,381

TOTAL ASSETS

128,818,827

Payables
Other borrowings

700,000
66,146

Provisions

7,711,485

Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

1,059,114
9,536,745

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other non current borrowings
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities

208,438
1,169,660
1,378,098

TOTAL LIABILITIES

10,914,843

NET ASSETS

117,903,984

EQUITY
Contributed Equity
Reserves
Accumulated Surplus
TOTAL EQUITY

23,157,940
45,261,871
49,484,173
117,903,984
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CURRENT LIABILITIES
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MINISTER’S KEY PRIORITIES FOR VET FOR 2004-2005
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Minister’s Key Priorities For VET

Outcome Measures

Increase Apprenticeships and Traineeships from a base of
1817 in the June quarter 2004 to 2070 by June 2009 with
an emphasis on apprenticeships in traditional trades in
the initial years.

2005/06
Target 1,844 (1.5% increase on 2004 actual)
Actual 2117 (16.4% increase on 2004 actuals)

Increase Fast Track by 20 students by December 2005

2005/06
Target 33 (an increase of 21 students)
Actual 63 (an increase of 51 students)

Increase number of Indigenous students enrolled in
employment-related qualifications Certificate III and
above from a base of 206 in 2004 to 331 by 2009

2005/06
Target 206
Actual 224 (8.7% increase)

Ensure all new and existing TAFEWA permanent and
contract lecturers, as a minimum, hold a Certificate IV in
Training and Assessment or equivalent

2005/06
Target 21 existing lecturers not holding Certificate IV in
Training and Assessment to be up-skilled by December 2006
Actual to be reported 2006

Develop annual performance management statements
for all senior college staff by December 2005

2005/06
Target all Senior staff
Actual all Senior staff

Appendices

APPENDIX 2
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
In 2005, the college published two issues of Quest, the applied research newsletter that is issued in June and November
and distributed to all of the College’s key stakeholders and other agencies of interest.
The June issue featured Challenger’s Centres of Specialisation, innovative applied research and development activities
carried out by staff from these Centres and the benefits they offer industry and the community.
The Aquaculture Development Unit, which is part of the WA Maritime Training Centre – Fremantle, in partnership with
McRobert Aquaculture Systems, has developed a fish culture technology for inland saline areas. This technology was one
of five finalists in the ABC program, The New Inventors.
Neil Marriott from the WA Horticulture and Environment Science Skills Centre is developing an innovative irrigation and
drainage system to recycle water that is lost through standard nursery irrigation systems. This innovative recycling system
will be the only facility of its type in Australia.
John Forrest, also from the WA Horticulture and Environment Science Skills Centre, is well advanced in his recycled water
research project that monitors the effect of treated water use for horticulture. His research indicates that turf acts like a
filter because it takes up to 60% of nutrients in effluent water.
Challenger TAFE’s Applied Engineering and Shipbuilding Training Centre and Aquip Systems PTY LTD formed an alliance to
research and develop a condition-monitoring training facility that will allow local and remote students to develop the skills
required to collect and analyse machine condition characteristics.
Doug Thompson, from the Community and Health Services Training Centre, researched the training and literacy needs of
indigenous workers in community Aboriginal patrols and developed a training model. Suzette Thompson, also of the
Community and Health Services Training Centre, is working with professional and community groups to research and
develop innovative training courses for people with mental illness.

Challenger TAFE developed online resources, such as the Flexible Learning toolboxes, for several years with considerable
success. In early 2005, the College won national funding for several high profile projects which have given lecturers and
other staff the opportunity to explore emerging technologies, as well as develop e-learning resources and delivery strategies.
Resources and technologies developed in 2005 include the Flexible Learning Toolboxes, screencasting, Elluminate live!,
podcasting, mobile learning and PDAs and weblogs and wikis. Through Australian Flexible Learning Framework projects
and Innovative Scholarships, lecturers Sue Waters, Carmel Smith, John Adams, Peter Kerr, Claire Briggs, Allan Voyce,
Michael Snadden and their colleagues experimented with the emerging technologies and their application in delivery and
assessment.
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Emerging learning technologies and innovative e-learning technologies was the focus of the November issue of Quest. Elearning is a broad set of applications and processes that use electronic media to deliver vocational education and training.
There is a large variety of technologies available to the community and, although many of these are seen as standard
practice in the business and commercial environment, they may be viewed as ‘emerging’ in education and training.
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APPENDIX 3
PUBLICATIONS AND RESOURCES
Challenger TAFE Annual Report 2005
Challenger TAFE Strategic Planning Framework 2005-2010, January 2005
Challenger TAFE Workforce Development Strategy, December 2005
Challenger TAFE Highlights 2005
Seven Waves. Four issues in 2005
Quest. Two issues in 2005.
JOURNAL PUBLICATIONS
Partridge, G & Sarre, G. 2005. Paving the way for a viable inland saline aquaculture industry. AustAsia Aquaculture, 19(1), 48-54.
Partridge G. J., Sarre G. A., Doupé R. G., Gavine F., Collins A., Hutchinson, W.G., Lymbery, A. J., Jenkins, G. I., Fielder, D.
S., Allan, G. and Gooley G. (2005). Innovative systems and novel applications of these and conventional systems to inland
aquaculture development in Australia. Proceedings of the World Aquaculture Society Conference. Bali Indonesia, May 9-13.
Partridge, G. & McRobert, I 2005. Development of the The Semi-Intensive Floating Tank System (SIFTS). Proceedings of the
Annual Conference of the Aquaculture Association of Queensland.
Doupé, R., Sarre, G., Partridge, G., Lymbery, A. & Jenkins, G. 2005. What are the prospects for black bream Acanthopagrus
butcheri aquaculture in salt-affected Australia? Aquaculture Research, 36,1345-1355
Sarre G.A. & Partridge G.J. 2005. Inland Aquaculture: A new marine industry for the Wheatbelt. Final report to the Science
and Technology Innovation Fund.
Wilson, G. 2005. Semi-Intensive Floating Tank System...Simply Revolutionary. Journal of Aquaponics, 36, 20-22.
Wilson, G. 2005. SIFTS increases Queenslands Fish Farming Potential. Aquaculture Association of Queensland Newsletter,
October 2005.
CONFERENCE PROCEEDINGS
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Jenkins, G.I., French, D., Restocking black bream into an estuary. Proceedings of the Australian Fish Biology Conference,
Darwin July 2005.
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Gavine F., Gooley G., Partridge G. J., Collins A., Hutchinson, W.G., Jenkins, G. I. and Fielder, D. S. (2005). Key drivers for
the future development of inland aquaculture in Australia.Proceedings of the World Aquaculture Society Conference. Bali
Indonesia, May 9-13.
Sarre, G. & Partridge G. 2005. Inland Saline Aquaculture: An opportunity for a new Wheatbelt primary industry. Proceedings
of ABARE conference August 2005
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APPENDIX 4
CHALLENGER TAFE RESPONSE TO DISABILITY STANDARDS FOR EDUCATION 2005
The Disability Standards for Education 2005 came into effect on 18 August 2005, clarifying the obligations of education and
training providers and the rights of students with disabilities. Awareness and professional development workshops were
conducted to outline the implementation and recommendations for the Standards for all staff.
Over all campus and centre enrolments, 600+ students have been identified as having a disability, with 250 students
requiring case management for their disability.
The Disability Services Unit continued implementation of access and egress in line with Universal Access Codes and
provided recommendations and adjustments for established and new campuses and centres.
The Unit was recognised for its efforts with a Certificate of Appreciation recognising excellence in access and inclusion,
awarded by the WA Disability Services Commission.
A database and reporting systems were established to measure the Disability Services level of effort in a year.
The Disability Manager designed daily Schedule of Assistance and Progress Notes forms to monitor acquittal of funding to
students
The Unit continued liaison with specialist employment agencies, local area coordinators, Disability Services Commission
and agencies working in the area of disabilities, for disseminating information about specialist courses available through
Challenger TAFE for people with disabilities.
The Unit employed, on a part-time basis, a trainee with a disability who was undertaking a Certificate II in Community
Services (First Point of Contact) and represented the College at the project steering committee level.
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The Unit provided work experience opportunities to a student in Community Services and presented a Learning Disability
Awareness week showcase.
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APPENDIX 5
STUDENT AWARDS
Challenger TAFE's VET student nomination for the Sangora Education Foundation Award, Samantha Johnson, was
successful in winning the $10,000 Sangora Award State prize. Jan 2005. The Foundation funds opportunities for study
through grants, awards and scholarships.
McDonald’s Trainee of the Year Award 2005 State Finalist. Clifford Mott - Aquaculture
World Skills 2005 Gold medal Information Technology: Russell Clegg from Kwinana Senior High School, a Challenger TAFE
VET for Schools student
World Skills 2005 Gold medal Business Services: Tamara Williams, from Hamilton Senior High School a Challenger TAFE
VET for Schools student
World Skills 2005 Gold medal Commercial Cookery: Lisa Sunjich, from Hamilton Senior High School a Challenger TAFE VET
for Schools student
World Skills 2005 Gold medal Food and Beverage Services: Courtney Clarkson, from Hamilton Senior High School a
Challenger TAFE VET for Schools student
World Skills 2005 Gold medal Hospitality: Third Year Apprentice Chef Toia Miorada
2005 International Hairstylists Society, State Hairdressing Awards, Individual Salon of the Year, Head Graffiti, Mandurah
former Challenger TAFE apprentice, Ms Stephanie Bellairs
2005 Australian Masters of Fashion Award Fremantle Soroptimists scholarship to participate in National Finals, Rebecca Galant
2005 Australian Masters of Fashion Award Fremantle Soroptimists scholarship to participate in National Finals, Lareina Scarratt
2005 Australian Masters of Fashion Award Rotary Club of Karrinyup scholarship to participate in National Finals, Candice Lowe
World Skills 2005 Gold medal Horticulture: Gina Brooks and Emma Dunham, from Kwinana Senior High School, Challenger
TAFE VET for Schools students
World Skills 2005 state finals Floristry: Matthew Landers.
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National Wildflowers Australia competition Kristy Yew State & National winner
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Junior Florist of the Year 2005, Matthew Landers
Interflora Florist of the Future 2005, Matthew Landers
World Skills 2005 Gold medal Floristry: Matthew Landers
World Skills 2005 Silver medal Floristry: Adele Pearson
World Skills 2005 Bronze medal Floristry: Jayde Gordon
World Skills 2005 People’s Choice Awards: First Choice Matthew Landers
World Skills 2005 People’s Choice Awards: Second Choice Dannielle Piercey
World Skills 2005 People’s Choice Awards: Third Choice Alicia Lowe
World Skills 2005 state winner Metals and Engineering: Cameron Dolan, from Kwinana Senior High School a Challenger
TAFE VET for Schools student
Thomas McPherson from Sacred Heart College and Brittany Moxham from St Mary’s Anglican Girls’ College were the
inaugural national winners of DEST Australian Vocational Student prizes, designed to encourage and recognise outstanding
senior secondary students undertaking a Vocational Education and Training in Schools program or School-based New

Appendices

Apprenticeship, both Challenger TAFE VET for Schools students.
World Skills 2005 Gold medal Mechanical Fitting: Fourth Year Apprentice Tom Rutherford
World Skills 2005 Silver medal Mechanical Turning: Apprentice Lauron Begg
World Skills 2005 Silver medal Bricklaying: Apprentice Christopher Harvey
John Hughes Apprentice of the Year 2005. State Finalist Nathanael Errey
Aboriginal Student of the Year, 2005 WA Training Excellence Awards: Mitchell Sellen
National Finalist Aboriginal Student of the Year 2005 Training Excellence Awards: Mitchell Sellen,
John Hughes State Apprentice of the Year 2005. Winner Richard Stocker - Oil and Gas
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National Finalist Apprentice of the Year 2005 Training Excellence Awards: Richard Stocker - Oil and Gas
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APPENDIX 6
CHALLENGER TAFE AWARDS
2005 National Training Excellence Awards. 2005 Large Training Provider. Challenger TAFE. Australian Winner
2005 WA Training Excellence Awards. 2005 Large Training Provider. Challenger TAFE. WA Winner
WorkSafe Silver Certificate of Achievement under the WorkSafe Plan assessment process which rates safety and health
management systems.
ABC New Inventors 2005 Finalist Invention of Semi-intensive Floating Tank System (SIFTS). A partnership between
Aquaculture Development Unit (ADU) and McRobert Aquaculture System allowing farming of increased numbers of fish
and minimal environmental impact.
Australian Adult Education Provider of the Year Challenger TAFE’s Centre for Adult Education. Australian Winner.
Premier's Awards for Excellence in Public Sector Management 2005
The 2005 Premier's Awards for Excellence in Public Sector Management. The Environment Aquaculture Development Unit
for Semi-intensive Floating Tank System (SIFTS). WA Finalist
Premier's Awards for Excellence in Public Sector Management 2005
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The 2005 Premier's Awards for Excellence in Public Sector Management: The Economy Australian Centre for Energy and
Process Training. WA Finalist
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APPENDIX 7
STAFF AWARDS (STATE LEVEL)
State Innovations Scholarship for VET Lecturers – Jack Burgess will receive $15,700 to develop a resource kit for the
Certificate III in Information Technology traineeship
State Innovations Scholarship for Lecturers - Michael Snadden was awarded $17,031 to examine ways of introducing the Fast
Track Apprenticeship initiative into the Hospitality industry
Arrix Trainer of the Year 2005. Finalists Lecturers Brian Jenkins and Trevor Mills
Premier's Teacher of the Year Award 2005 Finalist Lecturer Carolyn O'Connor, Visage Training Centre for Hair Fashion and
Beauty
Premier's Teacher of the Year Award 2005 Finalist Lecturer Ralph Minervini from WA Maritime Training Centre Fremantle
Premier's Teacher of the Year Award 2005 Finalist Lecturer Dr Suzette Thompson Community & Health Services Training
Centre
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WA Fitness Trainer of the Year Margaret Anderson, a Challenger TAFEFitness Lecturer.
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Mr

Ms

Mr

Ms

Ms

Mr

Ms

Mr

Ms

Ms

Ms

Scott

Ranford

Quake

Poole
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Perry
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Paganoni

Owen

Ockwell

Montague

McDonald

Mann

Maier

Lombardo

Lindsay

Last Name

A

A

S

A

S

A

S

S

A

A

A

A

A

A

S

S

S/A

Peel Campus

Murdoch Campus

Fremantle Campus

Campus

Fremantle Campus

Maritime Centre

Maritime Centre

Peel Campus

Fremantle Campus

South Terrace

e-Tech Centre

Peel Campus

Hospitality

Multi-media
Fremantle Campus

Peel Campus

Curriculum Services Fremantle Campus

Fishing

Administration

Multi-media

Administration

Administration

Multi-media

Tourism

Mgmt & Marketing Fremantle Campus

Hospitality

Aboriginal Programs Fremantle Campus

Multi-media

Administration

Administration

Section
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Vol 1

For consistent excellent customer service and for enhancing the College’s position in the
market place.

In particular, for the development of the staff & student IT Website.

For your assistance, both within the College and externally, in updating the College
Products and Services Catalogue, preparation of the PSC User Guide, and contribution
to a revised PSC template for Challenger TAFE.

For going beyond the roll as Technician in Navigation Practical classes aboard MTV
‘Maritime Image’ in assisting students and colleagues in their learning.

For the commitment to excellent customer service, as the first point of contact for the
College and for dedication in the implementation of the new client management
database.

For excellent efforts in the development of the Peel Information Technology Student Website.

For the commitment to excellent customer service, as the first point of contact for the
College and for dedication in the implementation of the new client management database.

For the commitment to excellent customer service, as the first point of contact for the
College and for dedication in the implementation of the new client management database.

In recognition of your voluntary participation in the Careers & Education Expo held in
May and also your willingness to to perform extra duties over and beyond your normal
teaching requirements.

For consistent excellent customer service and for enhancing the College’s position in the
market place.

In particular, for exceeding client expectations in Management Training delivery.

For consistent excellent customer service and for enhancing the College’s position in the
market place.

For consistent excellent customer service and for enhancing the College’s position in the
market place.

In particular, for the development of the staff & student IT Website. Also for excellence
in teaching mathematics to Peel Aged Care/Nursing Career Combo students.

For the commitment to excellent customer service, as the first point of contact for the
College and for dedication in the implementation of the new client management
database.

For the relentless effort made on daily basis consistently throughout the semester, also
for striving and achieving outstanding results within the workplace that are a credit
to you.
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APPENDIX 8

STAFF RECOGNITION AWARDS (COLLEGE LEVEL)

Undertaking a volunteer role within the college
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Kylie-Anne

Sue

Heather

Marian

Kingsley

Kim

Lucie

Robert
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Nadine Joy
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Ms
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Ms

Ms
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S

A

S

S

S

S

A

S

S

S

S

S

A

A

S

S
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Campus

Rockingham Campus

FPA

Maritime Centre

Fremantle Campus

Peel Campus

Maritime Centre

Fremantle Campus

Rockingham Campus

Administration

Hospitality

Administration

Administration

Administration

Administration

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

e-Tech Centre

Peel Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Commercial Services Henderson Campus

Administration

C/- Administration Fremantle Campus

Administration

Finance

Maritime

E-Training

Tourism

Administration

Administration

Section
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Vol 1

For the commitment to excellent customer service as the first point of contact for the
College, and for dedication in the implementation of the new client management database.

For the participation in special events and organising them, in particular Industry Nights
with Diploma Students and the coordination of Career Expo. Always the first to volunteer
her own time

For the commitment to excellent customer service as the first point of contact for the
College, and for dedication in the implementation of the new client management database.

For the commitment to excellent customer service as the first point of contact for the
College, and for dedication in the implementation of the new client management database.

For your dedication to the position and to the team while the section was short staffed.

For your contribution to the Call Centre during peak enrolment periods.

After analysing the market, you identified the need for the College to deliver short, intensive
welding up-skilling courses for people working in the defence and resource industries. You
moved quickly to establish the Metal Skills Recognition Centre at the Henderson Campus
– an initiative that has attracted much interest from the defence shipbuilding industry.

For the commitment to excellent customer service, as the first point of contact for the
College and for dedication in the implementation of the new client management database.

In appreciation of your exemplary vigilance and service, as a ‘Campus Security
Supervisor and Guard” which has contributed to a safe working environment for
Challenger TAFE staff and students.

For the commitment to excellent customer service, as the first point of contact for the
College and for dedication in the implementation of the new client management database.

For the incredible support and assistance to both Finance and College Staff during the
stressful rollout period of Interface of Finance 1 and CMIS Student System changes. With
your exceptional knowledge, your assistance helped unify the enrolment system and has
prepared the College for Shared Services.

For a display of extraordinary lateral application skills by designing a recycling implement
to facilitate preservation of AQTF data recording system.

For consistent excellent customer service and for enhancing the College’s position in the
market place.

For consistent excellent customer service and for enhancing the College’s position in the
market place.

Outstanding display of organisational and communication skills, unbounded tolerance
and perseverance during the construction and renovation of the Maritime complex.

For the commitment to excellent customer service, as the first point of contact for the
College and for dedication in the implementation of the new client management database.
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Peel Campus

Murdoch Campus

Fremantle Campus

Maritime Centre

Fremantle Campus

Maritime Centre

Rockingham Campus

Fremantle Campus

Rockingham Campus

Fremantle Campus

Peel Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Campus

Vol 1

In particular for the development of the staff & student IT Website. Also for excellence in
teaching mathematics to Peel Aged Care/Nursing Career Combo students.

For the commitment to excellent customer service as the first point of contact
for the College, and for dedication in the implementation of the new client
management database.

For the relentless effort made on daily basis consistently throughout the semester, also
for striving and achieving outstanding results within the workplace that are a credit
to you.

For the commitment to excellent customer service as the first point of contact for
the College, and for dedication in the implementation of the new client
management database.

For the commitment to excellent customer service as the first point of contact for the
College, and for dedication in the implementation of the new client
management database.

For going beyond the roll as Technician in Navigation Practical classes aboard MTV
‘Maritime Image’ in assisting both students and colleagues in their learning.

For the commitment to excellent customer service as the first point of contact for
the College, and for dedication in the implementation of the new client
management database.

For your relentless efforts and work on the ‘Invalid Modular Enrolments’.

For the commitment to excellent customer service as the first point of contact for
the College, and for dedication in the implementation of the new client
management database.

In particular excellent work on implementing and maintaining two important
Mauritius projects.

Consistent excellent customer service and enhancing the Colleges position in the
market place.

Consistent excellent customer service and enhancing the Colleges position in the
market place.

For the commitment to excellent customer service as the first point of contact for
the College, and for dedication in the implementation of the new client management
database.

Consistent excellent customer service and enhancing the Colleges position in the
market place.
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First Name

Peter

Tl

Vol 1

For the commitment to excellent customer service as the first point of contact
for the College, and for dedication in the implementation of the new client
management database.

For consistent excellent customer service and for enhancing the Colleges position in the
market place.

In particular for the development of the staff & student IT Website.

For your assistance, both within the College and externally, in updating the College
Products and Services Catalogue, preparation of the PSC User Guide, and contribution
to revised PSC template for Challenger TAFE.

For going beyond the roll as Technician in Navigation Practical classes aboard MTV
‘Maritime Image’ in assisting both students and colleagues in their learning.

For the commitment to excellent customer service as the first point of contact
for the College, and for dedication in the implementation of the new client
management database.

For excellent efforts in the development of the Peel Information Technology
Student Website.

For the commitment to excellent customer service as the first point of contact
for the College, and for dedication in the implementation of the new client
management database.

For the commitment to excellent customer service as the first point of contact
for the College, and for dedication in the implementation of the new client
management database.

In recognition of your voluntary participation in the Careers & Education Expo held in
May and also your willingness to perform extra duties over and beyond your normal
teaching requirements.

For consistent excellent customer service and for enhancing the Colleges position in the
market place.

In particular for exceeding client expectations in Management Training delivery.

For consistent excellent customer service and for enhancing the Colleges position in the
market place.

For consistent excellent customer service and for enhancing the Colleges position in the
market place.
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Rockingham Campus

FPA

Maritime Centre
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Rockingham Campus
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C/- Administration Fremantle Campus

Administration
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Maritime
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Administration
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Vol 1

After analysing the market, you identified the need for the College to deliver short,
intensive welding up-skilling courses for people working in the defence and resource
industries. You moved quickly to establish the Metal Skills Recognition Centre at the
Henderson Campus – an initiative that has attracted much interest from the defence
shipbuilding industry.

For the commitment to excellent customer service as the first point of contact
for the College, and for dedication in the implementation of the new client
management database.

In appreciation of your exemplary vigilance and service as a ‘Campus Security Supervisor
and Guard” which has contributed to a safe working environment for Challenger TAFE
staff and students.

For the commitment to excellent customer service as the first point of contact
for the College, and for dedication in the implementation of the new client
management database.

For the incredible support and assistance to both Finance and College Staff during the
stressful rollout period of Interface of Finance 1 and CMIS Student System changes. With
your exceptional knowledge, your assistance helped unify the enrolment system and has
prepared the College for Shared Services.

For a display of extraordinary lateral application skills by designing a recycling implement
to facilitate preservation of AQTF data recording system.

For consistent excellent customer service and for enhancing the Colleges position in the
market place.

For consistent excellent customer service and for enhancing the Colleges position in the
market place.

Outstanding display of organisational and communication skills, unbounded tolerance
and perseverance during the construction and renovation of the Maritime complex.
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Beaumont

Beattie

Bayley

Bates

Bart

Barr

Banks

Bailey

Bacich

Babb

Austin

Allen

Allan

Allan

Addison

Adams

Last Name

S

S

A

A

A

S

S

S

A

A

A

S

S

S

A

S

A

S

S

S

A

S

S

S

S

A

S/A

Fremantle Campus

Rockingham Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Rockingham Campus

Peel Campus
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Murdoch Campus

Campus

Peel Campus

Maritime Centre

Maritime Centre

e-Tech Centre

Fremantle Campus

Rockingham Campus

Rockingham Campus

Murdoch Campus

Information Systems

Information Officer Fremantle Campus

FM & Metal Fab

Horticulture

Vol 1

First Aid Officer; Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer; Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer; First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer; Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative; Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer; Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative; Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Fremantle Centre Grievance Mediator.

First Aid Officer.

Grievance Mediator.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer.

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative; Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer.

Marine Training Centre First Aid Officer.

Maritime Centre

Fremantle Campus

Maritime Centre

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fishing/Aquaculture Maritime Centre

Administration

Administration

Administration

Hospitality

Applied Science

Administration

Administration

Administration

Security

Aquaculture

Admin Library
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Submarine Project Garden Island

CMIS Coordinator

Student Services

Electrical

Records

Administration

Administration
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Horticulture

Section
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Paul

Ms

Nita

Ms

Mr

Cristie

Ms

John

Stephen

Mr

Mr

Steve

Mr

Kerry

Val

Mr

Mr

Jan

Ms

Kelly

Paul

Mr

Damon

Lyn

Ms

Mr

Tony

Mr

Ms

Pam

Ms

Ms

Jodie Marie

Mr

Janis

Allan

Ms

Mr

Jean

Ms

Gemma

Melissa

Mr

Stephen

Ken

Ms

Mr

Lynn

Mr

Ms

First Name

John
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Bill

Damien

Mark Alan

Mark

Geoffrey

Patrick

Noelene

Siew

Eron

Ivan John

Diana

Francis Victor Cullen

Helen

Bevan

Paul

Ken

Gaius

Bob

Michael C.

Barry William

Chris

Paul

Stephanie

Barry

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Ms

Ms

Mr

Mr

Ms

Mr

Ms

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Ms

Mr

S

S

A

A

S

A

A

A

A

A

S

S

S

A

A

A

A

S

A

A

S/A

Duckett

Doyle

Dollery

Dickson

A

A

A

A

de San Miguel A

Day

Daws

Davy

Davis

Davey

Dashwood

Dalgleish

Corbyn

Collins

Clarey

Cheong

Charles

Carter

Carter
Donald

Butchart

Burtenshaw

Burke

Burbidge

Budd

Faye

Ms

Last Name

First Name

Tl
Rockingham Campus

Campus

Rockingham Campus

Rockingham Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Maritime Centre

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;First Aid Officer;
Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

South Terrace

Murdoch Campus

Rockingham Campus

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Grievance Mediator; Occupational Safety & Health Representative;
Emergency Evacuation Warden.

South Terrace

First Aid

Fremantle Campus

Community Services Fremantle Campus

Information
Technology

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Marine Fabrication Marine Training Centre Occupational Safety & Health Representative;First Aid Officer.

Marine Fabrication Marine Training Centre First Aid Officer.

Horticulture

Administration

Fishing/Aquaculture Maritime Centre

Building

Information

Vol 1
Grievance Mediator;Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency
Evacuation Warden.

Marine Training Centre Critical Incident Response & Support Officer.

Murdoch Campus

Carpentry & Joinery Fremantle Campus

Office Admin
& Tech

Engineering

Horticulture

Hospitality

Submarine Project Garden Island

Cafeteria

Engineering

Hospitality

Engineering

Fishing

Hospitality

Cafeteria

Information Technology

Commerce

Section

C h a l l e n g e r TA F E – A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 0 5

Elaine

Bruce

Wendy Diane

Stuart

Robin

Jenny

Grant

Garry

Maurice

Lesley

Stephen

Roland

Laurie

Annette

Mr

Ms

Mr

Mr

Ms

Mr

Mr

Mr

Ms

Mr

Mr

Mr

Ms

Henson

Hayes

Hardie

Hall

Griffiths

Griffin

Griffin

Gregory

Greene

Gray

Graves

Gogan

Ginbey

Giles

Gardner

Fritzsch

Fossilo

Floky

Fletcher

Fitzpatrick

Excell

Edgar

East

S

A

A

A

S

S

S

A

A

A

A

S

A

A

A

A

S

A

A

S

S

S

S

A

A

S/A

Fremantle Campus

FPA Building

Fremantle Campus

South Terrace

Rockingham Campus

Fremantle Campus

Campus

Murdoch Campus

Fremantle Campus

Kwinana Centre

Rockingham Campus

FPA Building

South Terrace

Fremantle Campus

e-Tech Centre

South Terrace

Fishing/Aquaculture Maritime Centre

Horticulture

Plumbing

Administration

NAC

Business
Development

Information
Technology

Hairdressing

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

Grievance Mediator.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer.

Grievance Mediator.

First Aid Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

First Aid Officer.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer; Grievance Mediator.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;First Aid Officer.

Vol 1

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;First Aid Officer;
Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;First Aid Officer;Emergency
Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Marine Training Centre Critical Incident Response & Support Officer.

Fremantle Campus

Maritime Centre

Rockingham Campus

Maritime Centre

Fremantle Campus

Maritime Centre

Fremantle Campus

Marine Operations Maritime Centre

Engineering

Hospitality

Aquaculture

Child Care

Hatchery

Human Services
& Health

Administration

Accounting

Community Services Rockingham Campus

Resource
Learning Centre

Client Services

Workforce
Development

e-Tech Centre

Electrical

Plumbing

Section

C h a l l e n g e r TA F E – A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 0 5

Deborah

Mr

Ms

Denis

Ms

Ms

Jean

Ms

Sue

Marie

Mr

Darren

Ralph

Ms

Mr

Pat

Ms

Ms

Natalie

Mr

Dunn

Bruce

Mr

Last Name

First Name

Ronald Charles Duffield
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Linda

Dean

Sheree

Jenni

Sandra

Marija

Tammy

Terry

Markus

Rosetta

Ms

Mr

Ms

Ms

Ms

Ms

Ms

Mr

Mr

Ms

Roger Richard Jones

Mr

Leonie

MeredithWynne

Ms

Gavin

Christine

Ms

Mr

Greg

Mr

Ms

Brian

Letizia

Leone

Leitch

Lee

Lacman

Kingdon

Kenward

Kent

Kennerley

Kell

Kay

Joss

Jones

Johnson

Jenkins

Jenkins

Jardine

Ings

Hurst

Mr

Peter

Mr

Hughes

Mark Graham Jelley

Irene

Ms

Holland

Homes

Mr

Annemieke

Ms

Anne

Shaun

Mr

Holland

Dennis

Ann

Ms

Hodson

Last Name

Mr

Pauline

Ms

Ms

First Name

Tl

S

A

A

S

S

S

A

S

A

A

A

A

A

S

A

A

A

S

S

S

S

A

A

A

S

S

S/A

Rockingham Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Maritime Centre

FPA Building

Murdoch Campus

Murdoch Campus

Fremantle Campus

Murdoch Campus

Fremantle Campus

Campus

Maritime Centre

Heathcote Campus

Murdoch Campus

Maritime Centre

Murdoch Campus

Rockingham Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

FPA Building

FPA Building

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Community Adult Education

Building

Electronic
Engineering

Admissions

Finance Section

Finance Section

Community
& Health

IT & Business

Fishing/Aquaculture Maritime Centre

Horticulture

Hatchery

Horticulture

Marine Operations Maritime Centre

Administration

Community
Education

Fishing/Aquaculture Maritime Centre

Metals

HRM&D

Bookshop

Client Services

Horticulture

Applied Science

Automotive

Library Resource
Centre

LRC

Section
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Heathcote Campus

First Aid Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Grievance Mediator.

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Grievance Mediator;Occupational Safety
& Health Representative.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;First Aid Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative; Grievance Mediator;First Aid Officer;
Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.
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Rick

Sue

Lisa

Geoff

David

Neil

Dale

Elizabeth

Marilyn

Ian

Robert

Jean

Alan

Florence

Trevor

Rob

Carmen

Miriam

Carol

Jessica

Jay

Carmel

Gay

Graham

Eileen

Mr

Mr

Mr

Ms

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Ms

Mr

Mr

Ms

Mr

Ms

Mr

Mr

Ms

Ms

Ms

Ms

Mr

Ms

Ms

Mr

Ms

Parry

Palmer

O'Neil

Olynyk

O’Reilly

Ninyette

Muir

Moore

Moldovan

Miorada

Mills

Miller

Miller

Menzies

Mellowship

McDonald

McCutcheon

McCord

McAliece

Marriott

Lyons

Luff

Lucas

Lowndes

Loreto

Lewis

Last Name

S

S

A

S

A

S

A

A

S

A

A

A

S

A

S

A

A

S

A

A

A

A

S

A

S

S

S/A

Fremantle Campus

FPA Building

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Campus

Murdoch Campus

Rockingham Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Rockingham Campus

Maritime Centre

Murdoch Campus

Murdoch Campus

Maritime Centre

Rockingham Campus

Rockingham Campus

Horticulture

Administration

Hospitality

Administration

Murdoch Campus

Maritime Centre

Fremantle Campus

Peel Campus

Fishing/Aquaculture Maritime Centre

Aboriginal Programs Peel Campus

Horticulture

Horticulture

Administration

Metals

Electrical

Community Services Fremantle Campus

Supply

Fishing

Submarine Project Garden Island

Metals

Office Admin
& Tech

Information

Fishing/Aquaculture Maritime Centre

Horticulture

Fitting & Machining Rockingham Campus

Electrical

Finance Section

Administration

Administration

HR&D

Section
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First Name

Kim

Tl

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Grievance Mediator.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;First Aid Officer;
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Richard

Alfred

Kevin

Frank

Nike

Toni Catherine Reiss

Michael

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Ms

Ms

Mr

Sharyn

Peter

Kevin

Malcolm

Brian

Brad

Heather

Michael

Ms

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Ms

Mr

Leanne

Craig

Mr

Ms

Greg

Mr

Ian

Margherita

Ms

Mr

Dave

Mr

Susan

Peter

Mr

Robert

Peter

Mr

Mr

John

Mr

Ms

Roy

Mr

Snadden

Slaven

Shilkin

Sharp

Shand

Sealey

Scolari

Rush

Rowe

Roby

Richings

Repacholi

Remaj

Reid

Rauh

Rabeling

Quay

Purkiss

Procter

Perry

Pensabene

Penno

Pendoley

Pedersen

Pavlovic

Pavic

Partridge

Mr

Last Name

First Name

Gavin

Tl

A

A

S

A

A

A

S

S

A

A

A

A

A

A

S

S

A

A

A

S

A

S

A

A

A

A

A

A

S/A

Campus

Peel Campus

Fremantle Campus

Rockingham Campus

Maritime Centre

Fremantle Campus

Peel Campus

Fremantle Campus

Hospitality

Health & Fitness

Administration

Automotive

Automotive

e-Tech Centre

Maintenance

Administration

Access Programs

Plumbing

Automotive

Fashion

Metals

Community Adult
Education

Administration

Campus Services

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Rockingham Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

South Terrace

Fremantle Campus

Peel Campus

Rockingham Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Rockingham Campus

Heathcote Campus

South Terrace

Fremantle Campus

Submarine Project Garden Island

Marketing & Mgmt Fremantle Campus

Marine Operations Maritime Centre

Submarine Project Garden Island

Information
Technology

Information

Metals

Aquaculture

Electrical Trades

Horticulture

Engineering

Fishing/Aquaculture Maritime Centre

Section
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Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

First Aid Officer.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.
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Jenny

Janine

Jim

Mr

Ms

Ms

Mr

Williams

Wigham

White

Wheadon

Wellington

Weber

Weaver

Watson

Waterhouse

Walsh

Volaric

Vieira

Tisdale

Timmins

Thompson

Thompson

Thomas

Teoh

Tennant

Sumich

Stokes

Spencer

Southall

Snedker

Last Name

A

S

S

S

S

S

A

A

S

A

S

S

A

S

S

A

S

S

S

S

S

S

A

A

S/A
Rockingham Campus

Maritime Centre

Campus

Fremantle Campus

Murdoch Campus

Fremantle Campus

FPA Building

Maritime Centre

Fremantle Campus

Maritime Centre

Rockingham Campus

Maritime Centre

Kwinana Centre

Rockingham Campus

Peel Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Marine Operations Maritime Centre

Administration

Admin Bookshop

Security Guard

Administration

Submarine Project Garden Island

Aquaculture

Access Programs

Administration

Equity & Access

Grievance Mediator.

First Aid Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;First Aid Officer;
Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Peel Campus

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Grievance Mediator; Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;
First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;Occupational Safety & Health
Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Vol 1

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Grievance Mediator.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;First Aid Officer;

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Fremantle Campus Occupational Safety & Health Representative;

Peel Campus

Fremantle Campus

Mgmt & Development

Human Resource

Administration

Mech & Civil Eng

Academic Records Fremantle Campus

Education Development Unit

Health & Fitness

Library Resource
Centre

Supply

Business
Development

Administration

International
Students

Submarine Project Garden Island

Metals

Aquaculture

Section

C h a l l e n g e r TA F E – A n n u a l R e p o r t 2 0 0 5

Lucie

Robert

Ms

Chris

Mr

Brian

Mr

Frank

Tracey

Ms

Mr

Jim

Mr

Paul

Doug

Mr

Kingsley

Serena

Ms

Mr

Gaik

Ms

Mr

Cheryl

Ms

Mary

Sue

Ms

Ms

Kyle-Anne

Ms

Gail

Ian

Mr

Andrew

Kevin

Mr

Mr

Giles

Mr

Ms

First Name
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Kerry

John

Paul

Mary

Mr

Mr

Ms

Nita

Ms

Mr

Cristie

Ms

Kelly

Stephen

Mr

Damon

Steve

Mr

Mr

Val

Mr

Ms

Jan

Ms

Tony

Mr

Lyn

Pam

Ms

Paul

Janis

Mr

Mr

Stephen

Mr

Ms

Gemma

Ms

Ms

Jodie Marie

Melissa

Mr

Ms

Ken

Ms

Jean

Lynn

Mr

Allan

John

Ms

Mr

Pearl

Mr

Ms

First Name

Tom

Tl

Brindley

Briggs

Breen

Bowe

Bourke

Blick

Black

Bertram

Berry

Becker

Beaumont

Beattie

Bayley

Bates

Bart

Barr

Banks

Bailey

Bacich

Babb

Austin

Allen

Allan

Allan

Addison

Adams

Wootton

Williams

Last Name

S

S

A

A

A

S

S

S

A

A

A

S

S

S

A

S

A

S

S

S

A

S

S

S

S

A

A

S

S/A

Fremantle Campus

Rockingham Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Rockingham Campus

Peel Campus

Heathcote Campus

Murdoch Campus

South Terrace

Rockingham Campus

Campus

Maritime Centre

Maritime Centre

e-Tech Centre

Fremantle Campus

Rockingham Campus

Peel Campus

Rockingham Campus

Murdoch Campus

Information Systems

Information Officer Fremantle Campus

FM & Metal Fab

Horticulture

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Vol 1

Fremantle Centre Grievance Mediator.

First Aid Officer.

Grievance Mediator.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer.

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer.

Marine Training Centre First Aid Officer.

Maritime Centre

Fremantle Campus

Maritime Centre

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fishing/Aquaculture Maritime Centre

Administration

Administration

Administration

Hospitality

Applied Science

Administration

Administration

Administration

Security

Aquaculture

Admin Library

Plumbing

Submarine Project Garden Island

CMIS Coordinator

Student Services

Electrical

Records

Administration

Administration

Community Dev’t

Horticulture

Information
Technology

Section
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Appendices

Bill

Damien

Mark Alan

Mark
Donald

Geoffrey

Patrick

Noelene

Siew

Eron

Ivan John

Diana

Francis Victor Cullen

Helen

Bevan

Paul

Ken

Gaius

Bob

Michael C.

Barry William

Chris

Paul

Stephanie

Barry

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Ms

Ms

Mr

Mr

Ms

Mr

Ms

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Ms

Mr

S

S

A

A

S

A

A

A

A

A

S

S

S

A

A

A

A

S

A

A

S/A

A

A

A

A

Rockingham Campus

Rockingham Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Maritime Centre

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

South Terrace

Rockingham Campus

Campus

Information

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Murdoch Campus

Rockingham Campus

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Grievance Mediator;Occupational Safety & Health Representative;
Emergency Evacuation Warden.

South Terrace

First Aid

Fremantle Campus

Community Services Fremantle Campus

Information
Technology

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Marine Fabrication Marine Training Centre Occupational Safety & Health Representative;First Aid Officer.

Marine Fabrication Marine Training Centre First Aid Officer.

Horticulture

Administration

Fishing/Aquaculture Maritime Centre

Building

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;First Aid Officer;
Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Grievance Mediator; Occupational Safety & Health Representative;

Vol 1

Marine Training Centre Critical Incident Response & Support Officer.

Murdoch Campus

Fremantle Campus

Carpentry & Joinery Fremantle Campus

Office Admin
& Tech

Engineering

Horticulture

Hospitality

Submarine Project Garden Island

Cafeteria

Engineering

Hospitality

Engineering

Fishing

Hospitality

Cafeteria

Information
Technology

Commerce

Section
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Duckett

Doyle

Dollery

Dickson

de San Miguel A

Day

Daws

Davy

Davis

Davey

Dashwood

Dalgleish

Corbyn

Collins

Clarey

Cheong

Charles

Carter

Carter

Butchart

Burtenshaw

Burke

Burbidge

Budd

Faye

Ms

Last Name

First Name
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Deborah

Elaine

Bruce

Wendy Diane

Stuart

Robin

Jenny

Grant

Garry

Maurice

Lesley

Stephen

Roland

Laurie

Annette

Mr

Ms

Mr

Mr

Ms

Mr

Mr

Mr

Ms

Mr

Mr

Mr

Ms

Mr

Ms

Denis

Ms

Ms

Jean

Ms

Sue

Marie

Mr

Darren

Ralph

Ms

Mr

Pat

Ms

Ms

Natalie

Mr

Henson

Hayes

Hardie

Hall

Griffiths

Griffin

Griffin

Gregory

Greene

Gray

Graves

Gogan

Ginbey

Giles

Gardner

Fritzsch

Fossilo

Floky

Fletcher

Fitzpatrick

Excell

Edgar

East

Dunn

Bruce

Mr

Last Name

First Name

Ronald Charles Duffield

Tl

S

A

A

A

S

S

S

A

A

A

A

S

A

A

A

A

S

A

A

S

S

S

S

A

A

S/A

Fremantle Campus

FPA Building

Fremantle Campus

South Terrace

Rockingham Campus

Fremantle Campus

Campus

Murdoch Campus

Fremantle Campus

Kwinana Centre

Rockingham Campus

FPA Building

South Terrace

Fremantle Campus

e-Tech Centre

South Terrace

Fishing/Aquaculture Maritime Centre

Horticulture

Plumbing

Administration

NAC

Business
Development

Information
Technology

Hairdressing

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

Grievance Mediator.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer.

Grievance Mediator.

First Aid Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

First Aid Officer.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;Grievance Mediator.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;First Aid Officer.
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Occupational Safety & Health Representative;First Aid Officer;
Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;First Aid Officer;
Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Marine Training Centre Critical Incident Response & Support Officer.

Fremantle Campus

Maritime Centre

Rockingham Campus

Maritime Centre

Fremantle Campus

Maritime Centre

Fremantle Campus

Marine Operations Maritime Centre

Engineering

Hospitality

Aquaculture

Child Care

Hatchery

Human Services
& Health

Administration

Accounting

Community Services Rockingham Campus

Resource
Learning Centre

Client Services

Workforce
Development

e-Tech Centre

Electrical

Plumbing

Section
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Markus

Mr

Leone

Leitch

Lee

Lacman

Kingdon

Kenward

Kent

Kennerley

Kell

Kay

Joss

Jones
Wynne

Johnson

Jenkins

Jenkins

Jardine

Ings

Hurst

Hughes

Homes

Holland

Holland

A

A

S

S

S

A

S

A

A

A

A

A

S

A

A

A

S

S

S

S

A

A

A

S

S

S/A

Maritime Centre

Heathcote Campus

Rockingham Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Maritime Centre

FPA Building

Murdoch Campus

Murdoch Campus

Fremantle Campus

Murdoch Campus

Fremantle Campus

Campus

Murdoch Campus

Maritime Centre

Murdoch Campus

Building

Electronic
Engineering

Admissions

Finance Section

Finance Section

Community
& Health

IT & Business

Rockingham Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

FPA Building

FPA Building

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fishing/Aquaculture Maritime Centre

Horticulture

Hatchery

Horticulture

Marine Operations Maritime Centre

Administration

Community
Education

Fishing/Aquaculture
Maritime Centre

Metals

HRM&D

Bookshop

Client Services

Horticulture

Applied Science

Automotive

Library
Resource Centre

LRC

Section
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Terry

Mr

Gavin

Mr

Tammy

Leonie

Ms

Ms

Roger Richard Jones

Mr

Marija

Meredith-

Ms

Ms

Christine

Ms

Sandra

Greg

Mr

Ms

Brian

Mr

Jenni

Mark Graham Jelley

Mr

Ms

Dennis

Mr

Sheree

Anne

Ms

Ms

Peter

Mr

Linda

Irene

Ms

Dean

Annemieke

Ms

Mr

Shaun

Mr

Ms

Ann

Ms

Hodson

Pauline

Ms

Last Name

First Name

Tl

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Grievance Mediator.

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Grievance Mediator;Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;First Aid Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Grievance Mediator;
First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.
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179

David

Neil

Dale

Elizabeth

Marilyn

Ian

Robert

Jean

Alan

Florence

Trevor

Rob

Carmen

Miriam

Carol

Jessica

Jay

Carmel

Gay

Graham

Eileen

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Ms

Mr

Mr

Ms

Mr

Ms

Mr

Mr

Ms

Ms

Ms

Ms

Mr

Ms

Ms

Mr

Ms

Sue

Mr

Lisa

Rick

Mr

Geoff

Kim

Mr

Mr

Rosetta

Ms

Ms

First Name

Tl

Parry

Palmer

O'Neil

Olynyk

O’Reilly

Ninyette

Muir

Moore

Moldovan

Miorada

Mills

Miller

Miller

Menzies

Mellowship

McDonald

McCutcheon

McCord

McAliece

Marriott

Lyons

Luff

Lucas

Lowndes

Loreto

Lewis

Letizia

Last Name

S

S

A

S

A

S

A

A

S

A

A

A

S

A

S

A

A

S

A

A

A

A

S

A

S

S

S

S/A

Fremantle Campus

FPA Building

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Heathcote Campus

Campus

Murdoch Campus

Rockingham Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Rockingham Campus

Maritime Centre

Murdoch Campus

Murdoch Campus

Maritime Centre

Rockingham Campus

Rockingham Campus

Horticulture

Administration

Hospitality

Administration

Murdoch Campus

Maritime Centre

Fremantle Campus

Peel Campus

Fishing/Aquaculture Maritime Centre

Aboriginal Programs Peel Campus

Horticulture

Horticulture

Administration

Metals

Electrical

Community Services Fremantle Campus

Supply

Fishing

Submarine Project Garden Island

Metals

Office Admin
& Tech

Information

Fishing/Aquaculture Maritime Centre

Horticulture

Fitting & Machining Rockingham Campus

Electrical

Finance Section

Administration

Administration

HR&D

Community
Adult Education

Section
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Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Grievance Mediator.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;First Aid Officer;
Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.
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Kevin

Malcolm

Brian

Brad

Heather

Michael

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Ms

Mr

A

A

S

A

A

A

S

S

A

A

A

A

A

A

S

S

A

A

A

S

A

S

A

A

A

A

A

A

S/A

Campus

Peel Campus

Fremantle Campus

Rockingham Campus

Maritime Centre

Fremantle Campus

Peel Campus

Fremantle Campus

South Terrace

Fremantle Campus

Hospitality

Health & Fitness

Administration

Automotive

Automotive

e-Tech Centre

Maintenance

Administration

Access Programs

Plumbing

Automotive

Fashion

Metals

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Rockingham Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

South Terrace

Fremantle Campus

Peel Campus

Rockingham Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Rockingham Campus

Community Adult Education

Administration

Campus Services

Submarine Project Garden Island

Marketing & Mgmt Fremantle Campus

Marine Operations Maritime Centre

Submarine Project Garden Island

Information
Technology

Information

Metals

Aquaculture

Electrical Trades

Horticulture

Engineering

Fishing/Aquaculture Maritime Centre

Section
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Snadden

Slaven

Shilkin

Sharp

Shand

Sealey

Scolari

Rush

Rowe

Roby

Richings

Repacholi

Remaj

Peter

Reid

Mr

Ms

Rauh

Sharyn

Nike

Mr

Rabeling

Quay

Ms

Frank

Mr

Leanne

Kevin

Mr

Purkiss

Ian

Alfred

Mr

Procter

Ms

Richard

Mr

Perry

Mr

Craig

Mr

Pensabene

Robert

Greg

Ms

Penno

Mr

Margherita

Mr

Pendoley

Pedersen

Susan

Dave

Mr

Ms

Peter

Mr

Pavlovic

Toni Catherine Reiss

Peter

Mr

Pavic

Michael

John

Mr

Partridge

Last Name

Mr

Roy

Mr

Ms

First Name

Gavin

Tl

First Aid Officer.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Heathcote Campus

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

First Aid Officer.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative; Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.
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Mary

Kingsley

Paul

Frank

Chris

Mr

Ms

Mr

Mr

Mr

Mr

Pearl

Andrew

Ms

Ms

Gail

Mr

Tom

Brian

Ms

Jim

Tracey

Mr

Mr

Jim

Mr

Mr

Doug

Ms

Janine

Serena

Ms

Ms

Gaik

Ms

Jenny

Cheryl

Ms

Ms

Sue

Ms

Lucie

Kyle-Anne

Mr

Robert

Ian

Mr

Mr

Kevin

Mr

Ms

First Name

Giles

Tl

Wootton

Williams

Williams

Wigham

White

Wheadon

Wellington

Weber

Weaver

Watson

Waterhouse

Walsh

Volaric

Vieira

Tisdale

Timmins

Thompson

Thompson

Thomas

Teoh

Tennant

Sumich

Stokes

Spencer

Southall

Snedker

Last Name

A

S

A

S

S

S

S

S

A

A

S

A

S

S

A

S

S

A

S

S

S

S

S

S

A

A

S/A
Rockingham Campus

Maritime Centre

Campus

Fremantle Campus

Murdoch Campus

Fremantle Campus

FPA Building

Maritime Centre

Fremantle Campus

Peel Campus

Fremantle Campus

Maritime Centre

Rockingham Campus

Maritime Centre

Kwinana Centre

Rockingham Campus

Peel Campus

Fremantle Campus

Fremantle Campus

Information Technology

Rockingham Campus

Marine Operations Maritime Centre

Administration

Admin Bookshop

Security Guard

Administration

Submarine Project Garden Island

Aquaculture

Access Programs

Administration

Equity & Access

Human Resource Fremantle Campus
Mgmt & Development

Administration

Mech & Civil Eng

Academic Records Fremantle Campus

Education Development Unit

Health & Fitness

Library
Resource Centre

Supply

Business
Development

Administration

International
Students

Submarine Project Garden Island

Metals

Aquaculture

Section
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Grievance Mediator.

South Terrace

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Grievance Mediator.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;First Aid Officer;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;First Aid Officer; Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Peel Campus

Occupational Safety & Health Representative.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Grievance Mediator;Critical Incident Response & Support Officer;First Aid Officer;
Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Critical Incident Response & Support Officer; Occupational Safety & Health
Representative;Emergency Evacuation Warden.

First Aid Officer.

First Aid Officer.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.

Emergency Evacuation Warden.
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APPENDIX 9

Title

Explanation

$ Value

Sponsoring electric vehicle
challenge

Challenger TAFE will sponsor 3 local
high schools from the Kwinana
Industry Education Partnership to a
maximum of $300 per school and
$300 for miscellaneous expenses
and prizes

$1200

Sponsorship support for the
Abilities Careers Expo

Abilities Careers Expo will be held at
Forrest Place on Thursday 23rd
September, 2004.

$100

Sponsorship for Adult Learners
Week

Challenger TAFE is sponsoring ‘The
Outstanding Environmental Care
Program’ for Adult Learners Week

$1000

Sponsorship support for the
Mandurah Senior College
Graduation Ceremony

Challenger TAFE Pathways to
Learning Outstanding Achievement
Award

$500

Sponsorship for Mandurah Youth
Commitment

Challenger TAFE is to sponsor a
prize.

$250

Sponsorship for Presentation
Ceremony Curriculm Council Awards

2005 Curriculum Council awards
ceremony including Beazley medal
VET.

$2200
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CHALLENGER TAFE SPONSORSHIPS
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GLOSSARY AND LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

183

ANTA

Australian National Training Framework

AQF

Australian Qualifications Framework

AQTF

Australian Quality Training Framework

Auspicing

Training by a non registered training organisation is endorse by a Registered Training organisation (RTO)

CAG

Curriculum Advisory Group

CAT

Competitively Allocated Tender

CMIS

Curriculum Management Information System

CSSN

Curriculum Services Support Network

GATE

Gaining Access to Training and Employment

ITC

Industry Training Council

KIEP

Kwinana Industries Education Partnership

NACs

New Apprenticeship Centre

NAIDOC

National Aboriginal Islander Day Observance Committee

RTO

Registered Training Organisation

SCH

Student Curriculum Hours (a resourcing measure for TAFEWA colleges)

VET

Vocational Education and Training

VETfS

Vocational Education and Training for Schools

